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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DA EH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianli (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Dewen

Mr. Huang Dehong

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yuan Bing
Mr. Wang Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Lihua

Mr. Wang Lianzhou

Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (chairman of the Audit Committee)

Mr. Yuan Bing
Mr. Zhao Lihua

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhao Lihua (chairman of the Nomination Committee)

Mr. Wang Jianli
Mr. Wang Lianzhou

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Lianzhou (chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Wang Jianli
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. Wang Dewen

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
Mr. Wang Dekai

VICE PRESIDENT, FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jia Xinjiang

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Chan Sze Hon

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda

AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Kirkland & Ellis

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW

Maples and Calder

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Guotai Junan Capital Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DA EH

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Bank of Lanzhou

REGISTERED OFFICE

PO Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands
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Shenzhen PRC ARE30E

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG BEREIEEX MM

Unit 802 BR

Tower 2, Lippo Centre B 895K

89 Queensway HERL2E

Hong Kong 802 E

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR BERESRTE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited BEFREFELERAR
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 5

|83 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai B EERER 1835
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY[-1102

Cayman Islands

LISTING INFORMATION

Share Listing
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1396

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.hydoo.com.cn

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Telephone: (86) 755 8283 2026
Fax: (86) 755 8283 2005
Email: it®hydoo.com.cn
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE

—  The Group maintained net cash position and had net cash balance of RMB455.1

million as at 31 December 2014.

—  The Group maintained high gross profit ratio of 41.6% during the financial year
ended 3| December 2014.

—  The Board recommends payment of the proposed final dividend of HK6 cents
per share (equivalent to approximately RMB4.8 cents per share), representing a
dividend payout ratio of approximately 38%, on profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hydoo International Holding Limited
("Hydoo", the “Company”, “we", or “our’), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group"),
| am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2014 (“FY2014" or the “Year™).

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

During the Year, the Group's turnover and gross profit reached approximately
RMB3,360.2 million and RMBI,399.0 million, respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 29.4% and 52.3% respectively (For the financial year ended 31 December
2013 (“FY2013"), the tumover and gross profit were: RMB4,756.5 million and RMB2,932.4
million, respectively). Basic earmings per share for FY2014 were RMBI12.7 cents (FY2013:
RMB40.9 cents).

The Board proposed a final dividend of HK6 cents per share (equivalent to approximately
RMB4.8 cents per share) (the “Proposed Final Dividend") for FY2014, subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the Company's
forthcoming annual general meeting (*AGM") to be held on 15 May 2015.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHE

REVIEW OF MARKET TRENDS AND STRATEGY

In 2014, the economic growth of China was 7.4%. The economy of China entered the
stage of moderation and was tuming from high speed growth to medium speed growth,
its mode of economic development also changed from growth in scale and speed to
a “new normal state” of growth in quality and effectiveness. According to the relevant
data, under the new normal state and influences from the domestic environment of
resources and external pressure, the driving force of investment and exports gradually
weakened, while the role of consumer spending gradually became stronger in economic
development, the growth momentum of the Chinese economy was switching from
investment and export oriented to consumption driven. Trade and logistics were not only
important means to expand consumption, develop interal demand, increase employment
and improve livelihood of the general public, but were also key factors to facilitate
economic restructuring and transformation of economic development mode. As one of
the leading developers and operators of integrated large-scale trade and logistics centers
in China, Hydoo was able to maintain stable operations in response to the pressure and
challenges arising from slower overall economic growth in China, while achieving certain
breakthroughs in upgrading and providing improvement to the modern mode of trade
and logistics and providing more value-added and innovative services to small and medium

enterprises (“SMEs").

The Group continued to focus on the development and operation of trade and logistics
center projects, the core business and extended business of these projects provided
more efficient merchandise circulation and wholesale network of high coverage in
the process of city upgrading and urbanization and facilitated significant growth in the
consumption of residents. Such advantages brought us enormous business opportunities
in the urbanization process. We strived to perform well in the dual roles of developer
and operator of integrated large-scale trade and logistics centers, provide a professional
platform and key services for SMEs, and move towards modernization development in
trade and logistics together with them, so as to generate recurring business income and

bring sustainable and stable returns for the Group.
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The Group adopted sound and prudent operation management strategies, by
strengthening cash flows and security management of funds and developing more financing
channels, and further development and expansion of the Group was facilitated. During
the Year, the Group entered into strategic cooperation agreements with Ping An Bank,
Shenzhen Branch of China Merchants Bank and Shenzhen Branch of China CITIC Bank,
respectively. Among them, Ping An Bank agreed to provide credit, financing and financial
services to the Group during the term of three years of cooperation, and would utilize
its financial platform to provide a range of integrated financial services for the Group. The
Shenzhen Branch of China Merchants Bank agreed to provide the Group with credit and
financing arrangements of not exceeding RMB5 billion in total. The Shenzhen Branch of
China CITIC Bank agreed to provide the Group with credit and financing arrangements of

not exceeding RMB3 billion in total at preferential prices.

Furthermore, the Group successfully completed the issue of 7.00% convertible notes
in principal amount of US$120,000,000 due 2020 to Ping An Real Estate (Hong Kong)
Company Limited ("Ping An Real Estate”), part of the real estate investment management
arm of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd,, on 23 January 2015, and
entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with it on 8 January 2015 for a term of
five years. Pursuant to the agreement, in addition to corporate level investment through
the convertible notes, Ping An Real Estate also intended to make strategic investment
of not exceeding RMBI.5 billion in total in the Group's future trade and logistics center

projects.

2014 was a year of fusion between the real economy and the internet. Being a traditional
offline entity, the Group fully captured the market opportunities and combined with our
own offline resources to penetrate new economic areas such as e-commerce and intemet
finance on timely basis. Progress was made through self-establishment and cooperation,
the Group had established the e-commerce information service platform, logistics
distribution system and transaction payment system at the Mianyang Trade Center,
and achieved certain breakthroughs during the Year. Among them, the e-commerce
information service platform of the Mianyang Trade Center went online officially, both
online and offline resources were optimized and consolidated, leading trade business
of real industries in Mianyang to the path of operation over the internet platform, and
satisfying the increasing urgent demand for online businesses by SMEs. Moreover, the
Group held membership recruitment activities in a number of trade center projects in
Jining, Xingning and Lanzhou during the Year, and received enthusiastic responses from
SMEs. The improvement in the membership system would lay a solid foundation for
the establishment of an intelligent, professional and comprehensive big data information

platform.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHE

REVIEW OF FY2014 PERFORMANCE

In FY2014, we have been enhancing our presence in fast growing small and medium-sized

cities in China to achieve sustainable business growth.

LAND ACQUISITION AND LAND BANK

In FY2014, the Group has acquired land-use rights with an aggregate site area of
approximately 1.5 million sq.m., which is expected to have an aggregate estimated gross
floor area (“GFA") of approximately 2.7 million sq.m. As of 31 December 2014, we had a
total land bank of approximately 9.6 million sq.m., and were simultaneously developing | |

trade center projects in 8 provinces and autonomous regions in China.

CONTRACTED SALES PERFORMANCE

In FY2014, the Group's contracted sales amount and contracted sales area reached
approximately RMB2,929.4 million and 465,605 sq.m, respectively, representing decrease
of 58.2% and 47.9% compared to the figures of FY2013 respectively.

STRONG FINANCIAL POSITION

We implemented a build-to-sell business model in the early stage of project development,
and operated and managed it in the late stage. Due to our short development cycle,
we achieved an efficient turnover rate and a lesser need for capital investments, which
ensured our healthy financial leverage level. As of 31 December 2014, our bank loans
and other borrowings were RMB1,562.1 million and we had total cash’ of RMB2,017.2
million. Our net cash position® can help reduce our operation risk, provide funding for

our investment in new projects, and allow leverage for external financing.
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PROSPECTS

As the economy of China enters the "new normal state” signified by medium speed
growth, consumption as a driving force in the economic growth of China has become
prominent and increasingly important. Under the new normal state, overall social
consumption is switching faster from the mode of survival consumption to enjoyment
consumption, development consumption and information consumption, and the upgrade
in consumption level has brought significant opportunities to the trade and logistics sector.
In addition, according to the National New Urbanization Plan (2014 - 2020) (the “Plan”)
issued by the State Council during the Year, the Chinese government will focus on the
development of small cities and towns, tuming them into trade and logistics centers and
transportation hubs, among other professional specialties, through planning guidance and
market operations. Meanwhile, the Ministry of Commerce published Certain Opinions
on Promoting Healthy Development of Domestic Trade and Logistics (the “Opinions”)
during the Year, in which it was confirmed that increased efforts would be exerted on the
development of chain store operations, strengthening the construction of infrastructure
for trade logistics, increasing livelihood services for residents and policy measures for
supporting the expansion of logistics enterprises. By leveraging our Group's successful
business model and industry experience over many years, we are ready to capture the
vast opportunities brought by the above favourable trends and lead the modernization
upgrade and development of large-scale integrated trade and logistics centers in China, in

order to bring more retumns to our shareholders.

The Group will continue to expand both online and offline service platforms with
increasing efforts to facilitate the fusion of online and offline mode and create the
economies of scale and a closed circuit for payments. At the same time, we approach
new businesses which are favourable to the Group and can create value for shareholders
with an open attitude. Operation management of trade and logistics centers provides us
with logistics information of our SME customers directly and rapidly through warehousing
logistics, and cash flow information on SME customers through a unified payment system.
We aim to leverage the valuable information advantage to provide more customized and
professional value-added services for SME customers in future and to gain stable returns

for the Group.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHE

Furthermore, the strategic concepts of “New Silk Road Economic Belt" and the “21st
Century Maritime Silk Road" put forward by the Chinese government also give us insights.
By connecting with “One Belt and One Road" to facilitate the actualization of policies
focusing on policy communication, road connection, smooth trading flow, currency
circulation and cohesion of residents within the regions and centering on external
investments of China in areas such as inter-connection and inter-communication of
infrastructural facilities, cooperation in energy and resources, cooperative investments in
park zones and industries, and participation in building “One Belt and One Road", more
opportunities for expansion will be available to us in the areas of external investments and
trade logistics. Accomplishing achievements and acquiring benefits in the strategic process

of “One Belt and One Road" will be one of our key working focuses in future.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers and business partners for their trust and
support. | would also like to thank all our staff for their professionalism and wholehearted

commitment.

Wang Jianli

Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
Note:

(1) Total cash represents the sum of the Group's cash and cash equivalents, short-term time

deposits and restricted cash.

(2)  Net cash position represents the Group's total cash less bank loans and other borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of FY2014 Performance
Land Acquisition and Land Bank

In FY2014, the Group continued to develop new projects in certain fast growing small and

mid-sized cities in China in a bid to achieve sustainable business growth.

In FY2014, we acquired land-use rights with an aggregate total site area of approximately
1.5 million sq.m., which is expected to have an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately
2.7 million sq.m. during FY2014. As of 31 December 2014, we had a total land bank of
approximately 9.6 million sq.m., and we were simultaneously developing || trade center

projects in 8 provinces and autonomous regions in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Details of land bank for each project are shown in the table below:

FRAHREEHBENTE

Estimated GFA
of properties
Estimated GFA planned for
Actual GFA of properties future
of completed under development Total GFA Total GFA
properties development Rafk with land of properties
BRI i3 ARERE use rights delivered
NEER VESH ESH 2] BRH Land bank
BREER BREER BREER BREER BREER i
(sgm) (sgm) (sgm) (sgm) (sgm) (sgm)
(Fri) (Fri) (Fr) (Fri) (Fri) (Fri)
Ganzhou Trade Center ~ EMNEZMHHL 633866 142921 2763953 3540740 493616 3047124
Lanzhou Trade Center ~ MEBIRRL NATER 561,824 916407 1 478231 NATER 1478231
Wuzhou Trade Center ~ EMEZ ML NIATER 472,136 612,880 1,085,016 NIATER 1085016
Bengbu Trade Center ~ SBEBIRAL NATER NIANER 907,241 90741 NIATER 907241
Xingning Trade Center ~ EEEZMRAL NATER 240825 547282 788,107 NATER 788,107
Jining Trade Center EEEEMRAL 561,805 301,984 338250 1202039 395,659 806,380
Yulin Trade Center EHEEMRAL 280631 NIATEF 360836 643467 171,03 14l
Heze Trade Center TEBHEMRRL 247166 NIANER 163,147 410313 4798 362331
Mianyang Trade Center BRI BYIRA L 465,191 45,651 102,748 613590 335,370 278220
Yantai Trade Center BB MHAL NATER 13172 191,228 204400 NIATEFR 204400
Ningiang Trade Center ~ EHEEMRF L 381949 61518 NIANER 43467 280422 163,045
Haode Yinzuo RERE 48650 NIATREFR NIANER 48,650 38307 10343
Total st 2621258 184003 690397 1136526 176239 9,602,869
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contracted Sales Performance

In FY2014, the Group recorded contracted sales amount of approximately RMB2,929.5
million and contracted sales area of 465,605 sq.m., representing decrease of 58.2% and
47.9% respectively (2013: approximately RMB7,004.6 million and 894,182 s.qm.). During
the Year, China's domestic economy was slowing down, and the operation environment
of our industry was challenging and volatile under continuous stringent regulation, which
affected our business significantly. The Group closely monitored the market changes and
adopted measures to cope with the complicated market environment and challenges
in compliance with national and local government policies, and managed the project
development progress and pre-sale schedule in a more prudent way. Contracted sales
recorded during the Year were primarily related to pre-sale of properties at projects in

Mianyang, Wuzhou, Jining, Ganzhou and Heze.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Details on contracted sales during the Year are shown in the table below:

Contracted
sales area
a8
HEER

RERERAKESNHENFEN TRET -

Average
contracted sales
price (before
deduction
of business tax
and surcharges)
BNEE
FHEE
(BR&XBiA)

Contracted

sales amount

(before
deduction
of business tax Project
and surcharges)  Contribution(”
&4 (%)
HESH HEEM
(BRE& XHLA) Eefilo

(contracted sales area in sq.m., average contracted

sales price in RMB per sq.m. and

contracted sales amount in thousands of RMB)

(BHHEARUTF IR

EHHEFIIEEN

PR RENHEZEUARE T Tit)

Mianyang Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units

Wuzhou Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Shopping mall

Jining Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Residential area

Ganzhou Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Shopping mall

Heze Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units

Lanzhou Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units

Yulin Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Shopping mall

Ningxiang Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Serviced Apartment

Total

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e

BWRA
X%Emﬁﬁﬁ
AR SRR
SHERBIRP O
RIRREET
BIiRs
%ENE$E

iR
 AERNEBETL
%@m&

iR
ﬁ RPETEETL
BEALS

3
W
LN

xbo Xt

)ﬂﬂu

“IEE}

S u
’k}t@M:&H}LM
>|mu

t

BEERERERAT

135,755 6,866 932,130 31.8%
84,538 5521 466,742 [5.9%
8,63 8512 73,467 25%
79,440 4810 382,117 13.0%
13,603 4515 61422 21%
5258 10571 55,584 1.9%
47931 7250 347,494 [1.9%
56,338 5612 316,170 10.8%
19,429 8,661 168,272 5.8%
3,658 6,136 22,446 0.8%
10,141 9917 100,565 34%
275 4611 [,268 0.0%
608 2919 [,775 0.1%
465,605 6,292 2929452 100.0%




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Note:

(1) Project contribution (%) is calculated by dividing the contracted sales amount (before
deduction of business tax and surcharges) by the total contracted sales amount (before

deduction of business tax and surcharges) and then multiplying by 100%.

Our Trade Centers

Ningxiang Trade Center

Ningxiang Trade Center is located approximately 3 kilometers west of Ningxiang's city
center, a county in Changsha, the capital of Hunan province. Highway 319 runs along the
eastern edge of the Ningxiang Trade Center and provides Ningxiang with convenient

access to other key cities in Hunan, such as Changsha, Zhuzhou and Xiangtan.

Ningxiang Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of 1.3 million sqm., and has an
aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.2 million sq.m., which is expected to be
developed in three phrases. As of 31 December 2014, we had acquired land-use rights for
all of Phrase | encompassing a total site area of 301,387 sqm. and expect a total GFA of

443,467 sq.m. upon full completion of Phase I.

As of 31 December 2014, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets,
a freight-forwarding market, a commercial and exhibition center, warehouses and bus
terminal and information center, serviced apartments and had a hotel under construction

at this trade center project

BEEENWRE DM

iz -

() EHHERARERGNHEESE (hes
WA BRABENHEESE (REEBA)
BERI00%:TE -

a‘“k

ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁEWMﬁF’l}\

EHHEMRA D

ERFHBEYRPOURNREEEERYIMER
EMHROUANIRERE  30EBHERHE
MmO RBILER  RESBERY HRMK
MESNEEMEERMERER -

ERFHEMRFOMERENEERERMA
FBEEEBEARAIZEBTARRLIL
E%iﬁﬁ*ﬁ%%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁoﬁimw
FNA3NE FMERBE-—HEnEE
mmwﬁﬁ*%%ﬁimﬁﬁﬁoiﬁﬁl
® BHE-HNEREERR4M43467 A

NV
7N °

BEWI4FNA318 BMTKTBILR S
BRE BERTS  €&RFL - ARUKRAE
BIRERPOUARBERABORR - TR
WEEMRROEE —FEER RS -

Annual Report 2014 £

17



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWR D

Jining Trade Center

Jining Trade Center is located approximately 6 kilometers west of Jining, a prefecture-level
city in southwestem Shandong province, and is one of the three major industrial bases
in Shandong province. It is easily accessible by a number of connecting bus lines, and lies

within 10 kilometers of the Jining train station and 30 kilometers of Jining Qufu airport.

Jining Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 2.0 million sqm., and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 3.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in three phrases. As of 31 December 2014, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phrase | and Phrase Il encompassing a total site area of 975,863 sq.m. and expect

a total GFA of 1,202,039 sq.m. for Phase | and Phase Il when fully completed.

As of 31 December 2014, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets
and a shopping mall, were constructing additional wholesale trading market, a commercial
center, a hotel, an office building, a residential area and a commercial and exhibition
center, and had warehouses, serviced apartments, and office buildings planned for future

development at this trade center project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Yulin Trade Center

Yulin Trade Center is located approximately 2 kilometers from Yulin, the fourth largest
city in Guangxi, located along the border with Guangdong province. The trade center's
northem edge is bounded by Yulin Second Ring Road. It is 3 kilometers from Guang-Kun

Freeway and is within |0 kilometers of Yulin train station.

Yulin Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.2 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in three phrases. As of 31 December 2014, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phrase | and a portion of Phrase Il encompassing a total site area of 523,887
sgm. with a total planned GFA of approximately 643,467 sq.m. upon full completion of

Phase | and Phase Il development.

As of 31 December 2014, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets
and shopping malls, and had serviced apartments, a commercial and exhibition center and
additional wholesale trading markets planned for future development at this trade center

project.

Miangyang Trade Center

Miangyang Trade Center is strategically located in Mianyang, the second largest city in
Sichuan province, approximately 120 kilometers northeast of Chengdu, the capital of
Sichuan province, along the key highway and railway that connects Sichuan province and

western and northem China.

Mianyang Trade Center covers a net land area of approximately 605,084 s.gm. which
is estimated to consist of at least two phases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 613,590 s.qm. when fully completed. As of 31 December, 2014, we had
acquired all the land-use rights for this project.

As of 31 December 2014, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets
and certain supporting buildings and facilities, were constructing a commercial pedestrian
street, and had additional wholesale trading markets planned for future development at

this trade center project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Ganzhou Trade Center

Ganzhou Trade Center is strategically located in southwestern Jiangxi province near the
intersection of Jiangxi, Hunan and Guangdong provinces. Ganzhou lies along a major
transportation route connecting the inland areas of China with China’s southeastern coast.

Two major railways intersect in Ganzhou, the Jing-Jiu Railway and the Gan-Long Railway.

Ganzhou Trade Center covers a net land area of approximately 1,475,298 sq.m., which
is estimated to consist of at least two phrases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 3.5 million sqm. when fully completed. As of 31 December 2014, we had

acquired all the land-use rights for this trade center project

As of 31 December 2014, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets
and shopping malls, were constructing shopping malls and a commercial pedestrian street,
and had a commercial and exhibition center, additional shopping malls, warehouses,
supporting buildings and facilities, office buildings, residential area, hotels and additional

wholesale trading markets planned for future development at this trade center project.

Wouzhou Trade Center

Wuzhou Trade Center is strategically located in Wuzhou, a city in eastern Guangxi
near the border of Guangxi and Guangdong. It is approximately 370 kilometers east of
Nanning, the capital of Guangxi, and approximately 270 kilometers west of Guangzhovu,

the capital of Guangdong.

Wuzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately [.3 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in two phrases. As of 31 December 2014, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phrase | encompassing a total site area of 599,642 sq.m. with a total GFA

of approximately 1,085,016 sqm. upon full completion of Phase | development.

As of 31 December 2014, we were constructing certain supporting buildings and facilities,
wholesale trading markets, a commercial and exhibition center and shopping malls, and
had a residential area, office buildings and a hotel planned for future development at this

trade center project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Heze Trade Center

Heze Trade Center is located in the city's central Mudan district along National Highway

220 and is approximately 2 kilometers from Heze's city center.

Heze Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 8.0 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 12.0 million sq.m. which is expected to
be developed in three phrases. As of 31 December 2014, we had acquired land-use rights
for a portion of Phrase | encompassing a total site area of 392,280 sqm. with a total GFA

of approximately 410,313 sq.m. upon completion of development.

As of 31 December 2014, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets
and certain supporting buildings and facilities, and had shopping malls, office buildings and

a residential area planned for future development at this trade center project.

Xingning Trade Center

Xingning Trade Center is located at the northeast of the Xingning train station in
Diaofang. Xingning is a city governed by Meizhou city, situated in northeast Guangdong
province near Jiangxi and Fujian provinces, which is accessible by major national highways

connecting Guangdong and various other provinces in China.

Xingning Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.3 million sq.m.
with a total GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m. which is expected to be developed in
three phases. As of 31 December 2014, we had acquired land-use right for a portion of
Phase | encompassing a total site area of 546,678 sq.m. with a total GFA of approximately

788,107 sq.m. upon completion of development.

As of 31 December 2014, we were constructing wholesale trading markets and certain
supporting buildings and facilities and had additional wholesale trading markets, shopping

malls, and residential areas planned for future development at this trade center project.

BEEENWRE DM

HEHEMRFB D

HEREDREPOMNRTRONENE 2
VOBFBERNREE ERGETDLA2A
io

FERBYRR O ERE NG HEE R GG
BEEERESANSOBETAARRL 12088
ThHAR BHO=ZHER -HE2014F12A
318 - RMEMGE — B4 5 HE392,280
THRNED THERE - 2ETIE - B
BREMBEL410313FFK -

BZE2014F12A318 BRMEEKBIR S
BTRERETREZEMSZE - WHERKR
WEENRFLERGERSETR BT
FEER -

BEHERP D

REFREYRPOMLNBEET IS REEANE
U RAETT A Eﬁj-z%TiJHrnﬁﬁ (ERIREN
BRARLE MBIAERERE  REE
REREEGEEMSEENOTREE

EEFEYRPOTEEENEEE &G
HEREEREORLYIIEEFE K KRL20

BETEAK BHESZHEE - HE2014
FA3AB BZRMEMESE-—HBGHERE

546,678 L KRB L FERE  2ETIE
EEREEIEA) 5788,107 F K o

BZE2014F12R318 BRMEARBIRS
BTRERETRERENRME - WRBREKR
LEBMRFLARESMNEIRHBTE -
rERHERNRLEER o

Annual Report 2014 £

21



22

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWR D

Yantai Trade Center

Yantai Trade Center is located in the southem Zhifu district of Yantai, west of Shenhai
Highway, 9 kilometers north of Yantai railway station, east of the Yantai wharf and 9.5
kilometers south of the Laishan International Airport and Rongwu Highway. The location

of Yantai Trade Center has exceptional geographical and transportation advantages.

Yantai Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 1.3 million sq.m. with
a total GFA of approximately 2.4 million sq.m. which is expected to be developed at least
in two phrases. As of 31 December 2014, we had acquired land-use rights for a portion of
Phase | encompassing a total site area of 44,233 sq.m. with a total GFA of approximately

204,400 sq.m. upon completion.

As of 31 December 2014, we were constructing certain supporting buildings and facilities
and had wholesale trading markets, office buildings, serviced apartments and shopping

malls planned for future development at this trade center project.

Lanzhou Trade Center

Lanzhou Trade Center is located in Yuzhong county, Lanzhou, which is next to the
community of Lanzhou College. It is located in the south of Qinglan Highway and National
Road 312 and the north of National Road 309, and is approximately 15 kilometers from
downtown Lanzhou City, 20 kilometers and 80 kilometers from the railway station and

airport of Lanzhou, respectively.

Lanzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 4.0 million sqm.
with a total GFA of approximately 6.0 million sqm. which is expected to be developed
at least in two phases. As of 31 December 2014, we had acquired land-use rights for
all of Phrase | encompassing a total site area of 1,007,941 sq.m. with a total GFA of

approximately 1,478,231 sqm. upon completion.

As of 31 December 2014, we were constructing wholesale trading markets and
a commercial predestrain street, and had shopping malls, a hotel, office buildings,
warehouses, and additional wholesale trading markets planned for future development at

this trade center project

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e 3%/Z B[R 12l AR A 7

BEBEWRH L

ELTGE

MR LA RE & RENE &
5HL VM@ @SAEEM LORE - 2
AEANRARKILBEREERRERENE
MWEISRE - BREBEWMRT LMELEEHS
BABREED -

BemBYiRT O SR ENIG L EE kb
BREBMENANIZEETIAREN 2488

FHK BHELOMBEE - HE2014F 12
A3 B RPEBEE—HEEHEE44233

FHANBLLERE  TTENEELER
TEH 5204400 F K o

BEWM4FNA3NAE BMEEREETEE
RREFRME - WAREIRRELEERP O E
REURSETR B8 BEARTRAE
BERFETE

ﬁm%%%m 0

HME B R OB TR & - SRt
ERMAES - BNEEDRP LR RES
RABRINBEBARAR09BEEAL - B
BEBMNTmA L - BN A RS D RIK
SRR 20RERSODE -

BMEENRR O EREN G EERER

EEBEAAN40BEFHRRKN6OBETSH
K EBHELHOBMBERE - BHE014F12A
318 ZMEREE—BME S ik A -
H@bmmi& 1007941 FAXK  2EEIEN
BRETBOA 1478231 F K

HZEWM4ENA3NE BMEEEBYRS

BErREERE  UREAXRRELBEDRD
LEERARSETRRE  —FARE BFE

BEREZNBURHELNE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bengbu Trade Center

Bengbu Trade Center is located in Huaiyuan county, Bengbu. It is located to the west of
Beijing-Shanghai Railway and Beijing-Shanghai High-speed Railway, at the junction of 206
National Road, Provincial Highway 307, Provincial Highway 225, and other highways. It
is approximately 25 kilometers from the downtown of Bengbu, 30 kilometers and 120

kilometers from the railway station and airport of Hefei, respectively.

Bengbu Trade Center covers a net land area of approximately 363,737 sq.m., which is
estimated to consist of at least two phrases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 907,241 sq.m. when fully completed. As of 31 December 2014, we had

acquired all the land-use rights for this trade center project.

As of 31 December 2014, we had a residential area, a commercial center, a hotel and
certain supporting buildings and facilities planned for future development at this trade

center project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBEENWmER N
FINANCIAL REVIEW B 75 B
Turnover —E 3]

Turnover decreased by RMBI,396.3 million, or 29.4%, from approximately RMB4,756.5 EEREHRVBHRFENARKE 4756588 T
million for FY2013 to RMB3,360.2 million for FY2014. This decrease was primarily caused MO AR 13963 BEBT29.4% 220148 K
by a decrease in revenue from sales of properties. The following table sets forth our FENARBI3602BET - EXFRIEE
turnover from sales of properties, property management services, rental income and ZREARMEHEMGEHRD - TREFIHM
advertising income during the periods indicated: RATTERKREMEHE  DEERRE A
TRAREEWAL SRS -

For the year ended 3| December

BZNABALEE

2014 2013

Turnover Turmover

EES L

(RMB'000) (RMB000)
(AR#TFr) % (ARETFT) %
Sale of properties ESi S 3,341,612 99.5% 4748766 99.8%
Property management services MEEBR R 11,339 0.3% 7,027 02%
Rental income RN 6,734 0.2% 671 0.0%
Advertising income BEBA 504 — — —
Total =51 3,360,189 100% 4756464 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sale of properties

Revenue from sales of properties decreased by RMBI,407.2 million, or 29.6%, from
approximately RMB4,748.8 million for FY2013 to RMB3,341.6 million in FY2014. The
decrease of sales of properties is in line with the decrease in the GFA of properties
sold, which decreased by 195,247 sq.m., or 28.1%, from 694,000 sq.m. for FY2013 to
498,753 sqm. for FY2014. The decrease of the GFA of properties sold was mainly due
to the Group’s prudent sales strategy adopted to cope with the complex and volatile
environment. Our revenue for FY2014 was primarily derived from the sales of wholesale
trading market units at our Ganzhou Trade Center, Mianyang Trade Center, Jining Trade

Center and shopping mall at our Yulin Trade Center.

The following table sets forth the GFA, average sales price and revenue from properties

delivered during the periods indicated:
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For the year ended 31 December

2014
Avergae

GFA  sales price
BEEE VIEE

BZ1A3HLEE
2013
Avergae

Revenue GFA  sales price Revenue

BXE RERRE  THEER EXE

GFA in sq.m., average sales price in RMB per sq.m.

and revenue in thousands of RMB

BEFRE (FoK) - FHEE (BFRKARET) R

X (AR¥TT)

Ganzhou Trade Center EMBEEMRA O

Wholesale trading market units BURGETRET 119,568 8,228 983,853 334,125 8102 2,707,127
Shopping mall FAERHRTR 40,060 10,130 405,814 — — —
Subtotal et 159,628 8706 1,389,667 334,125 8102 2,707,127
Mianyang Trade Center BEEENRAD

Wholesale trading market units BURGETRET 159,659 6,421 1,025,153 175711 5822 1,023,023
Subtotal Nt 159,659 6,421 1,025,153 175711 5822 1,023,023
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EEENWE DN

For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3BLEE

2014 2013
Avergae Avergae
GFA  sales price Revenue GFA  sales price Revenue
BEEE VIEE BXE RERE  PHEE ERE
GFA in sq.m., average sales price in RMB per sq.m.
and revenue in thousands of RMB
BEARE (FoK) - PHEE (EFKARET) R
EXE (ARKTT)
Jining Trade Center BEFEYRD L
Wholesale trading market units BURSRTRET 95,872 4474 428,979 85,363 4,200 358,541
Shopping mall BERHETR — — — 3506 6591 23,108
Subtotal et 95,872 4474 428,979 88,869 4,295 381,649
Heze Trade Center SRR ERE O
Wholesale trading market units BURSRTRET 47,983 5,204 249,680 — — —
Subtotal Nt 47,983 5,204 249,680 — — —
Yulin Trade Center EREEDRA O
Wholesale trading market units BURGETRET 8214 5,155 42342 25,081 5051 126,692
Shopping mall BERHETER 2,276 8,731 194,481 53,008 8,182 433,737
Subtotal et 30,490 7,767 236,823 78,089 7177 560,429
Ningxiang Trade Center ERHEWRA O
Wholesale trading market units BURGETRET 4778 2,168 10,358 7687 430 33226
Bus terminal and information center BB R AR — — — 5302 3,808 20,191
Serviced apartments BEALE 343 2,776 952 3,045 5,126 15,608
Subtotal Nt 5121 2,209 11,310 16,034 4,305 69,025
Other Properties Hit¥x
Haode Yinzuo RS o RE — — — 1172 6410 7513
Subtotal a — — — 1172 6410 7513
Total Mt 498,753 6,700 3,341,612 694,000 6843 4748766
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property management

Revenue from property management services increased by RMB4.3 million, from RMB7.0
million for FY2013 to RMBI 1.3 million for FY2014. This increase primarily reflected the
continued expansion of our property management portfolio, including our acquisition of a
51% equity interest of Ganzhou Jiuzhi in June 2013 which further increased the scope of

our property management service operations.

Rental income

Revenue from rental income increased by RMB6.0 million, or 857.1%, from RMBO.7 million
for FY2013 to RMB6.7 million for FY2014. The increase in FY2014 was primarily derived

from the leasing of properties at Haode Yinzuo and Jining Trade Center.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased by RMBI37.1 million or 7.5%, from RMBI,824.1 million for
FY2013 to RMBI,961.2 million for FY2014. This increase primarily reflected the increase in

construction costs.

Cost of properties sold increased by RMBI25.5 million, or 6.9%, from RMBI,817.5
million for FY2013 to RMBI,943.0 million for FY2014. The increase was mainly due to a
significant proportion of revenue being generated from Mianyang Trade Center of our
overall revenue for FY2014, which yielded a relatively higher cost of sales compared to

that of Ganzhou Trade Center and Jining Trade Center.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWR D

Gross Profit

As a result of the forgoing, gross profit decreased by RMBI,533.4 million, or 52.3%, from
RMB2,932.4 million for FY2013 to RMB1,399.0 million for FY2014. Our gross profit
margin decreased from 61.6% for FY2013 to 41.6% for FY2014. The decrease in our gross
profit margin for FY2014 compared to FY2013 was primarily due to a lower proportion of
revenue being generated from Ganzhou Trade Center of our overall revenue for FY2014,
which yielded a relatively higher gross profit margin compared to that of Mianyang Trade
Center and Jining Trade Center which contributed to a significant portion of our gross
profit for FY2014.

Other Revenue

Other revenue increased by RMBO.3 million, or 5.6%, from RMB5.4 million for FY2013
to RMB5.7 million for FY2014. Other revenue mainly represents dividend income in
connection with a 10% minority investment made to the local rural credit cooperative

institution in Mianyang, Sichuan province.

Other Net Income

Other net income for FY2014 mainly represents net gains on disposal of available-for-
sale investments, which are investments in quoted funds and unlisted wealth management
products issued by banks, financial institutions or asset management companies based on

the Company's treasury policy.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB52.8 million, or 40.8%, from RMB129.5
million for FY2013 to RMBI182.3 million for FY2014. The increase primarily reflected an
increase in staff compensation. The selling and distribution expenses as percentage of
tumnover increased from 2.7% in the FY2013 to 5.4% in FY2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by RMBI 5.2 million, or 36.9%, from RMB312.5 million
for FY2013 to RMB427.7 million for FY2014. The increase primarily reflected increases
in staff-related expenses. The increases were primarily due to a significantly higher level
of administrative expenses incurred to support our growing operational scale in FY2014
compared to FY2013. Our administrative expenses as a percentage of turnover increased

from 6.6% in FY2013 to 12.7% in FY2014.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses decreased by RMBI 1.0 million, or 47.6%, from RMB23.|
million for FY2013 to RMBI2.1 million for FY2014. Other operating expenses primarily
consisted of charity donations and sponsorships made at our headquarters level as well
as geographic regions where we have operations or intended to enter into. Our other
operating expenses represented 0.4% and 0.5%, of our turnover in FY2014 and FY2013,

respectively.

Finance Income

Our finance income increased by RMB8.9 million, or 80.2%, from RMBI I.I million for
FY2013 to RMB20.0 million for FY2014. The increase reflected an increase in interest

income on our bank deposit in FY2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWR D

Finance Cost

Our finance cost decreased by RMB61.4 million, or 87.5%, from RMB70.2 million for
FY2013 to RMB8.8 million for FY2014. The decrease primarily reflected a decrease of
RMB66.0 million in finance expenses recorded in FY2013 on our Preferred Shares issued
to Hony Capital Fund 2008, LP. (“Hony Capital”). Substantially all of the interest expenses
paid on bank loans and other borrowings in FY2014 were capitalized into properties

under development.

Change in Fair Value of Embedded Derivative on Preferred Shares

The decrease of RMBI103.3 million from FY2013 to FY2014 in the fair value reflected
the conversion of preferred shares we issued to Hony Capital in 201 | to ordinary shares

upon the listing of the Company’s shares (the “Shares”) on Stock Exchange.

Income Tax

Our income tax expense decreased by RMB817.9 million, from RMBI,148.9 million for
FY2013 to RMB331.0 million for FY2014. Such decrease primarily reflected a significant
decrease in the taxable income as a result of the revenue generated from sales of

properties in our trade centers.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our profit decreased by RMB669.5 million, or 56.9%, from
RMBI,176.0 million for FY2013 to RMB506.5 million for FY2014. Our profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company decreased by RMB665.7 million, or 56.5%, from
RMBI,177.8 million for FY2013 to RMB512.1 million for FY2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash amounted to RMB198.2 million for FY2014 compared to RMB103.0
million for FY2013. Our restricted cash in FY2014 primarily represented the cash we
pledged to commercial banks for relevant mortgage facilities granted to our customers
for the purpose of purchasing properties by our customers. Such pledged cash generally
represents 2-10% of the total credit provided by commercial banks. The increase in
our restricted cash in FY2014 primarily reflected the increase in property sales through
obtaining mortgage loans provided by commercial banks to our customers which are

subject to the cash pledge arrangement described above during the Year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary uses of cash are to pay for construction costs and land acquisition costs,
fund working capital, service our indebtedness, purchase property, plant and equipment
for our own use, and other regular business operation needs. To date, we have primarily
financed our operational expenditures through internally generated cash flows including
proceeds from the pre-sale and sale of properties, equity investments made by our pre-
IPO investors, borrowings from commercial banks and other lenders and proceeds from

our initial public offering.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

= A
EEENWmR DM
Bank Loans and Other Borrowings BITERKRHMGEE
The following table sets forth our outstanding borrowings as of the dates indicated. TREINFATBRRMORERRITERR
HifE& -
As of 31 December
RI12A318
2014 2013
(RMB000) (RMB000)
(AREFT) (ARETT)
Current WE
Secured PR iwid
— short term bank loans and other borrowings —RHRTERREMEE 145,000 70,000
— current portion of secured non-current bank loans —FERIERBDBITERR
and other borrowings HiEERme s 224,500 183,860
Unsecured A
— short term bank loans —RHIRITER — 28,000
Subtotal et 369,500 281,860
Non-current FRE
Secured Peg iwid
— repayable after | year but within 2 years ——FREMFRER 399,230 181,000
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years —MEREBRAFREK 793,370 421,000
Subtotal Nt 1,192,600 602,000
Total met 1,562,100 883,860

As of 31 December 2014, the bank loans and other borrowings are all denominated in R2014E 124318 - IAERITERKEME

Renminbi, of which RMB417,000,000 (2013: RMB255,000,000) bear fixed rates and the ~ EHMAARBEE - o AR 417,0000007T

remainder bear variable interest rates. (20134 : AR ¥ 255,000,000 7T ) & &l & F| & &5+
S MR FRRFBFIRETE °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest rates ranging from 6.40% to 10.23% per

annum for FY2014 (2013: 6.40% to 17.00%) and are secured by the following assets:

BEEENWRE DM

REAEER BOERREMESENT
6.40% % 10.23% K FFE5T 82013 F : FFX
640% % 17.00%) * WA THIEEEER :

As of 3|1 December

RI12A31H
2014 2013
(RMB'000) (RMB000)
AREFT AEETFT
Properties under development for sale FEERME 981,722 722,620
Completed properties held for sale FEETIME 904,770 460,535
Properties held for future development for sale HFERKRGFREME 252,088 133,360
Total A% 2,138,580 1316515

Contingent Liabilities

We make arrangements with PRC commercial banks so that such banks may provide
mortgage facilities to our customers to purchase our properties. In accordance with
market practice, we are required to provide guarantees to these banks in respect of
mortgages provided to such customers. Guarantees for such mortgages are generally
discharged at the earlier of: (i) the due registration of the mortgage interest held by the
commercial bank upon the subject property, or (i) the settlement of mortgage loans
between the mortgagee banks and the purchasers. In addition, we are required by the
banks to place a security deposit to secure our guarantee obligations. If a purchaser
defaults on the mortgage loan, we are typically required to purchase the underlying
property by paying off the mortgage loan with any accrued and unpaid interest and
penalty based on the loan agreement. If we fail to do so, the mortgagee banks will auction
the underlying property and recover the balance from us if the outstanding loan amount
exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds. Such amount may also be settled through
withholding the security deposit we place with the banks. In line with industry practice, we
do not conduct independent credit checks on our customers but rely on the credit checks
conducted by the mortgagee banks. As of 31 December 2014, our maximum amount of
guarantees provided to banks for mortgage facilities granted to our customers amounted

to RMB2,551 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWR D

Commitments

(@)

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e

Commitments outstanding at the end of reporting period contracted but not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

The following table sets forth our commitments in respect of property

development expenditures as of the dates indicated.

@) RBEEHRSTHNERBBEHRRAER
BRARNT

TRENEERARAHRRFPEEDER
BRI MEGE -

2014 2013

(RMB'000) (RMBU0O)

ARMTFT AEEFT

Construction and development contracts BRERBERERN 1,926,765 1,223,694
Land agreements TR 330,588 —
2,257,353 1,223,694

At the end of reporting period, the total value minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating lease are payable as follows:

(b)) REEHR REFITHHCLHEER
FREESBEHHERINT :

2014 2013
(RMB000) (RMB000)
AREFT AEETT
Within | year —FR 53,534 13,893
After | year but within 2 years —FREMFRA 47,385 12,373
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFA 115,000 —
215919 26,266
We lease a number of building facilities under operating leases. The leases typically BPEREeHEMNRAZERFRME -
run for an initial period of 2 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease after HH LK Fﬁﬁﬁ:ztﬁﬁ )
that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes EEELN ERSENHTEMBHR -

contingent rentals.

BEERERERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

() At the end of reporting period, the total value minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

BEEENWRE DM

(0 RESHR REFTHACERER
BRERLBENHERNT

2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB000
ARHFT ARETT

Within | year —FR
After | year but within 2 years —FREMFA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRFRA
After 5 years hFf&

The Group leases out a number of properties under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 15 years. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

Key Financial Ratios

The following table sets out our current ratios and gearing ratios as of the dates indicated.

7,683 4933
4,112 6,649
3,653 5,547
9,934 10,602
25,382 27,731

AEERBLEEEHBLZRNE - BO—K
NEREMFETRF - BOBTERIAR

AN
& °

FRUHLER

TREIAMRATERORB LR REER

B -

As of 3|1 December

2014 2013
Current ratio MENLL RO 1.76 1.81
Gearing ratio @ BEABLLE 13.2% 8.0%
Net gearing ratio © FEEAFLLEO Net cash FHE  Net cash FHRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWR D

Notes:

(1) Our current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as of the end of

the respective reporting period.

(2)  Our gearing ratio is calculated as the Group's total interest bearing borrowings as of the
respective reporting period (includes bank loans and other borrowings and redeemable
convertible preference shares) divided by total assets as of the end of the respective

reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

(3)  Our net gearing ratio is calculated as the Group's net debt (aggregated bank loans and other
borrowings and redeemable convertible preference shares net of cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash) divided by the total equity of the Group as of the end of the respective
reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure about Financial Risk

Reflecting the nature of our property development, investment and management
operations, we are exposed to various financial risks in the normal course of our business.
However, our sales were primarily denominated in RMB, being the functional currency of
our major operating subsidiaries, therefore, our Board expects the future exchange rate
fluctuation will not have any material effect on our business. We did not use any financial

instruments for hedging purpose.

Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiary

Except for the acquisition of the 100% equity interest in Haode Shangging on 30 May
2014, the Group had no other acquisition and disposal of subsidiary and associated
company in FY2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Restriction on Sales

As of 31 December 2014, we were simultaneously developing || trade center projects
in 8 provinces and autonomous regions in China. Under the terms of certain master
investment agreements with local government authorities regarding the development of
trade centers, such as our agreements in relation to Ningxiang, Mianyang and Ganzhou
Trade Centers, we are required to maintain a certain portion of the trade center
properties, typically 20-30% in terms of GFA, for self-use or leasing purpose. We believe
that such requirement is in line with our overall development plan for these projects.
Except for the conditions mentioned above, there is no restriction on sales of the land

acquired by the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a workforce of 2,391 people. The number of
staff had increased by 20.5% since 31 December 2013. In FY2014, the total employee
benefit expenses amounted to RMB296.2 million, increased by 84.1% (FY2013: RMB160.9
million). We actively recruit skilled and qualified personnel in the Chinese local markets,
including students newly graduated from universities as well as employees with relevant
work experience. For the senior management team and selected management positions,
we may also seek to recruit personnel with interational experience. The remuneration
package of our employees includes salary, bonuses and other cash subsidies. In general, we
determine employee salaries based on each employee's qualifications, experience, position
and seniority. We have designed an annual review system to assess the performance of
our employees, which forms the basis of our determinations on salary raises, bonuses and
promotion. As at 3| December 2014, the number of outstanding share options granted

by the Company to its directors (the “Director(s)") and employees is 68,715,000 shares.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BB HE

For the year ended 3| December

BZ1NA3BLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB'000  RMBO000  RMBO000  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARBTI ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Results E4
Turnover BERE 3360,189 4756464 1,607,114 832,683 95715
Gross Profit £ 1,399,026 2932355 776,271 433823 77378
Profit before taxation BRI FIE 837,426 2,324,859 460,282 288,728 23,126
Income tax G5 (330961) (1,148896)  (245491)  (59751)  (10953)
Profit for the year FRFE 506,465 1175963 204791 228977 12,173
Profit for the year attributable to; NERREIEFE &R
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAERERR 512,053 1,177,782 216,506 228977 12,173
Non-controlling interests IR (5,588) (1,819) (1,715) — —
Profit for the year FERME 506,465 1175963 214791 228977 12,173
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B BEE
As of 3| December
RI12A318
2014 2013 2012 201 | 2010
RMB'000  RMBO000  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARETR ARBETT ARETT AR®TT ARETT
Financial position BBRR

Non-current assets FnBEE 787,259 302,143 188,135 112,895 56,887
Current assets MBEE 11,065760 10701554 ~ 4954970 2869070 1811959
Current liabilities mEBaE 6,281,413 5901028 3149808 2053418 1659836
Net current assets MBEEFE 4784347 4800526 1,805,162 815652 152,123
Total assets less current liabilties BEERTHAR 5571,606 5102669 1993297 928547 209,010
Non-current liabilities E =Y 1,198,443 670,881 937,230 555,874 20,000
Net assets BEFE 4373,163 4431788 1,056,067 372,673 189,010
Share capital B 31,825 31,945 365 333 90,333
Reserves 1 4260304 4389126 949417 372,340 98677

Total equity attributable to equity AREREERRES
shareholders of the Company EmaE 4292,129 442107 949,782 372673 189,010
Non-controlling interests R ER 81,034 10717 106,285 — —
Total Equity e 4373,163 4431788 1,056,067 372,673 189,010
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Board has pleasure in presenting this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is developing and operating large-scale trade centers

in third and fourth-tier, and selected second-tier cities in China.

The Group seeks to develop each trade center project into the largest integrated
commercial complex in the local region for the wholesale and retail sale of a wide range
of products including hardware, electric tools, building materials, furniture and home
furnishings, home electronics, apparel and small goods. The Group designs its trade
centers to seamlessly integrate the wholesale trading market properties with other on-site
facilities such as shopping malls, commercial and exhibition centers, hotels, residential and

office space, warehouses and other logistics facilities.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in

note 17 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review on the Group is set out on pages |3 to 23 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to complying with PRC environmental protection laws and
regulations and actively participate in the environmental assessment process and fully
cooperates with accredited environmental assessment organizations. The Group has
taken certain measures to reduce pollution, including the implementation of energy-
saving policies that reduces its electricity consumption, the implementation of a rain and
sewage diversion system in certain trade centers, smoke filtering systems in kitchens of its
cafeterias and restaurants and the installation of sound insulation in its backup generators

and cooling machines, and the use of solar-powered heaters.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There were no incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the Company during FY2014.
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RESULTS

The Group's results for FY2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

on pages 98 to 99 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of the Proposed Final Dividend. Subject to the
approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the AGM to be held on
I5 May 2015, the Proposed Final Dividend will be distributed on or about 3 June 2015 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 26
May 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during FY2014 are set out

in note 28(c) to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during FY2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 28(d) to the financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, details of the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the

Cayman Islands are set out in note 28(e) to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

FY2014 are set out in note || to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the Group's single largest customer and five largest customers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group's tumover respectively, in FY2014.

The aggregate purchases from the Group's single largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 10.1% and 30.6% respectively, of the Group's total purchases
for FY2014.
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None of the Directors or any of their associates, or any Shareholders which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital has

any interests in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

DONATIONS

During FY2014, the charitable contributions and other donations totaled approximately
RMB 0.3 million (FY2013: RMB22.6million).

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are set out in

note |7 to the financial statements.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company ratified and approved the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme™) on 20 March 2013.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize the contribution of
the employees of the members of our Group and any persons who have contributed to
the Group at the time of granting Options (the “Qualified Participants”) to the business
development of our Group by granting share options (“Options”) to them as incentive

and/or reward.

(i) the exercise price per share under each Option is HK$1.014;

(i) asat 31 December 2014, the total number of outstanding Shares involved in the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 68,715,000 Shares, representing approximately
[.71 % of the Shares in issue of the Company;

(i) the grantees are entitled to exercise in full or in part any vested Options from
six months after the listing date (31 October 2013, the “Listing Date”) to 3|
December 2018; and

(iv)  no further Options will be granted after the Listing Date.
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Particulars of the outstanding Options conditionally granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme are set out below:
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Number
of Options Number
Number Number exercised/  of outstanding
of Options of Options cancelled/ Options
heldasat  granted during lapsed during asat 3|
| January 2014 FY2014 FY2014  December 2014
Number of R2014% R2014 #2014 ma014%
Options granted D=RN= HEEE HBFE 12A318
Grantees Date of grant of Options Rit BEN Bl 76N RATHEM
ERA REBRERS BREHE BREZE  BRERE  BREXE BREHE
Directors/People who were
directors in FY2014
E5/048HBEFE
REZENA
Wong Choihing” 30 November 201 | 11,600,000 11,600,000 - 5,800,000 5,800,000
IE& 01111 A30H
Huang Dehong 30 November 201 | 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
Yy 0115114308
Yang Xianzu® 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 - 300,000 -
BER 013F3720H
Wang Lianzhou 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 - - 300,000
TEM 2013F34208
Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 - - 300,000
HEE 013%3820H
Other employees 30 November 201 | 56,630,000 56,630,000 - 5,805,000 50,825,000
HtER 0115114308
Other employees 16 October 2012 9,190,000 9,190,000 - 1,700,000 7,490,000
HitES 0126107 168
Total e 82,320,000 82,320,000 - 3,605,000 68,715,000
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Notes:

Mr. Wong Choihing, the former Chairman and executive Director of the Company, has
been removed from all his positions in the Company pursuant to the new management
arrangement as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 25 August 2014. In
accordance with the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Board has resolved in
the Board meeting held on 22 August 2014 that the Options granted to Mr. Wong Choihing
which were vested pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are still exercisable even
though his employment has been terminated, and the remaining Options granted which were
not vested pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been cancelled from 25
August 2014.

Mr. Yang Xianzu, the former independent non-executive Director of the Company, has
resigned all his positions in the Company with effect from 23 November 2014. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23 November 2014. In accordance
with the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the outstanding Options granted to Mr.
Yang pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been cancelled and will not be

exercisable from the effective date of his resignation.

In accordance with the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the outstanding Options
granted to certain employees pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been
cancelled due to their resignations from the Company, and these Options will not be

exercisable from the effective dates of their resignations.

The Options shall vest according to the following schedule:

For Options granted on 30 November 20/ |
R2011 11530 ARHBERE

Respective Vesting Date EREEY

31 December 2012 2012%12A31 H
31 December 2013 2013512 A31 B
31 December 2014 2014 12 A31 H
31 December 2015 2015% 12831 H
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For Options granted on 16 October 2012
R2012F 105 16 ARHBERE

Respective Vesting Date

31 December 2013
31 December 2014
31 December 2015
31 December 2016

For Options granted on 20 March 2013
R2013% 3 5 20 AR B IR

Respective Vesting Date

31 December 2014
31 December 2015
31 December 2016
31 December 2017

EEEAN

2013%F 128318
2014 124318
2015 128318
2016F 124318

ZEEAH

20145 12831 8
20159 12 A31 H
2016%F 128318
2017 12 A31 B

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 26 to the financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2014 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianli (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Dewen (chief executive officer)
Mr. Huang Dehong

Mr. Wong Choihing (former Chairman)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yuan Bing
Mr. Wang Wei

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Lihua

Mr. Wang Lianzhou

Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson

Mr. Yang Xianzu

appointed on 25 August 2014
appointed on 26 January 2015

removed on 25 August 2014

appointed on 23 January 2015

appointed on 23 November 2014

resigned on 23 November 2014
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In accordance with articles 16.2 and 16.3 of the Company's articles of association adopted
by a special resolution passed on 27 September 2013 (the “Articles of Association™)
and effective on Listing Date, any Director appointed by the Board or by an ordinary
resolution either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Jianli (Chairman and executive Director), Mr. Wang
Dewen (executive Director), Mr. Wang Wei (non-executive Director), and Mr. Zhao
Lihua (independent non-executive Director), appointed by the Board shall be eligible for

re-election at the AGM.

Mr. Huang Dehong and Mr. Yuan Bing will retire by rotation under the provision of article
16.18 of the Articles of Association at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

The Board has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the current
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Board considers all

independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wang Jianli, Mr. Wang Dewen and Mr. Huang Dehong, the executive Directors, have
entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of two, three and three years,
commencing from 25 August 2014, 26 January 2015 and 27 September 2013, respectively,
and all of the service contracts shall be terminated by either party thereto by giving not

less than 3 months’ prior notice.

Mr. Yuan Bing and Mr. Wang Wei, the non-executive Directors, have entered into letters
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years, commencing from 27
September 2013 and 23 January 2015, and both of the letters of appointment shall be
terminated by either party thereto by giving not less than 14 business days' prior written

notice.
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Mr. Wang Lianzhou, Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson and Mr. Zhao Lihua, the independent
non-executive Directors, have entered into letters of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years, commencing from 20 March 2013, 20 March 2013 and 23
November 2014, and all of the letters of appointment shall be terminated by either party

thereto by giving not less than 14 business days prior written notice.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors has or had a material beneficial interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any significant contract in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary of its holding

companies was a party during the FY2014.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) or its subsidiary has or had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether
for the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the FY2014.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management” on pages 80 to 95 of this annual report.
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ENFORCEMENT OF THE DEED OF NON- COMPETITION

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 27 September 2013 (“Non-Competition
Undertaking”) entered into by Mr. Wong Choihing, Mr. Wang Dewen, Mr. Wang Jianli,
Mr. Wang Quanguang, Mr. Wang Desheng, Mr. Wang Dekai, Mr. Huang Dehong and
Mr. Wong Sheungtak (the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders”), Most Trend Holdings
Limited (the “Most Trend"), Mr. Wong Kim and Eminent Ascend Limited (“Eminent
Ascend”) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of the Controlling
Shareholders has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to the Company that he/
it would not, and would procure that hefits associates (other than any members of the
Group) would not, during the Restricted Period (as defined below), directly or indirectly,
either on his/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or
acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee
or otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any activity or business which
is or may be in competition directly or indirectly with the business referred to in the the
Prospectus carried on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of our Group
from time to time (the “Restricted Business").The restricted period (“Restricted Period")
is the period during which (i) the Shares of the Company remain listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange; (i) the relevant Controlling Shareholder and his/its associate holds
an equity interest in the Company; and (iii) the relevant Controlling Shareholder and/or
his/its associates jointly or severally are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of not

less than 30% in aggregate of the voting power at general meetings of the Company.
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The Controlling Shareholders have further undertaken to procure that, during the
Restricted Period, any business investment or other commercial opportunity which
directly or indirectly competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted Business
(the “New Opportunities”) given, identified or offered to him/it and/or any of his/its
associates (other than any members of the Group) (the “Offeror”) is first referred to the
Company in the following manner: (a) each of our Controlling Shareholders is required
to, and shall procure his or its associates (other than members of our Group) to, refer,
or to procure the referral of, the New Opportunities to the Company, and shall give
written notice to the Company of any New Opportunities containing all information
reasonably necessary for the Company; and (b) the Offeror will be entitled to pursue
the New Opportunities only if (i) the Offeror has received a notice from the Company
declining the New Opportunities and confirming that such New Opportunities would
not constitute competition with core business of the Company, or (ii) the Offeror has
not received such notice from us within 10 business days from the Company's receipt
of the Offer Notice. Upon receipt of the Offer Notice, the Company shall seek opinions
and decisions from the independent non-executive Directors who do not have a material

interest in the matter.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders confirming
their compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking for disclosure in this annual
report during FY2014. The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed their

compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments, five highest paid individuals and senior
management of the Group for FY2014 are set out in notes 7, 8 and 32 to the financial
statements and the emolument policy of the Company is set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 61 to 79 of this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during FY2014,

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2014, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which were in competition or were likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

SHARE TRANSFER

Pursuant to a share transfer agreement dated 3 November 2014, Mr. Wong Kim, the
previous sole shareholder of Eminent Ascend, transferred his entire equity interest in
Eminent Ascend to Mr. Wong Sheungtak. Upon completion of the share transfer, Eminent
Ascend was wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Sheungtak, and Mr. Wong Kim no longer holds

any interests in Eminent Ascend or in our Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 3| December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
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REXARGREBRGNHE R

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
total issued

share capital®

Corporate EARRE
Name of Directors ~ Class of Shares interest  Personal interest Share Options Family interest Total BTARK
EBps RAEH NAER PN RRE FERR CEI: R A
Wong Choihing® Ordinary shares/Share option 2,070,000,000" — 5,800,0000 — 2,075,800,000 51.70%
IBAe Rk B
Wang fianli® Ordinary shares 2,070,000,000 — — — 2,070,000,000 5156%
TRM® LEK
Wang Dewen® Ordinary shares 2,070,000,000" - - - 2,070,000,000 51.56%
X LRk
Huang Dehong® Ordinary shares/Share option 2,070,000,000" — 4,000,000 — 2,074,000,000 51.66%
BRRO RN/ ERE
Wang Lianzhou Share option — — 3000000 — 300,000 001%
S5 BiiE
Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson ~ Share option - - 300,000 - 300,000 001%
HER BIE
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Notes:

These shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is
wholly-owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert
declaration executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, among other things, confirmed that since | January 2010,
they have been operating our Group collectively and would through discussions reach
consensus among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on an unanimous
basis. As such, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders are deemed to be interested in the

2,070,000,000 Shares of our Company through Most Trend.

Mr. Wong Choihing is an Ultimate Controlling Shareholder, the former Chairman and
executive Director, and has been removed from his positions since 25 August 2014. Mr.
Wang Jianli has been appointed to take up all the positions in the Company vacated by
Mr. Wong Choihing pursuant to the new management arrangement as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 August 2014. Mr. Wang Dewen has been
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company since 13 May 2014, and as an
executive Director since 26 January 2015, Mr. Huang Dehong is an Ultimate Controlling

Shareholder and an executive Director.

This represents the Options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed "“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” on pages 42 to 46 of this annual report.

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,014,844,000 Shares issued as at
31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, to the knowledge of the Board, none

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions

in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be: (i)

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors and chief

executive were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) recorded

in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FTERFER

As at 31 December 2014, according to the register of members kept by the Company EA20|4¢ RA3IE BREAREERESR
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained after BEPIEBKRETNE uBHﬁ&Eﬁ%%Fﬁ il
reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity (other than the Directors EJZ QR EELSIBERIEMEE CBRESK

or chief executives of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares, ARAIHEZTHAEIN *ETE«E %&E@ff‘?ﬁ
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within FIEXVERSE 2 K37 ER R SR M AR A 7] R Bt

the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and RBERN AR REEEEE(EERESFK
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly — EREKFIEXVE) B - HBRORES - &
and indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital ERESHEERAEMENRA(MEE—DIER

carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company: TEARTRRAEG LRENERN)EE %K
A EREMALIAT
LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES RONER
Approximate

percentage of

the Company’s

total issued
Name Nature of interest Number of Shares share capital)
a8 EEME ROBE BEEQEE
Corporate Interest Share Option BITHRAN
DRER BRE BREDLO
Most Trend Beneficial owner 2,070,000,000 — 51.56%
ER EaBAA
Mr. Wang Quanguang Interest in controlled corporation 2,070,000,000? — 51.56%
RSy REH LB RS
Mr. Wang Desheng Interest in controlled corporation/
Share Option 2,070,000,000® 4,000,000 51.66%
FEREE RiEnlEE gL BRE
Mr. Wang Dekai Interest in controlled corporation/
Share Option 2,070,000,000® 4,000,000 51.66%
AL RiEtlEE gL BRE
Mr. Wong Sheungtak Interest in controlled corporation/
Share Option 2,370,000,0000 4,000,000 59.13%
FeREL Rt EE gL BRE
Top Amuse Ho\dings Limited Beneficial owner 600,000,000 — 14.95%
B ERAER ERBEBA
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Approximate

percentage of

the Company’s

total issued
Name Nature of interest Number of Shares share capital)
£ BEME BRHEE BEEQEE
Corporate Interest Share Option BITHRAN
NEER BRE BREDLO
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000© — 14.95%
REHEEER
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000¢ - 14.95%
R EE S
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 — 14.95%
RN ZE RS
Hony Capital Management Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 — 14.95%
REHEEES
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 - 14.95%
R EE RS
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000® — 14.95%
HeRELE RN ZE RS
Eminent Ascend Beneficial owner 300,000,000 — 747%
BR BEaEBA
Notes: Pt

(1) The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,014,844,000 Shares issued as at 0

31 December 2014.

(2)  These Shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is
wholly-owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert
declaration executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, among other things, confirmed that since | January
2010, they have been operating the Group collectively and would through discussions reach
consensus among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on an unanimous

basis. As such, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders together control 51.56% interest in the

issued share capital of the Company through Most Trend.
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Top Amuse Holdings Limited (“Top Amuse”) is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund 2008,
L.P, hence Hony Capital Fund 2008, LP. is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares
held by Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is controlled by Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P, hence Hony
Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P. is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares held by Top

Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P. is controlled by Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, hence
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares held
by Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Management Limited,
hence Hony Capital Management Limited is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares
held by Top Amuse.

Hony Managing Partners Limited hold 80% of the shares of Hony Capital Management
Limited, hence Hony Managing Partners Limited is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000
Shares held by Top Amuse.

Hony Managing Partners Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhao John Huan, hence Mr. Zhao
John Huan is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares held by Top Amuse.

Mr. Wong Kim, the previous sole shareholder of Eminent Ascend, has transferred all of his
shares of Eminent Ascend to Mr. Wong Sheungtak on 3 November 2014, therefore, Eminent
Ascend is now wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Sheungtak. Hence, Mr. Wong Sheungtak is
deemed to be interested in 300,000,000 Shares held by Eminent Ascend.

This represents the Options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed "Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” on pages 42 to 46 of this annual report.
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2008, GP, L.P.# 1R A7 14 £575 #7600,000,000
MR A s o

Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P.FiHony
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Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2014, to the knowledge of the Directors, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Securities” and “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in this report and in note 26 to the
financial statements, at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company
(including their spouses or children under |8 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of

acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Board confirmed that none of the related party transactions set out in note 32 to
the financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. During FY2014, the
Group had not entered into any connected transactions or continuing connected

transactions which are required to be disclosed in this report pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company has repurchased a total of 15,106,000 Shares listed on
the Stock Exchange with an aggregate amount of HK$40,443,550 from May 2014 to
June 2014. As at the date of this annual report, all the above repurchased Shares were
cancelled. For details of the repurchase, including directors' reasons for and monthly
breakdown of such repurchase, please refer to the section headed "Purchase, sale or
redemption of the Company's listed securities” in the interim report of the Company
dated 25 August 2014 and published on 28 August 2014.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
under which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014

are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

ISSUE OF 7.00% CONVERTIBLE NOTES DUE 2020

On 23 January 2015, to leverage the investor's expertise in commercial and logistics
property investment and to further enhance the Company's growth in the specialized
trade center and logistics projects, the Company issued 7.00% convertible notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$120,000,000 (the “Notes"), which are due in 2020. The
Notes are exchangeable into Shares, and are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed
by certain subsidiaries of the Company. The proceeds from the issuance will be used for
investing in existing and new projects including expansion of the Group's logistics business

and/or other general corporate finance purposes.

As at the date of this annual report, the total outstanding principal amount of the Notes is
US$120,000,000.

Under the terms and conditions of the Notes, the payment of the Proposed Final
Dividend by the Company (if approved by the Shareholders at the AGM to be held
on 15 May 2015), will cause an adjustment to the conversion price of the Notes (the
“Conversion Price”). The Conversion Price will be adjusted by the multiplying the
Conversion Price in force immediately before the effective date for payment of the

Proposed Final Dividend (the “Effective Date") by the following fraction:

(A-B)/A

where A is the current market price of one Share on the Effective Date and B is the
portion of the relevant fair market value of the aggregate dividend attributable to one
Share, with such portion being determined by dividing the relevant fair market value of
the aggregate Proposed Final Dividend by the number of Shares entitled to receive the
Proposed Final Dividend.

Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 9 January 2015 and 26 January 2015

for details on the Notes.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the annual report, the Board is of the opinion that the Company had
complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") contained in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules during the Year. Principal corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance

Report on pages 61 to 79 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report,
the Company has maintained the public float of the issued shares of the Company as

required under the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@)  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 12 May 2015 to 15
May 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to determine the identity of members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM, all completed share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited (“Computershare”) at Shops
| 712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 pm. on || May 2015.
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(b)  For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 22 May 2015 to
26 May 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be effected. In order to qualify for the Proposed Final Dividend, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with Computershare at Shops 712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
21 May 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
years is set out on pages 38 to 39 of the annual report. This summary does not form part

of the audited consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During FY2014, no contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed.
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NON-ADJUSTMENT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The non-adjustment event after the end of the reporting period is set out in note 33 to

the financial statements.

AUDITORS

KPMG has acted as auditors of the Company for FY2014. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company for FY2014 have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG will retire at the forthcoming AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
WANG JIANLI

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the annual report of

the Company for FY2014.

The Company recognizes the value and importance of achieving high standard of
corporate governance to enhance the corporate performance accountability and is
committed to doing so. The Board is also committed to the principles of the CG Code.
Save and except for the deviation disclosed in this annual report, the Directors are of
the opinion that the Company had complied with the provisions set out in the CG Code
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practice to ensure compliance with the CG

Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including three executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 80 to 95 of this annual report. The overall
management and supervision of the Company's operation and the function of formulating

overall business strategies were vested in the Board.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board has met the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise and the requirement that the independent non-

executive Director represent at least one-third of the board .

The Company has received annual confirmation from each independent non-executive
Director pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with

the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the

nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) .

The CG Code requires Directors to disclose to the Company, the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments as
well as their identity and the time involved. The Directors have agreed to disclose their

commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

ROLE AND FUNCTION AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and conduct of
the business of the Company. It delegates day to day management of the Company to the
executive Directors and the senior management of the Company, within the control and
the authority framework set by the Board. The delegated functions and responsibilities are

periodically reviewed by the Board.

The Board reserves its decision for all major matters of the Company, including: approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to access

and to consult with the Company's senior management independently.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e 3%/Z B[R 12l AR A 7

MAES(BRALNTES) REZER?
TEZMEENEHER  MAREXRREI
NEREREMGEN T ERTESSHORE -
BUFRTEFRBLAARAIERZES
([BERERE]) ARAFMHEZES((FMZE
E DEARERAZES((REEEE N

5‘5%
\D]]D

CRERTARTCESTAALRAREERD
BRFSMEMECRUSBAEEEREBE
RESE - URAFREYRER - ESREE

ErRE RS AR R AR

_lm

o

EZTERURBEREE

ESEARARAN—RENEEREELRD
AEB - ERRHTEERSREEEHES
EMREMNEERBEERNEEARRAER
2EEH  EFONTCHERERBRERAR

EZRAARAMAEAREENRE B
% WEREFERARRSZE  EBRBLE
%%& RREEHE - EXX5(FH
RFRNEERORS)  MEER R

ESNEMBAMBREESEH - EENET
REBRERISKBURERER  ERMAAR
AIEE  REBEEAARARREREET
BLhH



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees are set out in this

annual report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and its shareholders at

all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors in

respect of legal actions against them.

Relationship between Directors

Save that Mr. Wang Jianli (the Chairman and executive Director) is the uncle of both Mr.
Huang Dehong (executive Director) and Mr. Wang Dewen (the chief executive officer
of the Company and executive Director), there are no financial, business, family or other

matenial relationships among members of the Board.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The changes of the information of the Directors and senior management since the date
of the 2013 annual report of the Company are set out on pages 46 to 47 of the 2014
interim report of the Company dated 25 August 2014 (the “2014 Interim Report”). For

details of the changes during the above period, please refer to the 2014 Interim Report.
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TREBRSE

The changes of the information of the Directors and senior management since the date of BADNR014FFBHRERBEERFHRTIE
the 2014 interim report of the Company and up to the date of this annual report are set REY - RIELTARBIE 1351B(1) BRETREN
out below pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules : EERRNEREREEHHEIIMT

Name of Directors and

senior management

EEREREEEHE

Changes
25

Mr. Wang Dewen
FExXEE

Mr. Wang Wei
EEksE

Mr. Zhao Lihua

BYELE

Mr. Yang Xianzu

HEREE

Mr. Wang Dekai
FERLE

Mr. Jia Xinjiang
EfTELE

Mr. Chan Sze Hon
RESEE

Mr. Wu Bo
REEE

Appointed as an executive Director with effect from 26 January 2015.
BZERMITES BISFI A2 ARER -

Appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 23 January 2015.

EZAAFRTES  B20I5F | A3HBEM -

Appointed as an independent non-executive Director, chairman of the Nomination Committee, and member of
the Audit Committee with effect from 23 November 2014.
BZERBUNNTES REZEQIFNERZEGNE  B04F 1 ABERENR

Resigned as an independent non-executive Director, chairman of the Nomination Committee, and member of
the Audit Committee with effect from 23 November 2014.
REEVFNITES RAZEQIFREGZEEXE  B0145F 11 B AEEN -

Appointed as chief operating officer with effect from | August 2014.
BZERERZER  B14F8A I BELR -

Appointed as vice president of Finance with effect from 24 September 2014.
BZERUBRIEE - 8201459 A4 BRER -

Appointed as chief financial officer with effect from 3 September 2014.
BZEREREUBE  B014F9A3HEER -

Resigned as chief financial officer with effect from 3 September 2014.
BEIERMEE  B2014F9A3ERER -

Other than those disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed BT FiEE SEEMENSTERE TR
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(I) of the Listing Rules. BIZ 1351B() A THE -
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and information to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of the Company's operations and businesses as well
as his responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. According to the
records of the Company, all Directors attend training sessions on duties and obligations
of directors of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including connected transactions
and corporate governance, which was conducted by the Company's legal advisers as to
Hong Kong laws. The Company also provided periodic legal updates and developments
on the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, news updates from the Stock
Exchange and Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong and other relevant legal
and regulatory requirements to all of the Directors, as well as regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct of the Company
for Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
Year. Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of unpublished inside information
in relation to the Company or its Shares are prohibited from dealing in Shares of the

Company during the black-out period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed below, the Board is of opinion that the Company had complied with the

code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the Year.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.| of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and performed by different individuals. The Company
has appointed Mr. Wang Dewen as chief executive officer of the Company since 13 May
2014. Following the aforementioned change, the roles of the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company are separated in accordance with code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.2.7

The Chairman did not hold any formal meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors due to the tight schedule of the Chairman, the
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Directors. Instead, the
Chairman communicated with the independent non-executive Directors and non-
executive Directors on a one-to-one or group basis to understand their concerns and to

discuss pertinent issues.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company and may be terminated in accordance with the respective terms of the
service contracts or letters of appointment. For detalils, please refer to the section headed

“Directors’ Service Contract” on pages 46 to 47 in this annual report.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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In accordance with articles 16.2 and 16.3 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board or by an ordinary resolution either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board, shall hold office only until the following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr.
Wang Jianli (Chairman and executive Director), Mr. Wang Dewen (executive Director),
Mr. Wang Wei (non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhao Lihua (independent non-executive

Director) shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

Mr. Huang Dehong and Mr. Yuan Bing will retire by rotation under the provision of article
16.18 of the Articles of Association at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition and recommending to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the

Chairman and chief executive officer.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision A.l.l of the CG
Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for

a regular meeting pursuant to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with agenda and relevant information related to the agenda
in advance before the meeting. They have access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) at all time and, upon

reasonable request, seek independent professional advice at the Company's expense.
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Minutes of the meetings are kept by the Company Secretary with copies circulated to
all Directors for information and records. Minutes of the board meetings and committee
meetings record sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the
committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held. The

minutes of the board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

During the Year, |7 Board meetings were held and the attendance of the Directors at the

board meetings was as follows:

SRCHMDANERT  BIAKH2RES
B6 UMt2EREE EFERZEEER
MERCHIRIBNETERZBEMER
FRNFHBLTEKNAE - BRESNER
R - REFERZECERNERLBER
AREZRTEHR —BAERRANERESR
BN ESECEMNERCRAHESEM -

RAFR BT I75EFE8E LEES
SEENEFHNT :

Number of
Directors attendance
s HERE
Executive Directors PBITES
Mr. Wong Choihing (former Chairman and executive Director) () THREEE(FIFERATEE) 10/17
Mr. Wang Jianli (current Chairman and executive Director) @ TRANEE(HEERHTEE) 6/17
Mr. Wang Dewen (chief executive officer) © TN (TTHAER)D /17
Mr. Huang Dehong BERLE [7/17
Non-executive Director kHTES
Mr. Yuan Bing RELAE 8/17
Mr. Wang Weit FREE® 017
Independent non-executive Director BUFHTES
Mr. Yang Xianzu (former independent non-executive Director) ©) BEREE(FIBELHHTEE) 6/17
Mr. Zhao Lihua® HUELEO 017
Mr. Wang Lianzhou TEMNLE 6/17
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson WEERTE 6/17
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Note:

(1) Mr. Wong Choihing has been removed from his positions in the Company since 25 August
2014.

(2)  Mr. Wang Jianli has been appointed as Chairman and executive Director of the Company
with effect from 25 August 2014.

(3)  Mr. Wang Dewen has been appoined as an executive Director of the Company with effect
from 26 Janauary 2015.

(4)  Mr. Wang Wei has been appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 23 January 2015.

(5)  Mr. Yang Xianzu has resigned from his role as an independent non-executive Director of the

Company with effect from 23 November 2014,

(6)  Mr. Zhao Lihua has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the

Company with effect from 23 November 2014.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, to handle particular
responsibilities of the Board and the Company's affairs. All board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference which have been
uploaded to the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the Company, and are

provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 27 September 2013 in compliance
with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to
the Audit Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to review the financial information of the Company, to oversee the financial reporting
process and internal control system of our Group, to oversee the audit process, to make
recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor

and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by our Board.
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The Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors and one
non-executive Director. The current three members are Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and the independent non-executive Directors;
Mr. Zhao Lihua, the independent non-executive Director; and Mr. Yuan Bing, the non-
executive Director. During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held to, among
other matters, (1) review and recommend the annual results to the Board for approval; (2)
review the Group's financial controls, internal controls and risk management systems; (3)
review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices; (4) review and consider

the whistleblowing policy and system; (5) review the external auditor’s independence and

ENREEERMABUIENRT %%&—%#%ﬂ
TESEK - RAE=EZKEAR : MBEREE
ENZESIRRBEUHNTES HUEL
B BUFNTES RREXE EHT
EZ -RAFER BIT2REREZEGE
- NEREE))ERFEEE %Z%
EGHE  QBERARENMBEE  AHE
IRERERSE  Q)BERARENMBRE
AHERER : ) ERRERBRBE R

objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; and (6) review the terms of reference of B () BRINEZSMR LB RS Mz HIE
Audit Committee. The attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings was RAEBEN: RO BGRERZEGNBESR
as follows: cERHFEERZEGERNERNT
Number of
Directors attendance
= R
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (chairman of the Audit Committee) NEBEE(FLERERLE) 212
Mr. Yuan Bing RERE 212
Mr. Yang Xianzu (former independent non-executive Director) BEREE(FIBVHNTESE) 212
Mr. Zhao Lihua" HYEREO 012

Note:

(1) Mr. Zhao Lihua has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect

from 23 November 2014.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27 September 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities
delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management and to review and approve

the compensation payable to the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director. The current three members are Mr. Wang Lianzhou, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the independent non-executive Director;
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson, the independent non-executive Director; and Mr. Wang

Jianli, the executive Director. During the Year, five Remuneration Committee meetings

were held to, among other matters, (1) determine the policy for the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management; (2) assess performance of Directors; (3) review
and approve the terms of Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment; and
(4) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors, non-executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and
senior management. The attendance of the Directors at the Remuneration Committee

meetings was as follows:
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WEEe HEABESOEREZSRREM
ZESMBELRBKER FHZEENEE
BEANESRAREERENTHBRRER
EHHEBER URERRBAERNEZRS
REBABHORH -

FHMRECEMBBUFNTES R —RIT

E=EN - RE-RKER: TEMELE &
MEEETRRBIFNTES HMEERL

B BUERTES: RIEMEE 81T
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Number of
Directors attendance
= HERE
Mr. Wang Lianzhou (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) TENEEFHEE L) 5/5
Mr. Wong Choihing (former Chairman and executive Director) () TEREEE(FIFERHTEE) 2/5
Mr. Wang Jianli (current Chairman and executive Director)® TRANEE(RELERBTEE) 1/5
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson HERLE 5/5
Note: i
() Mr. Wong Choihing has been removed from his positions in the Company since 25 August () THEEER014F8ABBRERR IR

2014.

(2)  Mr. Wang Jianli has been appointed as Chairman and executive Director with effect from 25
August 2014.
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The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with their individual performance. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Directors includes mainly the
Director’s fee which is a matter for the Board to decide by reference to the duties and
responsibilities of the non-executive Directors. Remuneration of the independent non-
executive Directors includes the Director's fee which is determined by the Board based
on the duties and responsibilities of independent non-executive Directors and their

participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The emoluments of each Director for FY2014 are set out in note 7 to the financial

statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 September 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Nomination Committee by the
Board. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors. In the nomination procedures, the Nomination
Committee makes reference to criteria including reputation of candidates for integrity,

accomplishment and experience, professional and educational background.
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The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The current three members are Mr. Zhao Lihua, the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and an independent non-executive Director; Mr. Wang
Lianzhou, an independent non-executive Director; and Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive
Director. During the Year, three Nomination Committee meetings were held to, among
other matters, (1) review the structure, size and composition of the Board and to
consider and approve the diversity policy of the Board; (2) assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; (3) review, consider and approve the nomination
policy; and (4) make recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors.

The attendance of the Directors at the Nomination Committee meetings was as follows:
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Number of
Directors attendance
s H R
Mr. Yang Xianzu (chairman of the Nomination Committee) CERAE(EEZEELE) 3/3
Mr. Wong Choihing (former Chairman and executive Director) () THREEE(FIFERATEE) 13
Mr. Huang Dehong BEREE 13
Mr. Wang Jianli (current Chairman and executive Director) @ TR (HELERATEE) 13
Mr. Wang Lianzhou FEMEE 313
Mr. Zhao Lihua® BELEO 03
Note: R

(1) Mr. Wong Choihing has been removed from his positions in the Company since 25 August
2014.

(2)  Mr. Wang Jianli has been appointed as Chairman and executive Director with effect from 25
August 2014

(3)  Mr. Zhao Lihua has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 23 November 2014.
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STRATEGIC REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Company established a strategic review committee (the “Strategic Review
Committee”) in September 2013, as an additional corporate governance measure to
evaluate any potential investment opportunities in Harbin presented to our Group. The
Committee consists of one non-executive Director and three Independent non-executive
Directors. The current four members are Mr. Yuan Bing, a non-executive Director,
Mr. Wang Lianzhou, Mr. Zhao Lihua and Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson, all of whom are

independent non-executive Directors.

The Strategic Review Committee is aware of the restrictions under the non-competition
undertaking (“"Harbin NCU") entered into by Mr. Wong Choihing and Mr. Wang Dewen
in favour of Harbin China South City Company Limited in 2012. The duties of the
Strategic Review Committee include reviewing and assessing any investment opportunities
in Harbin that are presented to the Company, at least once every six months, and
identifying the steps to be taken in respect of such opportunities. Neither Mr. Wong
Choihing nor Mr. Wang Dewen will participate in any review, assessment or decisions

made by the Strategic Review Committee.

The Strategic Review Committee met on 24 March 2014 and 22 August 2014, and
concluded that there were no potential investment opportunities in Harbin for the Group.
All members attended the meetings, with the exception of Mr. Zhao Lihua, who was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 23 November
2014.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 24 March 2014 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), talents, skills,
knowledge, length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision of all
Board appointments should be based on meritocracy and the likely contributions that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Normination Committee has reviewed

such board diversity policy in the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties including:

@

to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors;

to develop, review and monitor the implementation of the shareholders’
communication policy to ensure its effectiveness, and make recommendation to the
Board where appropriate to enhance shareholders' relationship with the Company;

and

to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
CG Code and Corporate Governance Report).

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements for

FY2014 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and

of the Group's results and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities

to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are

necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company's

consolidated financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company

provides all members of the Board with updates on Company's performance, positions

and prospects.
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The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going

concemn.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report on pages 96 to 97 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. A defined management structure with specified limits of authority and
responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publications and the compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular financial and
operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant management.
The works carried out by the internal audit department ensure the intemnal controls are
in place and function properly as intended. The results of the internal audit and reviews
are reported to the executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company. The
Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system and are

satisfied with the adequacy of the system of internal control of the Group for the Year.

For the annual review on the internal controls, the Audit Committee considered the
internal control report was satisfied as to effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system. There were no matters of material concemns relating to financial, operational or
compliance controls. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the system of the intemal

control of the Group during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group's independent auditors is KPMG. For FY2014, the remuneration paid and
payable by the Group to the independent auditors in respect of audit and non-audit

services provided by them were as follows:
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RMB'000
ARETFTT
Audit and review services!" B R ERRBO 2,900
Advisory services B AR 230
3,130
Note: Bt
0 Including fees for statutory audit of annual financial statements and review of interim financial (1 DEFEUERENETET BN RSB
report. BENEHRES -
COMPANY SECRETARY DNEANE

Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda, the senior manager of Hongkong Managers and Secretaries
Limited, an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the Company
Secretary. The primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Wang Jianli, the

Chairman and executive Director, and Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda, the Company Secretary.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Since the Listing Date, the Company has appointed Guotai Junan Capital Limited as the
compliance adviser of the Company to provide guidance and opinion to us in respect of
the compliance with the Listing Rules and other regulations and practice governing listed

issuers in Hong Kong.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIP

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders and other
investment community is essential. During the Year, the executive Directors, chief financial
officer and head of investor relations of the Group held briefings, press conferences
and analysts meetings of annual results, attended investor forums and participated in
roadshows and conducted meetings with the institutional investors and financial analysts in
China, Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast of the Group's business

and development in a timely basis. Investors can also communicate with the Company

through email at in@hydoo.com.cn.

The Shareholders’ meeting provides a useful forum for the Shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Directors and the chief financial officer of the Group will attend
the Shareholders’ meetings to answer the questions raised by the Shareholders. Published
documents together with the latest corporate information and news are available on the

Company's website at www.hydoo.com.cn.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting

Besides the request of the Board, the extraordinary general meeting shall also be

convened through the following measures:

(@)  on the written requisition of any two or more Shareholders who hold not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the

objects of the meeting and signed by such Shareholders;

(b)  on the written requisition of any one Shareholder which is a recognized clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) who holds not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting

and signed by the Shareholder.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e 3%/Z B[R 12l AR A 7

HRRWBBRREERE

ARERR BRERHEMKREBEBELAN
BRDZEHEZ - B EMAME  REEHT
X HRUBERREEBRTIEESRT
BHe FEEERBREROMEE -

FRELERERARBREEZERRL AT
B BEREMNEFKETHBEIN - BRFE
AEREENSHEBLER - REENAUR
BEE (irghydoo.com.cn) B2 B4 o

REgHREHABRGNRE  HRREESS
BERRER EERAXEERUBE KL
FERERGBRERRELMER - BEEMHX
HERZFRAERRIE  THBERARE
U www.hydoo.com.cn

BRRER
BRRREHAE

FREFSERIN
FRIRE :

TA@EB T o A BRRR

@) EUEAMEIALERNEREREH ?T
BEAORT oz —MERMAARA
%ﬁ@tﬁﬁm$’ﬂ§@h$mk$
MEEBEXMBR BREREAER L$

RERBEANEELEME R (HAD
KE%E%IK%?EDE%%?@'%
RIAAENTEFHEEE  Th%F
REEE

b) EUAER—BIERRUAEERMLRNER
EREBRBBETOR+D 2 —WE#ER
REAFRRAEG LRANARDAIES
BANBR(GERBA)NEEERM
B BRERBRERAAREEN
ITEEEMB I (WARATEREZE
EWER) ISR ERIAAEH
TEFETE  ThZBRREE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general meeting according
to the applicable laws and the Articles of Association. If a Shareholder, who is entitled
to attend and vote at the relevant general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not
being the nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she should
give to the Company Secretary notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his or her willingness to be
so elected, commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
relevant general meeting and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such

general meeting.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on

the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to the Board
could send their enquiries to the headquarters of the Company in Shenzhen at 30/F Block
A, East Pacific International Center, 7888 Shennan Boulevard, Futian District, Shenzhen

PRC or the email address at: ir@hydoo.com.cn.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During FY2014, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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EERGREEERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Jianli (E#£%), aged 55, is our executive Director. He was appointed as

Chairman and executive Director of our Group on 25 August 2014 and primarily
responsible for formulating the overall development and strategic plans of our Group.
Mr. Wang has over 19 years' experience in the development and operation of large
scale trade centers. As disclosed in the Company's prospectus dated 18 October 2013
(the “Prospectus”), since 1995, Mr. Wong Choihing, together with his siblings and their
families (the “Wang Family Group”), has engaged in the development and operation of
trade center projects. As one of the key family members, Mr. Wang Jianli was directly
involved in the development and operation of a number of trade center projects. Except
for the foregoing, Mr. Wang did not have any management role within the Group prior
to the appointment of the positions. Mr. Wang has been a member of the | Ith Jiangxi
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (Bl A REUA
BEEZIAEET—EZEE) (the “Jangkd CCPPCC”) and a member of the | Ith
Jiangxi Federation of Industry & Commerce (L& F T —ELEEMAEE) (‘iangxi
FIC") since January 2013, an executive member of the 3rd Ji'an Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (FEIARBUAHEERELME—JEE
B&) (“J'an CCPPCC") since September 201 | and the chairman of the Federation of
Industry & Commerce of Jian City (F %™ LI5S &) since April 2008. Mr. Wang
was also as a member of each of the 9th and the [0th Jiangxi CCPPCC and a member
of each of the 9th and the 10th Jiangxi FIC from December 2002 to January 2013, and a
member of the 2nd Ji'an CCPPCC from December 2006 to September 201 1. Mr. Wang
has received numerous awards, including the outstanding member of the Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Ji'an City for the year 2013 (2013
FEHLMERFTIHZE) in December 2013; an honorary citizen of Jian City (F &
MEEMR) in March 2005; and the outstanding contributor to the building of socialism
with Chinese characteristics in Jiangxi Province (T AR BATEEFEH TR EEE
/& BEE) in December 2004, Mr. Wang is the uncle of Mr. Wang Dewen, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of our Company, and Mr. Huang Dehong, an

executive Director, and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Dewen (FE30), aged 36, is our executive Director. He was appointed as
the executive Director on 26 January 2015, and was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company on |3 May 2014. Mr. Wang Dewen is primarily responsible for
overall business operations and management of our Group. Mr. Wang Dewen has over
six years of experience in the development and operation of large scale trade centers.
From October 2009 to December 2012, Mr. Wang Dewen served as the president of
China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FAZZE RS AE R A7), a subsidiary of China
South City Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1668). In this role, he was primarily responsible for project management and
operation. From January 2008 to October 2009, he served as the chairman and general
manager of Jingdezhen Howard Commercial and Trade Center Development Company
Limited (RIEEREE 5 EHFHEAMRA ) and was primarily responsible for project
management and operation. He also served as the general manager of Shenzhen Howard
Investment Co,, Ltd. (RIITIRIEREBRAR]) from July 2006 to October 2009 and
was primarily responsible for the company's management and operation. Prior to that, he
served as the project manager of the investment banking department of China Great Wall
Securities Company Limited (R ARE A A]) from August 2004 to May 2005
and the analyst of research department of Guosen Securities Co., Ltd. (B HFR DB
B2 A]) from September 2003 and August 2004. Mr. Wang Dewen is the nephew of Mr.
Wang Jianli, an executive Director and Chairman, and a cousin of Mr. Huang Dehong, an

executive Director and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

Mr. Huang Dehong (F/£7%), aged 36, is our executive Director. He was appointed
as the executive Director in March 2013 and is primarily responsible for the day to day
management of the business of our Group. Mr. Huang has eight years of experience in the
trade center development and operations industry. He has been the director of Ningxiang
Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company Limited since July 2009, the
general manager of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company
Limited since December 2010 and the director and general manager of Wuzhou Hydoo
Commercial and Trade Center Development Company Limited since April 2012. He
was also the deputy general manager of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center
Development Company Limited from July 2009 to December 2010. From January 2006
to June 2009, he served as the executive deputy general manager of Shuozhou Howard
Commercial and Trade Center Development Company Limited (Ji/N B8 5 E15H
B /AR, and was responsible for assisting the general manager with the company's
operations and management. Mr. Huang graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with a
diploma in law in June 1998. Mr. Huang is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive
Director and Chairman, and a cousin of Mr. Wang Dewen, an executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuan Bing (3 %), aged 46, is our non-executive Director. He was appointed as non-
executive Director in July 2011 and is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice
and guidance on the business and operations of our Group. Mr. Yuan has more than 13
years of experience in the investment banking industry and has extensive knowledge in
corporate financing, listings and mergers and acquisitions transactions. Mr. Yuan joined
Hony Capital in April 2009 and has served as managing director of the investment
department of its Hong Kong office since January 2010. Currently, he is also a director
of Top Amuse and a non-executive and non-independent director and member of
audit and compensation committees of Biosensors International Group, Ltd, a company
listed on Singapore Stock Exchange. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Yuan served as
managing director of the direct investment department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
from October 2006 to 2009. Before that, Mr. Yuan served as managing director of the
PRC enterprises corporate financing department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from
April 2004 to June 2006. Mr. Yuan also served as the vice president of Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited from September 2001 to March 2004. Mr. Yuan received a
bachelor of arts degree in English from Nanjing University in July 1990. He also obtained
a master's degree in international relations in June 1993 and a juris doctorate’s degree in

June 1998 from Yale University.
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EERGREEERBE

Mr. Wang Wei (E ), aged 46, was appointed as the non-executive Director on 23
January 2015. Mr. Wang Wei has over 20 years of experience in international capital
markets. Since early 2013, Mr. Wang Wei has been the managing director and general
manager of Ping An Real Estate Fund Management (FZ T BIERIEREEEAR
~a]). From late 2009 to early 2013, Mr. Wang Wei was the managing director and
China country head of Forum Partners Investment Management, a US-based real estate
private equity fund specialized in entity level structured investment. From 2008 to 2009,
Mr. Wang Wei was the vice president and chief financial officer of Sunshine 100 China, a
commercial and residential real estate developer in China listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2608). From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Wang Wei was the managing
director and co-head of China Fixed Income with UBS Group. He was also a member of
the group’s China management committee. From 1994 to 2005, Mr. Wang Wei spent 10
years in the fixed income and equity capital market divisions at JP Morgan in New York,
Singapore and Hong Kong. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Wang Wei worked in the debt capital
market and derivatives team with the treasury department of the Bank of China, Head
Office. In September 2014, Mr. Wang Wei was appointed as a non-executive director of
Wuzhou International Holdings Limited, a developer and operator of trade and logistics

centres in China listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1369).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JRRNp

Mr. Zhao Lihua (#3Z2E), aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 November 2014. Mr. Zhao is currently a professor and a tutor of
doctorate candidates of Hunan University (#1F8K2). He graduated from Hunan
University in 1965 with a bachelor's degree majoring in physics. He was a visiting scholar
of the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States from August 1979 to August
1981. He was a visiting professor of the University of Hanover in Germany in 1989 and
the vice president of Hunan University from March 1992 to March 2000. He served as the
chairman of the board of Hebei Huda Technology & Education Development Co., Ltd. (78]
AR B BERMDBRAR]) from March 2000 to October 2002 and the chief
supervisor of Sinosafe General Insurance Co. Ltd. (GEL B E R AR A E]) from
July 2003 to June 201 1. Mr. Zhao has been an independent non-executive director of
China Glass Holdings Limited (% B3 B2 A% B R A B]) since June 201 |, whose shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3300),
and an independent non-executive director of China National Building Material Company
Limited (H BIZEM AR 7 BBR 2 F)) since October 2014, whose shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3323). He was formerly an
independent non-executive director of China Fiberglass Co., Ltd. (P BIFAAR (A BR A
&]) from July 2003 to April 201 I, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600176).
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Mr. Wang Lianzhou (Fi&il), aged 75, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in September 2013. Currently, he serves as an independent director
of BeijingTongrentang Co. Ltd (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange), Huabao
Trust Co. Ltd. (EB{EEAMREME AR, Great Wall Fund Management Co. Ltd,
Heaven-Sent Capital Management Group Co. Ltd. (W AREZEEEREE), and the
director of the editorial committee of Securities Investment Fund Yearbook. He also acted
as an independent director of China Asset Management Co,, Ltd and the independent
supervisor of Baoying Fund Management Co. Ltd, and the president of the Trust and
Fund Institution of the People's University of China. He previously worked at finance
and economy committee of National People's Congress (“NPC Finance and Economy
Committee”) and was responsible for coordinating the work between the NPC Finance
and Economy Committee and the relevant departments of the PRC central government
and to launch the legislation on economic matters. He successively served as the vice
chief and the chief of the finance group of the NPC Finance and Economy Committee
office, the deputy director of the office and economic law office, bureau-level inspector of
research institute. He also served as the group leader in drafting the Securities Law, Trust
Law, and Investment Fund Law of China, consistently dedicating to the construction of

legal system for capital market.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (#1%54%), aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in September 2013. He has extensive experience in professional
accountancy in Hong Kong. Currently, he is the sole proprietor of Nelson and Company,
Certified Public Accountants, and the chairman of Nelson CPA Limited. He has been
appointed as a non-official non-executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority Board
of Hong Kong SAR since May 201 3. He has been the independent non-executive director
of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1313), since August 2008. He has also been appointed as a member of the
Financial Reporting Review Panel since July 2013 and a member of the Air Transport
Licensing Authority since August 2013. Mr. Lam is a practicing fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of several professional bodies in Australia,
the USA and the United Kingdom, including CPA Australia, the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England
and Wales. He is also a CFA charter holder and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Lam was the president of the Society of Chinese Accountants
and Auditors from December 201 | to December 2013 and is currently the chairman of
Accounting Development Foundation Limited. Mr. Lam received a bachelor of business
administration degree in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly
known as Hong Kong Baptist College) in January 1992, a master of business administration
degree from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November 1998
and a master of science degree in finance from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in

November 2001,
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Dewen (E{23), aged 36, was appointed as the executive Director on
26 January 2015, and was appointed as chief executive officer of our Company on 13
May 2014. For details of Mr. Wang Dewen’s biographical details, please refer to the
disclosure as set out in the sections headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management - Executive Directors” in this annual report.

Mr. Wang Dekai (E/£7), aged 38, has been appointed as the chief operating officer
of our Company since August 2014, and is primarily responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group. Mr. Wang has approximately |5 years of experience in
the development and operation of large scale trade and logistics centers. From February
2000 to May 2006, he served as the chairman and the general manager of Henan
Xinyang Commercial and Trade Center Development Company Limited (AR {E5E
S ES B AT]), and was primarily responsible for the company's management
and operation. From June 2006 to October 2009, he served as the chairman and the
deputy general manager of Liaoning Chaoyang Howard Commercial and Trade Center
Development Company Limited (BZEFHGREL FEHHEBRAF]), and was
primarily responsible for the project management and operation. From November 2009
to July 2012, he also served as the chairman and general manager of Jining Howard Lunan
Modern Trade Center Development Company Limited (BEXEERIR YRR
B A R]), and was responsible for the project management and operation. After that,
from August 2012 to July 2014, he served as the general manager of Mianyang Westermn
Trade Center Development Company Limited (435SR RAFEEER A
&]), and was responsible for the project management and operation. Mr. Wang Dekai is
the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli, the Chairman and an executive Director, a cousin of Mr.
Wang Dewen, an executive Director and the cheif executive officer of the Company, and

Mr. Huang Dehong, an executive Director.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jia Xinjiang (E{Z)L), aged 60, has been appointed as vice president of our Company
since September 2014, and is primarily responsible for the overall financial operations
of our Group. Mr. Jia is a senior economist. He obtains bachelor degrees in science
of Marxist Basic Theory from Jiangxi University (LF8AXZ) and in finance from the
Economics Department of Zhengzhou University (B8 K52), and a master degree in
finance from Hunan College of Finance and Economics (78 814X E26%). Mr. Jia has 36
years of experience in management and operations of banking business, including 21 years
of experience in central bank and |5 years of experience in commercial banks. He has
deep understanding on China's financial markets, and is familiar with the China's monetary
credit policy and financial regulations, as well as the methods of managing commercial bank
business, risk-management and internal control. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jia served
as the director of corporate banking department of Ping An Bank Company Limited (a
joint-stock commercial bank whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000001), hereinafter referred to as “Ping An Bank”)from September 2012 to
September 2013, and was responsible for the corporate banking business of its Chengdu
branch, Chonggin branch, Kunming branch, Wuhan branch and Haikou branch. From
May 2007 to September 2012, Mr. Jia served as both the director of corporate banking
department of Ping An Bank and the general manager of Ping An Bank's management
department in Shenzhen, and was responsible for the overall operations of business
department in Ping An Bank's southern area. From May 2005 to May 2007, Mr. Jia served
as the deputy president of the Shenzhen branch of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(a joint-stock commercial bank whose shares are listed on both the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0998) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:601998)), and was responsible
for corporate banking, credit operations and foreign exchange business. From April 2004
to May 2005, Mr. Jia served as the deputy president of the Guangzhou branch of China
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. (a joint commercial bank whose shares are listed on both the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 6818) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601818),
hereinafter referred to as “CCB"), and was responsible for corporate banking, asset
management and operation management. From September 1998 and April 2004, Mr.
Jia served as the deputy president of the Shenzhen branch of CCB, and was responsible
for credit management, risk review, corporate banking, retail business and integrated
management. From February 1993 to September 1998, Mr. Jia served several positions in
Jiangxi branch of People’s Bank of China, including the assistant to president and deputy

president, and was responsible for foreign exchange management, financing planning
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management and issuance of currency management. From October 1997 to February
1993, Mr. Jia served several positions in Shangrao district branch of People’s Bank of China,
including deputy president and president, and was responsible for financing planning, credit

management, integrated management and the overall management.

Mr. Chan Sze Hon (%% B.), aged 41, has been appointed as the chief financial officer
of our Group in September 2014 and is primarily responsible for the overall financial
affairs of our Group. Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy from
City University of Hong Kong and a Master Degree in Corporate Finance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has about |9 years of experience in accounting
and financial management and had worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong
for over 8 vears. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had held various positions with
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. From October 2012 to June 2014, Mr. Chan
was a chief financial officer and company secretary of Wuzhou International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1369). From 2009 to 2012, Mr. Chan has been an executive director,
company secretary and chief financial officer of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited
(stock code: 1777). Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director of each of BLU
SPA Holdings Limited, currently known as EDS Wellness Holdings Limited (stock code:
8176) and China Mining Resources Group Limited (stock code: 340) from 2007 to 2012
and 2007 to 201 1, respectively. Mr. Chan also served as an independent non-executive
director of ERA Information & Entertainment Limited, currently known as ERA Mining
Machinery Limited, a company whose shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and
delisted in 2012, from 2007 to 2012. Mr. Chan was an executive director, chief financial
officer and company secretary of Greater China Holdings Limited (stock code: 431) from
2005 to 2008, and later redesignated as a non-executive director from 2008 to 2015.
Prior to that, Mr. Chan worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1995 to 2004, where

he held various positions such as staff accountant, senior accountant and manager.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang Wenbin (£ 30&), aged 51, was appointed as a vice president of our
Company in November 201 | and is primarily responsible for sales and marketing
management of our Group. Mr. Huang has 20 years of experience in sales and marketing.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Huang was the vice general manager of Hong Kong
Howard Group Company Limited from February 2005 to November 201 I, and was
principally in charge of the sales and marketing of trade center projects. Mr. Huang was
also the deputy general manager of the Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development
Company Limited from May 2010 to November 201 I, and was responsible for sales and
marketing of the Jining Trade Center. Concurrently, Mr. Huang served as deputy general
manager of China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FAZZ R B R A F)) in charge
of marketing from January 2010 to October 2011, and was responsible for sales and
marketing management. Mr. Huang served as the deputy general manager of Jingdezhen
Howard Trade Center Development Company Limited (R/ZEREE 5 ESHEE
B2 R]) from January 2001 to June 2005. He also acted as the deputy general manager/
general manager of Jiangxi Howard Group Bioengineering Industrial Co., Ltd. (T Fi 512
SEEYIEEFARAT) from November 1998 to December 2000 and the deputy
general manager of Ganzhou Lifa Metal Products Company Limited (58 F1|8 © B &
BIRAE]) from March 1994 to November 1998.
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Mr. Zhao Yande (fEE1E), aged 38, is a vice president of our Company since November
2011, and a general manager of the Ganzhou project of our Group since December 2012.
From November 2011 to November 2012, Mr. Zhao served as the vice president of
construction management of our Company and was primarily responsible for the overall
construction management of our Group. Mr. Zhao has more than 14 years of experience
in construction management. Prior to joining our Group, he was also the deputy general
manager of Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited from February
2010 to November 2011 and was responsible for construction management of the
Jining Trade Center. Concurrently, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy general manager of
construction in China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FAZ2 2B AR A &) from
October 2009 to October 2011, and was responsible for managing the construction of
the entire project. From November 2008 to October 2009, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy
general manager of construction in Jingdezhen Howard Trade Center Development
Company Limited (RIEEFEE HESHEARAA]), and was responsible for
managing the construction of the entire project. From May 2006 to November 2008, Mr.
Zhao worked for Shenzhen China Overseas Construction Limited (FYIIFR /G2 T2
B AT, and was responsible for managing the construction of the Futian Shangri-La
Hotel, Kerry Plaza and Zhuhai Silver Bay projects. From July 2000 to May 2006, Mr. Zhao
worked for China State Construction International Holdings Ltd., and was responsible
for managing the reconstruction of Kowloon Hospital, the 101 Area project and other
projects. Mr. Zhao received a bachelor's degree in construction management from
Chongging University in July 2000, and a master of science degree in project management

from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Zhongmin (B8 K), aged 60, was appointed as a vice president of our
Company in November 201 | and is primarily responsible for the overall project plan and
architectural design management of our Group. Mr. Chen has more than ten years of
experience in city planning, architectural design, commercial real estate development and
operations management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen acted as the chief planner
of Hong Kong Howard Group Company Limited from April 2007 to November 2011,
and was responsible for site selection, design and planning of all the projects of the group.
Concurrently, Mr. Chen acted as the executive deputy general manager of Jining Hydoo
Logistics Center Development Company Limited from February 2010 to November 201 |
and was responsible for the daily management of the company and the design of Jining
Trade Centre. From April 2006 to April 2007, he was the general manager of Shenzhen
Minghao Investment Company Limited (YI|TT#55#%& 2 R]), and was responsible for
the property development and operations of the project companies, especially Muyang
project. From August 2002 to February 2006, he successively served as the deputy general
manager of Quanying Weiye (Beijing) Investment Management Company Limited (25
BEALR)EEEEER AT, the general manager of Henan Luohe Quanying Weiye
Estate Company Limited (7R 2 & EFREXHFR AT and the deputy general
manager, executive deputy general manager and general manager of Henan Pingdingshan
Trade Center Development Company Limited (I EFIBILE 2 ESFREBRAA),
and was responsible for the project development. Mr. Chen was the director and architect
of the design department of Jiangxi Ganzhou Architecture Design Institute, the director of
Ganzhou City Planning and Survey Design Institute, the director of Ganzhou City Planning
Bureau, a member of the Management Committee of China Association of City Planning
and vice president of the Jiangxi Association of City Planning. Mr. Chen was granted the
title of senior engineer in city planning by the professional title reform leading group (51
BERE/MH) of Jiangxi province in September 1997. Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangxi
Normal University (‘T FERIEE K E2) with a diploma in arts in February 1977.
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Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan (JEITT), aged 42, was appointed as a vice president of our Company
in December 2012 and is primarily responsible for the construction and cost management
for the Group. Mr. Zhou has nine years of experience in construction management. From
December 2010 to December 2012, he served as the general manager of the planning
and construction management department of Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (FEJKE & EIE
PR B R A7), responsible for the project development, planning and operation and the
construction management of the group. During the same period, he concurrently served as
the general manager of Taijian Construction Engineering Co, Ltd. (REEETEBRA
A]) under the group. He also served as the deputy general manager of Liyu Construction
Design Company (BBRIAEEEERATA A)) under the group, responsible for decoration,
landscape design and management from June 2012 to December 2012. From March 2010
to November 2010, he served as the deputy general manager of Changsha Kaifu Wanda
Plaza Investment Company Limited (R Fi1& & ZEE %R E AR A F), in charge of the
construction work. From July 2007 to February 2010, he successively served as the chief
of general housing management center and project general manager of Dongguan Vanke
Real Estate Co, Ltd (R=&RFEHEBMAR]), and was responsible for its project
development and construction management. From July 2004 to July 2007, he served as
the construction manager of Guangdong Century City Group Company Limited (5 ttt
L BB AT, in charge of its project development and construction management.
Mr. Zhou received a bachelor of science degree in water conservancy and hydropower

engineering construction from Tsinghua University in July 1995.
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Mr. Ma Yi (F54&), aged 45, was appointed as a vice president of our Company in January
2014, and is primarily responsible for the strategic planning and project operations of our
Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ma also acted as the assistant-to-president and
director of the commerce department of Diamond Park Creative Design (Shenzhen) Co,
Ltd (EEREEIZZETCRINERAF). From July 2007 to August 2009, Mr. Ma acted
as the marketing director of China South Intemnational Industrial Materials City (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd (EMBIRTEREH(RINERA
South City Holdings Limited. Mr. Ma also worked in Guangzhou International Commodity
JNEIRR 7 m B B AR 1 B IR 2 F]) and
Lionda Holdings (Group) Co,, Ltd (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr.

A)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China

Exhibition & Trade Center Company Limited (/&

Ma received a bachelor of science degree from Guangxi University of Technology (&78
TR in July 1991,

Mr. Wang Xiangui (F#8 &), aged 57, was appointed as the director of the project
development department of our Company in December 2010 and is primarily responsible
for the project development of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 19 years of
experience in project development of trade centers. From January 2010 to November
2010, Mr. Wang served as the manager of project development department of Hydoo HK
and was responsible for the project development of the company. From August 1995 to
November 2010, he was the manager of project development department of Hong Kong
Howard Group Company Limited, and was responsible for the project development. He
has been awarded the title of the outstanding entrepreneur with social responsibility of

Weifang city in December 2010.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B S

epnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Hydoo International Holding
Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hydoo International Holding
Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 98
to 224, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 3| December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= 3.2
EpfiE R
for the year ended 31 December 2014
BZEN4F 2R3 BILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

UAARBFITR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETR ARETT
Turnover EES 3 3,360,189 4,756,464
Cost of sales HERA (1,961,163) (1,824,109)
Gross profit E£7 1,399,026 2932355
Other revenue H bk 4 5,655 5353
Other net income Hin g% 5 4 43,652 14,562
Selling and distribution expenses HERY (182,263) (129,464)
Administrative expenses THAX (427,715) (312/475)
Other operating expenses Hi Qe < (12,082) (23,097)
Profit from operations HS—F I 826,273 2487234
Finance income FHBA 5(a) 19,993 11,079
Finance costs BN 5(a) (8,840) (70,183)
Change in fair value of embedded derivative on AJ G o] AT R B e AR i AR OT 4
redeemable convertible preference shares TAMAARES — (103,271)
Profit before taxation CRIE 5 837,426 2,324,859
Income tax ST 6(a) (330,961) (1,148,896)
Profit for the year FRFE 506,465 1,175,963
Attributable to: UT&ARER:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARERERRER 9 512,053 1,177,782
Non-controlling interests IR & (5,588) (1819)
Profit for the year FRFE 506,465 1,175963
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (RMB cents) ER(AR®ED) 10 12.7 409
Diluted (RMB cents) BE(AR%ED) 10 12.6 394

The notes on pages 107 to 224 form part of these financial statements. Details of
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year are set out in note
28(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EOHEEREMEEWER

for the year ended 3| December 2014
BZ04F 2A3IBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARK3IR)

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT AREFT
Profit for the year FRFE 506,465 1,175,963
Other comprehensive income for the year FrHEMEERA
(after tax and reclassification adjustments) (RBEREH D ERER)
ftems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: HEng BN REERNER ¢
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of ~ BEHMANERER FARM
subsidiaries outside the Mainland China, net of nil tax I HRAERLER
(EMRTHIE) 13,449 11,576
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2EBALE 519,914 1,187,539
Attributable to: UT&FER:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAERERR 525,502 1,189,358
Non-controlling interests FEEi e (5,588) (1,819)
Total comprehensive income for the year Fr2EBALE 519,914 ,187,539
The notes on pages 107 to 224 form part of these financial statements. FI7E24BEFE M BRI BRE M —
#fa o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B OF AR &

at 31 December 2014
R20145 12431 B
(Expressed in Renminbi)

UAARBFITR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
s ARBTR  ARETFR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE K& I 92,704 61,031
Intangible assets B EE 12 3,038 1,329
Goodwil mE 13 3,631 2252
Other non-current financial assets HitIEngemEE 14(a) 25,779 23618
Deferred tax assets BRI E 15(b) 293,572 213913
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WEMR - BERRED
plant and equipment AR FRIE 16 368,535 —
787,259 302,143
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =E 18 7,688,692 5,390,826
Current tax assets BT IE & E 15(a) 188,991 [11,762
Trade and other receivables, B 5 R EAM R RIE
prepayments and deposits BENTERES 19 1,133,893 682,941
Restricted cash XRHRE 20 198,155 103,031
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 14(b) 37,000 120,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeZEY 21(a) 1,819,029 4,292,994
11,065,760 10,701,554
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR 22 3,975,215 3,828,104
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERNEMEE 23 369,500 281,860
Current tax liabilities ENEAEA & 15(a) 1,054,385 932982
Deferred income R A 24 882,313 858,082
6,281,413 5901,028
Net current assets RBEEFRE 4,784,347 4,800,526
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBAE 5,571,606 5,102,669
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GRS

at 31 December 2014
R214E 128318

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARK3IR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB' 000
HiE ARBTR  ARBTR
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEE 23 1,192,600 602,000
Deferred income EEWA 24 5,843 5,843
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEEE 15(b) — 63,038
1,198,443 670,881
NET ASSETS EERE 4,373,163 4,431,788
Capital and reserves B AR B 28
Share capital A% 31,825 31945
Reserves i 4,260,304 4,389,126
Total equity attributable to equity AN TSR EEMNL
shareholders of the Company EReE 4,292,129 4,421,071
Non-controlling interests FERESR 81,034 10717
TOTAL EQUITY EDAH 4,373,163 4,431,788

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2015.

Wang Jianli
F A
Chairman and Executive Director

ERRATES

The notes on pages 107 to 224 form part of these financial statements.

Wang Dewen
IEX

PITEERITHER

R20I1563 B 25 BEEES A RIRETE -

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

FITEDIAREMEBAAT BERRA —

B e
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B % AR 5 &

at 31 December 2014
R20145 12431 B
(Expressed in Renminbi)

UAARBFITR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BT ARETR ARBFTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RFREIHER 17 1,317,157 833926
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & * T 50E R E MUK RIE 19 1,243,150 1,278,062
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEFEY 21(a) 133,275 15
1,376,425 1,278,077
Current liabilities S =R
Other payables and accruals Hfth e~ K FEET TNIE 22 30,620 4,596
30,620 4596
Net current assets RBEERE 1,345,805 1,273,481
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 2,662,962 2,107,407
NET ASSETS EERE 2,662,962 2,107,407
Capital and reserves BRAR G#E 28
Share capital e 31,825 31,945
Reserves [ 2,631,137 2,075,462
TOTAL EQUITY B 2,662,962 2,107,407
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2015. R20I5SFE3ABLBEEESHERTETE -
Wang Jianli Wang Dewen
FEF FEX
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
IRFNTES HITESRITHEH
The notes on pages 107 to 224 form part of these financial statements. FI07TE24EFEM T B R BIMEKE —
5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EOtEREH R

for the year ended 3| December 2014
BZ04F 2A3IBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREFIR)
Atributable to equity shareholders of the Compény
FRTERRRER
Equty
Reserve - setfed
transaction  share- based
wihnon-— payment
controling reserve
PC iewss AR Nor-
Sattory BE 2 &R cortroling
Share S resene Cptl  FBR  RAXA  Gowge  Retdned Inerests Tote
aptd premium Mg resenve st RER resene profts Total AR equity
BE  BhER ieRk  EAER X5 WERE  EIRE  KENE & Bn e
By W) B 240 e " )

Noe  RUBO0  RYBOD  RMBOID  RMBOO  RMBOO  RYBOD  RMBOND MBI RYBOO  RYBO  RMBUD
Wi ABRTR ARETR ARETR ARMTn ABRTn ARETR ARMTn ARETn ARMTR ARETR ARMTR

Ac | fanary 2013 HOBEIRIA % - g Wm N N 1 S 1 1 S 11511
Changes in equiy for 2013; WEEREE:
Proft for the year i = = = = = = - lmmooLmm (819 LT
Other comprehersive ncome LLETTON = = = = = - IS - IS - 115
Tota comprehensie incore SENAEE - = = = = = NS LT LS (819 LI
Net proceeds rom isse of ordnay shares - N TREE BT ERRAE

upon the Globel Ofering et of BV

g costs El 6160 1288 = = = = = — 1858 — 18589
Captalaton issue ERfEn 13 (25321 - - - - - - - - -
Automatic conversion ofredeemable BEEATRETAR

comertle reference shares Y 7 = — 109 = = = — 1Mol — 1m0l
Fquty setted sharebased treractions— DNEREEMRRBERNRS - - - - - 5107 - - 5107 - 507
Captalton of pecil chicend ERfIRS = = - 0w = = = - 0 - 0w
Acquitionofa subsiday WETAE - - - = = = = = = % %
Capial injecton by non-controlingnterests  FEEREREE - - - - - - - - - 4000 4000
Acquiston of nonsontrolignterests B FEARER = = = = [l = = —  (l%) O8I (15000)
Foproprzion o PRC siatvtoryresene. ~ BRZAEZERE 28(d) (i) - I - - - = (154 - - -

At 31 December 2013

ROBENAIA

394 (5436 18451 14617 (51.866) 2275 L6 1480 44001 0717 4431768
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SRS E R

for the year ended 31 December 2014
BZEN4F 2R3 BILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)
Atributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KOARERRER
Equity
Reserve-  settled
transaction  share- based
withnon- ~ payment
controlling ~~ reserve
PRC ierests  WEE  Capiel Nor-
Statutory B E EEN redempton controlling
Share S reene  Cptl FER REXH  reene  Bchange  Retained interests Tota
apd premim  HE e B&H O AEE ER e pofs Tou  FER  eqiy
RE BHEE GEBE BARR X3 NRE MEBR ENGR REMR &% BR Bif4E
B BA0  WAE 20 28(d) () ) 28(d) i)
Note ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBONO
i ARMTT ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTT ARBTZ ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARBTZ ARMTR ARETR
At | anuary 2014 HNM4EIAIA 3945 1254366 284Sl 14/ (Sl%es) 1225 — UM% 140 4410 10717 441788
Changes in equity for 2014 WHEERSD:
Proftfor the year EniE - - - - - = - = SI03 512083 (5588 506465
Other comprehensive income -OETON - - - - - - - 13449 - 13449 = 13449
Total comprehensive income 2ENALE - - - - - - — 349 S0 DS (5SeE) 519914
Repurchase and cancellaton of shares -)s=v) L (1200 (3214 - - - - 120 - = (214 = (4
Dividends approved in respect ofhe previous year 3t E— 5%k S 180) - - - - - - - = (624309 (624309 = (64309)
Capita injection by non-controling nterests FARERITA - - - - - - - - = = 7595 75905
Fauity settd share-based transacion NEREENRABERIRS - - - - S} - - 0 200 = m
Appropriation to PRC stautory resere BRTMAETRE 28(d) (i) - - B - - - - 1) - - -
At31 December 2014 HNI4ENR3IB 385 1mnl 303580 145617 (5% 1388l 0 40705 129046 49019 81034 437363
The notes on pages |07 to 224 form part of these financial statements. FI7EEF 4 BMEMTBR AT BEE
H— E‘
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
EHEEREBR

for the year ended 3| December 2014

HZE2014F 12831 BILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARK3IR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETR ARBTT
Operating activities REED
Cash (used in)/generated from operations meExB(mA)/MERe 21(b) (1,742,013) 2,891,896
PRC tax paid ENTEBA (429,484) (486,767)
Net cash (used in)/generated LeED(FA)/ MERLTE
from operating activities (2,171,497) 2,405,129
Investing activities REED
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE RERE
plant and equipment {3508 215 =
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HEFARMEHUE -
net of cash and cash equivalents disposed MREHERE KR LEEY — 240,000
Payment for purchase of other HitgEne & s & E DI Hs
non-current financial assets &R HIBFE — (2,000)
Net Proceeds/(payment) for AHEHERE
available-for-sale investments FisIE g/ (50 127,360 (105,438)
Payment for purchase of property, BENE BER
plant and equipment R (426,010) (30,873)
Payment for intangible assets BERVEENK (2,027) (1,009)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired WEEF AR - HRMESRSE (1,816) (1218)
Dividends received B E 1,082 2,201
Interest received EKHE 19,993 11,079
Net cash (use in)/generated from investing activities R &E & (FT ) /FTBRLFE (281,203) 112,742
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

=
EHEERER
for the year ended 31 December 2014
BZEN4F 2R3 BILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

UAARBFITR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®T R ARETT
Financing activities REETH
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares upon PRBEERBTERRMAEA
the Global Offering, net of issuing costs FREHBETHAE — 1,285,869
Dividends paid RERLE) 28(b) (ii) (624,309) —
Payment for repurchase of shares BERORR (32,145) —
Proceeds from new bank loans and MERTERREMEE
other borrowings {3508 1,220,000 841,500
Receipt of security deposit from EHRTE & REEL
a PRC financial institution RiEEHME — 40,000
Capital injection by non-controlling S G
interests to subsidiaries HFRRNEE 75,905 4,000
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings BERTERREMES (541,760) (706,640)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WeRE SE AR B 2R — (150,000)
Receipts from related parties & e Al et 5 RO — 796
Payments to related parties JE A~ B 7 3OR — (1,228)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid EAHE REMEEKA (124,767) (110358)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE(FA)FEReTE
financing activities (27,076) 1,203,939
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBEZENWRL)/
cash equivalents BmEE (2,479,776) 3,721,810
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIBIBNBEERBEESEN 21(a) 4,292,994 584,379
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEXRBNTE 5811 (13,195)
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December RNRAIBNEERESEEN 210 1,819,029 4292,994
The notes on pages 107 to 224 form part of these financial statements. FI07 224 BFEN RN AT BERRA —
2B e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"). These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which
for this financial year and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule || to that Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules™) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the

significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note |(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

EXRSHEE

(2)
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B)NERRBERT (RIANHEE
NEEBI(BEEDIF 62 F)HI&
[ E76E871K FIME R KT
TIRBEERRBLHENETE) -
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A& BB AR AT S B8 A A5 &)
RE - A BBREAMNETERRS
RGMBERRR (B ES L
mA AT EmRAI) B HE R
X o AREMEMNERSHBR
BT o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on |9 October 2010
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law

(2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on 18 May 201 | as detailed
in the section headed “History and Corporate Structure” in the Company's
prospectus dated |8 October 2013, the Company became the holding

company of the companies now comprising the Group.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

“Group").

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") rounded to
the nearest thousand. The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except the available-for-sale

investments in note | (f) are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Contd)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

EXSHBEE)

(b)

RBBRRNERR2IEEE)

BERESREBERZE M RIEHE
R - WEGHEET BT EL(E
HETNBRREETE - AIFAE
AR BEATIAER 5%
BETHEMIARBELDEY
2 BIFEfEm BT 60 2R AR
B39 T LARERR o

EEBERABRMERS ERE
FIEHHIBREEEATENH
i AREENEFHBETETR
R 255 ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRABIERI - IUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group's

financial statements:

. Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS27, lnvestment entities

. Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

. Amendments to |IAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-

financial assets

0 IFRIC 21, Levies

These amendments and new IFRSs do not have an impact on these financial

statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

EXSHBEE)

(d)

TRARARFERER

TRAIREAKEEHOERE i
AEERZE-RRANEBTA
JEEEGAZOE BRI
HZRETEAEN MY EZSE
RISV SE T NG 2]
Ll - NAHEARERSAES
¥ EERARERAEMRIRA
MEZRER -

WNFRBMRE B EH1ER R B H
EEEHIRA I BB R A S Gt
BHE - KENDRENGER R
SERERENLEEARARRMR
SRELNERNRERNE - ER
HAMMBRREY2HEN - &
BRARBEIZAELNAZERE
BREEY EHBREFRNER
TAREHARE R WS ERA0TTA
TIAKE

FEREREA AR W IR
BERENTARMNERZ - BAEE
I%HM/A%%‘TﬁAWéW
HMBBAEERBENZSER
REeMBBETREBENER -
ﬂﬂiﬁAﬁﬁm'KﬁlTﬁﬁ
DR EREIFERERGT
ﬂﬂ%%ﬁ?%@mm%ﬁgﬁﬁ
IR

Annual Report 2014 F3]

111



112

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont'd)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes |(m) or (n) depending on the nature of

the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset

(see note | (f)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investment in a subsidiary is

stated at cost less impairment losses (see note | (j)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

| BRSHBEKE)
(e) MEB
B () BB () MES -

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the

amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair

value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;

over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities

measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill

arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,

or groups of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

13))-

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, an attributable amount

of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities which are not held for trading are classified as
available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note
[()). Dividend income from equity securities are recognised in profit or loss

in accordance with the policies set out in note |(s)(iv).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note |(j)), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note | ())).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads

and borrowing costs (see note | (u)).

Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when it is ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against

construction in progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and

impairment losses (see note | (j)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised from the date it is

available for use and its estimated useful life is as follows:

Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

U]

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in retumn
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are leased by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exception:

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()  Leased assets (Contd)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment property, property
under development for sales and completed property held for sale

(see note 1(K)).

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and
it is clear that the transaction is established at fair value, any profit
or loss shall be recognised immediately. If the sale price is below fair
value, any profit or loss shall be recognised immediately except that,
if the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at below
market price, it shall be deferred and amortised in proportion to the
lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to
be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value
shall be deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is

expected to be used.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()  Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investment in equity securities and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of

the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in equity securities below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R ER R MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience

for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
()  Impairment of assets (Contd) () BERHEE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables () BREBFHREREMENK
(Cont'd) BRI HE(E)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined

had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such

assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bill receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bill receivables directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Interal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment;
= Intangible assets;
= Goodwill; and

- Investments in subsidiaries in the Company's statement of

financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()  Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Contd)
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | EXGHBERE)
()  Impairment of assets (Contd) () BERHEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Contd) (i) RHEEREE)

Recognition of impairment losses BRREEE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying BEERHMER®
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it EHEUREER
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses BEA I E S R
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated REBERERE

first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the

financial year (see notes |(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only
at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in other comprehensive

income and not profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories in respect of property development activities are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and net realisable values are

determined as follows:

- Properties held for future development for sale and properties

under development for sale

The cost of properties held for future development for sale and
properties under development for sale comprises specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of land use right,
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, wages
and other direct expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see note |(u)).
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in

selling the property.

- Completed properties held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by the Group,
cost is determined by apportionment of the total development
costs for that development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling

price less costs to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRABIERI - IUAARKTIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
(k) Inventories (Contd)

- Other inventories

Other inventories mainly include low-value consumption
goods. They are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprise all costs of purchase. When inventories
are consumed, the carrying amount of inventories is recognised
as an expense in the year in which the consumption occurs.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense

in the period the write-down or loss occurs.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e %2 BIfR 2R AR A 7

EXSHBEE)

FE(#&)

Hipir g

HerErB2aREESR
me B FERERAARA
ERFEMETNREEA
B o BN R D4R F Ak AR
ANFE  YBEMERER
A - FRERR - HRE
ERNERBELEFHRAR/X
o MHEAF SHORE AT 2
RREENEBLTETEEE
B OB 2B 1E 3 4 e
BB °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

(©)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note I(j)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of

discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(P)

Employee benefits

()

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Obligation for contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are included in

properties for sale not yet recognised as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | EXGHBERE)
()  Employee benefits (Contd) (p) EERFE)
(i) Equity settled share-based payment (i) HERBELRGBEELY
ff#

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the equity
settled share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value

is measured at grant date using the binomial option pricing model,

MEEMEBERENDAE
BRREBHKAR - WHER
M AE R B UAR D BER
)£ 3R 8 48 1 L AL PR A o

taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options ARERREL BHER =
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions TR HRREE B A 5t R PT
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total 1 1 B AP B0 R TR B A6 155t

estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company's shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the equity settled share-based
payment reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(P)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(i)~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination

benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(9)

Income tax (Cont d)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(9)

Income tax (Cont d)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are

recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(@  Income tax (Contd)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont @)

Financial guarantees issued (Contd)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred

income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note I(r)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(r)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont d)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(s)  Revenue recognition (Contd)

()

(i)

(i)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyers. The Group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the construction of relevant
properties have been completed and the properties have been

delivered to the buyers.

Revenue from sale of properties excludes business tax or other sales
related taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior to the date of
revenue recognition are included in the statement of financial position

as trade and other payables.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.

Service fee income

Service fee income in relation to property management services,
advertising service and other ancillary services are recognised when

such services are provided to customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

(iv)

)

(v

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of inventories are initially
recognised as deferred income and subsequently deducted from
the cost of sales when the inventories were sold upon meeting the

relevant conditions, if any, attaching to them.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB at

the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(v)  Related parties (Cont d)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

0

(i)

)

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

\0

(w)

Related parties (Cont'd)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

2

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(@)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has

made the following accounting judgements:

Classification between inventories, owner-occupied properties and

investment properties

The Group develops property projects with an initial intention to be held
for sale and retains a portion of properties held for own use. Judgement is
made by management in determining whether a property is designated as a
property held for sale, owner-occupied property. The Group considers its
intention for holding the properties at the early development stage of the

related properties. During the course of development, the related properties

under development are accounted for as (I) properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale after their
completion; (2) owner-occupied properties included in properties, plant and
equipment if the properties are intended for own use; and (3) investment
properties under development if the properties are intended to be held to

eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 26 and 29 contain information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to the fair value of share options granted and fair value of
financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as

follows:

(i) Inventories

As explained in note I(j), the Group's land held for future
development, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group's recent experience and the
nature of the subject property, the Group makes estimates of the
selling price, the costs of completion in case for properties under

development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, provision for completed properties held for sale, properties
held for future development and under development for sale may be
resulted. Such provision requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which

such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Given the volatility of the PRC property market and the distinctive
nature of individual properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs
and revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the provision would

affect profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(i)  Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised and measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. In determining the carrying amounts
of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a significant level of judgment
exercised by the Directors. Any change in such assumptions and
judgment would affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to

be recognised and hence the net profit in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(i)

(iv)

Provision for PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“PRC LAT")

As explained in note 6(b), the Group has estimated, made and
included in tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual PRC
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects and the tax
authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for
PRC LAT is calculated. Significant judgment is required in determining
the level of provision, as the calculation of which depends on the
ultimate tax determination. Given the uncertainties of the calculation
basis of PRC LAT as interpreted by the local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than those estimated at the
end of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the actual
outcomes/estimates will impact the income tax provision in the

period in which such determination is made.

Recognition of construction costs on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under
development during construction stage and will be transferred to
profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of the properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs and other costs
relating to the sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management's best estimates. Any variations on
the development costs upon final settlement will impact cost of sales

included in profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

148

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The principal activities of the Group are development, sales and operation of

commercial trade and logistics centres and residential properties in the PRC.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties, property management
services income and rental income net of business tax and other sales related taxes

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

The amounts of each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during

the year are as follows:

ERER D BRE
AEENIEXBRAETRETHEY
mPLREENENFRE  HERLE

FREMEHERAREER LA
@%%m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬂD‘%%
EERBUARBEKRA

ENERELBFRANSBEEAMS
FRIMSEMT -

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTT

Sales of properties MEHE 3,341,612 4,748,766
Property management services MEER RS 11,339 7,027
Rental income AakA 6,734 671
Advertising income BEKRA 504 =
3,360,189 4,756,464

The Group's customer base is diversified and none of the customers of the Group

with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's turnover.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial data and
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations. No segment
information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segment as the Group
is principally engaged in one segment in the PRC. The Group does not operate in

any other geographical or business segment during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 4 HWmkEMBAEE
2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Other revenue H bk
Dividend income BRERA 3,243 4019
Others Hith 2,412 1,334
5,655 5353
Other net income HiW A5
Net gain on disposal of HERAHEERERG 58
available-for-sale investments 44,360 14,562
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERRBEBFHE
plant and equipment (708) —
43,652 14,562
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@)

Finance income and finance costs

BRBLATRIE
BB ATMBENR/GIA) TR RE

/8
=

(a) MBBARBERE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AREFT
Finance income g 3 ON
Interest income FSUWA (19,993) (11,079)
Finance costs MERAE
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings  $RTTEF R M EERNF S 124,767 108,558
Less: interest expense capitalised into B BRCBAERDEN
properties under development * FERZ* (123,565) (107.977)
1,202 581
Net foreign exchange loss X BERE 7,638 3,602
Finance expense on redeemable convertible 7] & 2] ] #3% & 52 AR 1 75
preference shares 53 — 66,000
8,840 70,183

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 6.40% - 10.23% per

annum for the year ended 3| December 2014 (2013: 6.40% - 17.00% per annum).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Contd) 5 BRBAEFEE)

Staff costs: (b) BIRA:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F ARETFT
Contributions to defined FER TR 14,700 7,402

contribution retirement plans BE
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEMBEF 279,451 147,792
Equity settled share-based payments DA B DA BETEA 2,010 5,707
(note 26) R (P T 26)

296,161 160,901

Other items: (c) HtER :
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 25,742 16,361
Auditor's remuneration R 2,900 2,246
Operating lease charges RERESH 25,060 10,129
Cost of properties sold (note (i)) EEMENRAE (ML () 1,943,073 1,817,539

()  Cost of properties sold is after netting off benefits from government () HBE04512R31BLEEE BE

grants of RMB321,505,000 for the year ended 3| December 2014 (2013:

RMB620,938,000).

MEKRERENRBREHP AR
321,505,000 &FH (2013F : AR
#620,938,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 6 AEZRANMER
OR LOSS
(@)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents: ) EHBERFRANBER:
2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Current tax B E B
PRC Corporate Income Tax (‘PRCCIT")  HFEIREMEH([PECERER]) 225,990 473453
PRC dividend withholding tax (note 6(b)(v)) " EIRX B FBINH (P 7E 6(b)(v)) 63,038 —
PRC LAT (note 6(b)(v)) 8+ 3 R (B 0 (P T 6(b) (iv)) 184,630 687,289
Under-provision in respect of prior years NEFEREIR — 16,782
473,658 [,177,524
Deferred tax B IH
Origination and reversal of ERMEENES
temporary differences (note 15(b)) BB (BT 15(b)) (142,697) (28,628)
330,961 1,148,896
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS (Contd)

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates:

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

AHHRBERANARER(Z)

FreRERERNETENE A
TR

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Profit before taxation Bt A A E 837,426 2,324,859
Notional tax on profit before taxation, LEBRRERNN BN X
calculated at the rates applicable to profits 5T & KIBR T B A E AT
in the countries concerned BEWME 215,113 634,772
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAMBAX R BT E 8,383 11,023
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARHRBANT K E (895) (1,005)
Tax effect of unused tax AERRSARBEEEN
losses not recognised KT E 26,515 8,987
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BRALAARSEATIEER
tax losses (77) (322)
Withholding tax on distributable profits B B A 2 I | ) TR H A
of PRC subsidiaries — 63,038
PRC LAT (note 6(b)(iv)) o+ BB (FTE 6(b) (v)) 184,630 687,289
Tax effect on PRC LAT PR LR ERNETE (29,351) (171,822)
Tax concessions (note 6(b)(iii)) A EE (BT 6(b)(iii)) (73,357) (99,846)
Under-provision in respect of prior years NEEFERETR — 16,782
Total income tax g 330,96 1,148,896
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS (Contd)

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates: (Cont'd)

0

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is not

subject to any income tax in this jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group did not earmn

any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year (2013: Nil).

PRC CIT

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to statutory tax rate of 25% on their

assessable profits.

In July 2013, Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Logistics Park
Development Co,, Ltd. (“Ganzhou Trade Centre”) was approved to enjoy
a preferential PRC CIT rate of 5% for the years from 2012 to 2020
according to a tax notice issued by the local tax bureau. The preferential
tax treatment was based on various tax rules and regulations in relation to
PRC government's strategy in encouraging investment and development of

wholesale trading markets in certain regions in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS (Contd)

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax
rates: (Contd)

()

PRC LAT

PRC LAT which is levied on properties developed for sale by the Group in
the PRC, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
value, which under the applicable regulations is calculated based on the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
lease charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all qualified property
development expenditures. Deferred tax assets arising from PRC LAT
accrued are calculated based on the applicable income tax rates when they

are expected to be cleared.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group were subject to PRC LAT which
were calculated based on 6% to 8% of their revenue in accordance with the

authorised tax valuation method approved by respective local tax bureau.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the authorised tax
valuation method is one of the allowable taxation methods in the PRC and
the respective local tax bureaus are the competent tax authorities to approve
the authorised tax valuation method in charging PRC LAT to the respective
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, and the risk of being challenged by the State

Administration of Taxation or any tax bureau of higher authority is remote.

PRC dividend withholding tax

Withholding tax is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect of dividend
distributions arising from profit of PRC subsidiaries earned after | January
2008 at 5%.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BREERN  BUARKIIR)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 EEHM
Directors' remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule Il to the EZTMBRBEHNBEBRAKI(E
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), with reference to section 16 BE)MRIIE78(E 2RABBLAE
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), is as follows: BI(ENE)F 161 ERER
2014
Salaries Equity settled
allowances and share-based
benefits in kind Retirement payment
Directors’ e scheme  UEHEE
fee BER  contrbutions MRAAERE Total
EsHhe BNEN  RUGHHRK EA @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR%TR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Executive directors: BITES:
Wong Choihing (2) THE (3 3333 1,802 — (267) 4,868
Wang Jiani (b) TR () 1,647 - — — 1,647
Huang Dehong BEL 1,500 1,183 % 89 27%
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Yuan Bing RE 242 — — — 242
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES
Yang Xianzu (c) BER(0) 27 — = 67) 150
Zhao Lihua (d) HE () 25 — — = 25
Wang Lianzhou TiEM 242 — = 86 8
Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson HEE " - — 8 38
7448 2,985 24 M) 10,384
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

7  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 7 EEHFME)
2013
Salaries Equity settled
allowances and share-based
benefits in kind Retirement payment
Directors’ A scheme  WEREE
fee 28R contributions AR & Total
£ 20k EVEN  RMGHEIES  ERANK 5t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARBTE  ARMTT ARETT ARETR  ARET:x

Executive directors: HiTES:

Wong Cholhing TRE 5000 1,945 — 47 7417

Wang Dewen (e) TEX () — 559 6 = 565

Huang Dehong (f) BEE (N 1,500 589 7 136 232

Non-executive director: FHTES:

Yuan Bing RE - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:

Yang Xianzu (g) BER(g) 201 — — 67 268

Wang Lianzhou (g) TiEM (g 201 — — 67 268

Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (g) HEE (9) 200 — - 67 267
7,102 3093 3 809 [1017

(@)  Removed on 25 August 2014 @  M2014F8A25HRE -

(b)  Appointed on 25 August 2014. (b)  M2014F8HAER -

() Resigned on 23 November 2014. (©  M20I4F I A23HEHE °

(d)  Appointed on 23 November 2014. (d)  M2014F |1 A3RERE -

(e)  Resigned on |1 March 2013, (e) FR20I3F3IAIIHEHE -

() Appointed on |1 March 2013, (H  R0I3FI[IBERE -

(g  Appointed on 27 September 2013. (9 RWIBFIRVTBEZEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 BEHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2013: two) are directors TEBERGEATHAEME(QQI3EFE : M
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in BIRES  RFMRERMT7 - K
respect of the other three (2013: three) individuals are as follows: Mm=%013F : =8) AT HM A
mr
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 155 68
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e EMREMEYEF 8,419 7,350
Equity settled share-based payments (note 26) AR EEDARG R
ER R (5T 26) (113) 1,188
8,461 8,606
The emoluments of the three (2013: three) individuals with the highest emoluments ZHQ3F : ZR) B HATHAEH
are within the following bands: NEUATEE -
2014 2013
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T ZE 3,000,000 7 7T | 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000 % 7T = |
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T 4,000,000 87T 2 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 9  EAEEZRRESTE

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company AR EGRREESHNBRERR
includes a loss of the Company of RMB10,746,000 (2013: loss of RMB178,001,000) BB AR 1074600002013 5 :
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. BARK178,001,0007T) * KEBEEHER

RRMBHRRZT

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company's profit/(loss) for the year: Ll BERARAENEF/(EE)H
Bk -
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Amount of consolidated loss attributable to

equity shareholders dealt with

EARBHBHRR 2T
ERRRELESHERSR

in the Company's financial statements (10,746) (178,001
Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable AEEHENTE

to the profits of the previous financial RE-BBFERFH

year approved during the year REMWE R AHRARES 1,200,000 —
Company's profit/(loss) for the year AARFERNEF/(EBE)

(note 28(a)) (P 7E28(a)) 1,189,254 (178,001)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

[0 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10

(@)  Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB512,053,000
(2013: RMBI,177,782,000) and the weighted average of 4,020,798,000
ordinary shares (2013: 2,883,306,000 ordinary shares after adjusting for the

capitalisation issue in 2013), calculated as follows:

BREF

(2)

SREXRF
BREXBMNRAAREERR
JE 16 7 B A K #512,053,0007T
(013%F : AR™ 1,177,782,0007T)
% 4,020,798,000 B (2013 F :
2,883,306,000 & @ AR (422013 F &
AMeBITRER)) S METHEG
B ERET

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRI IMEFGE
2014 2013
'000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares at | January RIAIBEZETHERR 4,029,950 42,782
Effect of capitalisation issue BREBTNZE — 2,606,962
Effect of Global Offering and automatic ERBERBBBRELRNTE
conversion of preference shares — 233,562
Effect of shares repurchased (note 28(c)) B R E R 8% 2 (M 28(c)) (9,152) —
Weighted average number of ordinary R12A31 BT @R
shares at 31 December MEFHH 4,020,798 2,883,306
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd) 10

(b)  Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB512,053,000
(2013: RMBI,347,053,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 4,060,664,000 shares (2013: 3,423,092,000 shares), calculated as

follows:

(i) Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (diluted)

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

BREMN(Z)

(b)

SREERF
SREFRMNRAAAEZRE
FE 15 A B A R #512,053,0007T
(2013 : AR #1347,0530007T )
K 4,060,664,000 % 38 % 49 i 4E 19
£(20134F : 3,423,092,0000% ) &t
B ERWT

() FAABEERELAE
(#9)

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Profit attributable to equity ARAERR R EG TR
shareholders of the Company 512,053 1,177,782
After tax effect of finance expense A5 R 2 1 A] R Bl 4
on redeemable convertible REEKROF BT E
preference shares — 66,000
After tax effect of change in fairvalue BRARITETLERRE
of embedded derivative on S A EE AR
redeemable convertible RELEBROBELE
preference shares — 103,271
Profit attributable to equity ARAIERRRER
shareholders of the FE(EE)
Company (diluted) 512,053 1,347,053
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

10

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd)

Diluted earnings per share (Contd)

Weighted average number of ordinary share (diluted)

BRERN(E)
b) SREERR(EZ)

(i) BBERNETFIE(BE)

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTRL
Weighted average number of ordinary 1 12 A 31 B #3E B A% hiiE F 15 2
shares at 3| December 4,020,798 2,883,306
Fffect of deemed issue of shares under 1RIEAA B8 &R AR EMRA]
the Company's Pre-IPO Share BRE AT HERE
Option Scheme for nil consideration 1T (D K5/ & 39,866 41,704
Effect of conversion of redeemable BB RRELROTE
convertible preference shares — 498,082
Weighted average number of ordinary 1 12 A 31 B #9358z it
shares at 31 December (diluted) THE(EE) 4,060,664 3,423,092
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT I 9% BERSRHE
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles equipment Total
BT RE WARE @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR AR%®Tn AR%®Txn

Cost: B
At | January 2013 R20I13F 1A 1B 9,559 35,139 13477 58,175
Additions NE — 21,522 9,351 30,873
Acquisitions through business BBEBE MRS

combination — 327 424 751
At 31 December 2013 and R213F12A318K

| January 2014 20141 /18 9,559 56,988 23,252 89,799
Additions NE 210 45267 11,998 57,475
Acquisitions through business BBEBA O MAE

combination (note 27) (Pt5E27) — 481 51 532
Disposals & — (1,489) (95) (1,584)
At 31 December 2014 R20145F 128318 9,769 101,247 35,206 146,222

Annual Report 2014 F3]

163



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

164

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) I % BRERREE)
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles equipment Total
g¥ E MWORE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTFRT AR®TR AR®TR AR%®T:R
Accumulated depreciation: RItiE
At | January 2013 R20I13F 1A 1B — 9,494 3,034 12,528
Charge for the year FRAX M 454 10,807 4979 16,240
At 3| December 2013 and R20I13F12A31B R
| January 2014 20141 A1 H 454 20,301 8013 28,768
Charge for the year FRXH 454 16,860 8,097 25411
Written back on disposals & F i o — (603) (58) (661)
At 31 December 2014 R20145F 128318 908 36,558 16,052 53,518
Net book value: BRIERE :
At 3| December 2014 R20145 128318 8,861 64,689 19,154 92,704
At 3| December 2013 R20I13F 12431 H 9,105 36,687 15,239 61,031
The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC. RZERTRHNRPEER
The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land of properties is as follows: MEHE LHAREEINNOT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
In the PRC, held under long leases (over 50 years)  fEREIRIER ML (S0F U E)HE 8,86l 9,105
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 EBREE
Softwares
g4
RMB’000
AR®ET T
Cost: B
At | January 2013 R2013F1A18 463
Additions NE 1,009
At 31 December 2013 and | January 2014 R2013F 12431 BR20145 1 A 1R 1,472
Additions NS 2,040
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F 12 A31 B 3512
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At | January 2013 R20I13561 A1 H 2
Charge for the year FAxH 121
At 31 December 2013 and | January 2014 R2013F 12831 BK2014F 1 A1 B 143
Charge for the year FRX L 331
At 31 December 2014 20145 12 A31 B 474
Net book values: BRENFE -
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12831 B 3,038
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12831 H 1,329
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRABIERI - IUAARKTIR)

13 GOODWILL 13 e
The Group
&M
RMB’000
AR®BTR
Cost: B
At | January 2013 R213F1A1AH —
Addition from acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RKFRRIMEM 2,252
At 3| December 2013 and | January 2014 R2013F12A31BR2014F 1 A1 B 2252
Addition from acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27)  WBE—R-F 2 Blm L 0 (K 27) 1,379
At 3| December 2014 R2014F12A31 8 3,63l
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31 8 3,631
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12H31H 2252
The Group carried out impairment testing of the goodwill at the end of each AEERERSHRYBHBETRER
reporting period. In assessing the impairment of goodwill, the recoverable amount A HAEEHERER  eRTHEE
of the cash generating units (“CGU") is determined. The CGU related to the ABR((ReELEM)MNTKES
goodwill comprises the company's knowledge and expertise of the management oA BABNREELENAEL
and existing customers. The directors determined that no impairment of goodwill is AERERRRAEFNAARER -
necessary as at 31 December 2014 and 2013. EERB RWI4FER2013F12A3I

HBRYEEELRE -
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[4 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@)  Other non-current financial assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

HittEMEE
) HttFRBHEMEE

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®TTT

Available-for-sale unlisted equity securities AN E I LT IRAE S 25,779 23,618
(b)  Available-for-sale investments (b) AHEERE
The Group
5 H
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Wealth management products BEEm 37,000 120,000

At 31 December 2014, the available-for-sale investments represented

short-term unlisted wealth management products issued by banks in the

PRC which are either redeemable on demand or with maturities within 2

months.

R2014F 128318 AJEHER
BT ENMETRITHIZEX
OISR 1218 AW E Ea S B3k
THEMER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EE L Tk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

I5 [INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position

represents:

AH M BRI KA FEH

() BHPBRIRAOEABIRE :

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Current tax assets: AEARIEEE
PRC CIT B EFTISTR 10,704 6,930
PRC LAT B+ I E R 178,287 104,832
188,991 111,762

Current tax liabilities: IEFEEE
PRC CIT B EFTISTR 583,545 455,594
PRC dividend withholding tax F B AR S TR 33,038 —
PRC LAT i B + 3 A R 437,802 477,388
1,054,385 932,982
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

I5  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 15 GSHMBRRRANAERE)

FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: () CRIBLHBEERAE:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the RE R BRRRERNRTERE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during the BE/(AE)MARKES RERE
year are as follows: ZET -

Deferred tax assets arising from: BEHEEEANUTEREL -
Withholding
tax on
distributable
profits
Provision of PRC
for subsidiaries
Advertising Deferred PRCLAT  HEFAH
Tax losses costs income FELE  TRER Total
HREE REE BERA  BEHER bk #ct
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT AR%TT ARETR AREBTT ARET:
At | January 2013 ROBFIAIH 116l 7066 114020 - — 122247
Credited(charged) to REfHER
the consolidated A/ (k)
statement of profit or (Mzt6(a)
loss (note 6(a)) 9,304 (2433) 84,795 — (63038) 28628
At 31 December 2013 RWNBENA3IA 10465 4633 198815 — (63038) 150,875
At | January 2014 R04FIA1A 10,465 4633 198,815 — (63,038) 150,875
Credited/(charged) to RAafHERR
the consolidated A/ (k)
statement of profit or (BT 6(a))
loss (note 6(2)) 11,063 4921 (4947) 68,622 63038 142,697
At 31 December 2014 R2014%5 12831 B 21,528 9,554 193,868 68622 - 293572
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

I5 [INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF I5
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Cont d)

AHMBRRRANAEHR(E)

b) ECRIABEHEELEERAR:
(&)

Representing: -
The Group
AL

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
Deferred tax assets BEEHIBEE 293,572 213913
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREAE — (63,038)
293,572 150,875
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I5 [INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

©

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note [(q), the Group
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of certain subsidiaries of RMB141,785,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB36,032,000). The directors consider it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available from

these subsidiaries.

The unrecognised tax losses will expire by the end of the following years, if

Br R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

I5 AHBBRARANHAEHRE)

(©)

AERELHBEE

BRI EE 1 (q) PT & A) & 5T BUE
R2014F 12831 B AEET X
RETFRRAINRAHEBEA
R# 141,7850007T(20135 : AR
# 36,032,000 7T ) B RIE I T I &
- EZRRTAAREZETFL
ARG ] AR S B B A R R FER
B o

ARRER - REERN BB ER

unused: R T EHEREEW
The Group
rEE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET AREF T
2017 80 84
2018 35,644 35,948
2019 106,061 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

I5

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As set out in note 6(b)(v), withholding tax are levied on Hong Kong
companies in respect of dividend distribution arising from profit of PRC
subsidiaries. Since the Group could control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax
liabilities are only provided to the extent that such profits are expected to

be distributed in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amounts of undistributed profits of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries in respect of which the Group has not provided
for dividend withholding tax were approximately RMB1,502,362,000 (2013:
RMB995,334,000) as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable that the profits

will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e %2 BIfR 2R AR A 7

I5

AHMBRRRANAEHR(E)

(d)

AERELERERE

BAHIFE6(b)(v) FTEL - LBl F
AAEFIEENRFIRGEED A
STEIH - ARARREREEHIA
ERTEFARIREFIENSBER
R - MASBEEZSAEES
BRI T R AR RRE A B TR
BEHERE -

R2014F 128318 AEE R
RABER SFEMB R ER T B E
REAZRDRFBEBORARE
1,502,362,0007T(2013 % : AR
9953340007 ) * A ARE BZEH]
ZEFLRNREBKARETH
A ERABRRRDEEF -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

At 31 December 2014, the prepayment for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment represents the prepayment for purchasing buildings at the
consideration of RMB368,535,000.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

Br R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

le WEBME BERRBHAMNKE

R014FE 128318 W B B £
BMERXENEMNREEUARE
368,535,000 TR EBERFHEMNK
Ig o

17 RY¥DANER
The Company

ARTF
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Unlisted investment, at cost BAGTERNFELETIRE 79 79
Amounts due from subsidiaries G /NETE O] 1,317,078 833,847
1,317,157 833,926

Amount due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The balances are expected to be recovered after more than one

year.

FBRFLAFASEEN 28 NEE
EERY - ZFHERBHR —FUAREK
@ o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

17 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 17 RFRANERE)
The following list contains the particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Group at TREFREER20145 12A31 B8
31 December 2014. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. FRFRAINHEE - KRIERFHA B

BIP R A A7 VAR B B A

Proportion of ownership interest

Fra LBl
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest  Held by the Held by a Principal

Name of company AL BRTR N Company subsidiary activities

AL REXHH BRRRAHRE ER#EZ AQXFARE FLAME FEXEH

Hongkong Hydoo Group Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% — Investment
Investment Company Limited s 100,000 /87T management
BRRBEEREBRAR REEE

Hongkong Hydoo Holding Limited Hong Kong Nil 100% 100% - Investment
BAREERERAR &R 3 management

RATE

Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou) Company The PRC USD22,050,000 100% — 100% Property
Limited (“Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou)") i 22,050,000%7T development
REER(BEM)ERAR and investment
(IREEX(EM)]) holding

BHERR
REALH

Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Centre  The PRC RMB60,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Development Company Limited i AR # 60,0000007C development
(“Ningxiang Trade Centre")

ERREAVEDES BHERE
FREBRAR
(T=fmul)

Jining Hydoo Modern Industrial The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100% Investment
Company Limited i AR%30000,0007T management
BERERREXERARN REEE

Jining Hydoo Logistics Centre The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Development Company Limited i AR 2000000007 development
("Jining Logistics Centre”) FHERE

BERRMRNMAR
ARARF ( [EEWRE] )
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

17

R¥DRMER (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

L fl
Place of Particulars Group’s
incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal

Name of company A L BRTR biS - | Company subsidiary activities

AL 3 E EHRRAHE BREZ AQXAFE FLARE TEEH

Mianyang West Modem The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Trade Centre Development i AR 200,000,0007T development
Company Limited FHERE
(“Mianyang Trade Centre”)

BERPARDRAFE
AR REWRN])

Guangxi Yulin Modem Trade Centre The PRC RMB220,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Development Company Limited mE  ARK2200000007T development
(“Yulin Trade Centre”) FHERE
BREIMERYRAFEE
ARDRE ([ M)

Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Centre The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Property Services Company Limited i AK#3,000,0007C management
ERREAVESESNE services
RBEBERRA* NEEBRYE

Jining Hydoo Modem The PRC USD99,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Logistics Company Limited H 99,000,000 7T management
EERERRMRBRAR* services

NEERRG

Shenzhen Hydoo Investment The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100% Investment
Management Company Limited i AR 30,0000007C management
(“Shenzhen Hydoo”) REERE

R TRERAERARAR
()
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EE L Tk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

17 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 17 RFRANERE)
Proportion of ownership interest
L fl
Place of Particulars Group’s
incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal

Name of company A L BRTR biS - | Company subsidiary activities

AL REXHH EHRRAHE BREZ AQXAFE FLARE TEEH

Yulin Hydoo Property The PRC RMB,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Management Services Co, Ltd. i AR 1,000,0007T management
FHRENEERRE services
ARRAE* NEERRE

Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial The PRC RMB800,000,000 100% - 100% Property
and Trade Logistics Park i A 800,000,000 70 development
Development Co, Ltd. EERE
("Ganzhou Trade Centre”)

SNRRBENRERE
BRAR*[BMEEMRE])

Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade  The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Centre Development Co, Ltd. i AR 300,000,0007T development
("Wuzhou Trade Centre”) R
BMNREEENRNAE
BRAR*[EMEZRA])

Mianyang Hydoo Property The PRC RMBI,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Services Company Limited i AR 1,000,0007T management
wERENEREERAR* services

NEERRG

Heze Hydoo Commercial and Trade The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Centre Company Limited i AR 300,000,000 70 development
("Heze Trade Centre") EERE

SRR EREWRY
BRARRHEMRR])
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

17 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

L fl
Place of Particulars Group’s
incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal

Name of company A L BRTR biS - | Company subsidiary activities

AL REXHH EHRRAHE BREZ AQXAFE FLARE TEEH

Jining Hydoo Commercial The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Operation and Management i AR 2,000,0007T management
Company Limited services
BEREHFEZER NEEERS
BRAE*

Xingning Hydoo The PRC RMB200,000,000 80% - 80% Property
Commercial and Trade Centre i AR 200,000,0007T development
Company Limited FHERE
(“Xingxing Trade Centre”)

REREREWRHN
ARDA(REREWRH])

Ganzhou Hydoo Property The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Services Company Limited i AR#3,000,0007C management
ENBRENERBERRA* services

NEEBRYE

Yantai Hydoo International The PRC RMB183,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Commercial and Trade i AR 183,000,0007T development
Centre Company Limited FHERE
(“Yantai Trade Cender)

EEREERHEN
BRAR*[ESEEMRR])

Lanzhou Hydoo Commercial The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% — 100% Property
and Trade Centre Company Limited i AR 300,000,0007T development
(“Lanzhou Trade Centre”) FHERE

BAREHERERAR
(TRMEER])
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

17 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRAR*

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e %2 BIfR 2R AR A 7

L fl
Place of Particulars Group’s
incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal

Name of company A L BRTR biS - | Company subsidiary activities

AL REXHH EHRRAHE BREZ AQXAFE FLARE TEEH

Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial The PRC USD50,000,000 100% - 100% Property
and Operation Management H 50,000,000 7T management
Company Limited services
BRERXEEER NEEERS
BRAR*

Ganzhou Jiuzhi Property The PRC RMB5,200,000 51% - 51% Property
Management Services i AR 5,200,0007T management
Company Limited services
BN ARNEEE NEEERG
BRAR*

Yantai Hydoo Commercial The PRC USD6,000,000 100% - 100% Trading of
Trade Company Limited H 6,000,000 7T building-related
EaREBHBERAR* materials

BERE

R

Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Business The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Property
Management Company Limited i z Management
RITAEREREXER services
ARAF NEERRE

Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Finance Holding  The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Investment
Company Limited i z management
AT ATEREE BER RaER



INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

17 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Fra LBl
Place of Particulars Group’s
incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal

Name of company Ak EBTR x5E Company subsidiary activities

AL REXBH BHRRAHE EREE AQXFANE  FRARE TEXK

Tianjin Hydoo Commercial and Trade The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Centre Company Limited H AR 200,0000007C development
REREHERARAA* FHER%

Qingdao Hydoo Investment The PRC RMB500,000,000 100% — 100% Investment
Company Limited i AR 500,000,000 70 management
BEREREBRAR RAEE

Huaiyuan Hydoo Commercial The PRC RMB100,000,000 60% - 60% Property
and Trade Centre Company Limited AR 100,000,0007C development
("Huaiyuan Trade Centre") FHERE
BERBHERBRAR*

(MEEmiEul)

Jiamusi Hydoo Commercial The PRC Nl 100% - 100% Property
and Trade Centre Company Limited z development
EASREEEMRRBRAR* FHERS

Jinan Dezhong Investment Company The PRC RMB10,000,000 60% - 60% Investment
Limited h AR 100000007 management
ERERREBRAR RAEE

Jiangxi Haode Shangging The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% — 100% Advertising
Advertisement Company Limited i AR #2,000,0007C services
(“Haode Shangging”) EERS

TESEREREARAR
(IxEEE])
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

ENTS

17 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 17 RE¥RANERE)
Proportion of ownership interest
L fl

Place of Particulars Group’s

incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company A L BRTR biS - | Company subsidiary activities
AL REXHH EHRRAHE BREZ AQXAFE FLARE TEEH
Shenzhen Hydoo International The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100% Investment
Holding Company Limited i AR 300,000,0007T management
AP REERERAR AR * RAEE
Hydoo Intemational Logistics The PRC USD20,000,000 100% — 100% Logistics
(Shenzhen) Company Limited i 20,000,000%7T services
REERMRORN)BRAR WRRS
Bright Ocean Business The PRC Nil 85% - 85% Property
Management (Shenzhen) i z management
Company Limited services
BEEEER(RI)ARAR* NEERRG
Jining Bright Ocean Business The PRC Nil 85% — 85% Property
Management Company Limited i z management
BERLERRERERAR services
NEEBRYE
Jinan Bright Ocean Business The PRC RMB50,000,000 85% - 85% Property
Management Company Limited i AR 50,0000007T management
BN SRR ERARAR* services
MEERRG
Mianyang Hydoo Business The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Property
Management Company Limited i z management
GERENXEEARAA* services
NEERRE
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

17 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

L fl

Place of Particulars Group’s

incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company A L BRTR biS - | Company subsidiary activities
AL REXHH EHRRAHE BREZ AQXAFE FLARE TEEH
Heze Hydoo Business The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Property
Management Company i z Management
Limited services
ERERFEEERAR* NEEERS
Trade Logistics Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% - Investment
FECRERRA EEAARES E management
HEER
Hongkong China Hydoo Logistic Limited ~ Hongkong HK$ 100% - 100% Investment
BAPEREMRERAR Bk | 7T management
RAEE
Abundant Idea Investments Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% — Investment
MaREBRAA REERRES E management
REEE
Hongkong Deshang Hongkong HK$30,000,000 85% - 85% Investment
Bright Ocean Limited ) 30,000,000/ 7T management
BRRHELEERAT REEE
Zhuoying Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% - Investment
SRERAT KEGARES E management
RAEE
Copious Epoch Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% — Investment
tEERAT KEABARES E3 management
REEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EE L Tk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

7 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

17 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

L fl
Place of Particulars Group’s
incorporation of issued and effective
and business paid up capital interest ~ Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company A L BRTR biS - | Company subsidiary activities
AL REXHH EHRRAHE BREZ AQXAFE FLARE TEEH
Ningxiang Hydoo The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Property
Business Management i z management
Company Limited services
ERRRAREEERA NEEERS
Qingdao Hydoo Shiji Properties The PRC Nil 65% - 65% Dormant
Company Limited i Z LRI
EEREREAERARAR
Heze Hydoo Industrial Company Limited ~ The PRC Nil 100% 100% - Property
HERERERERAR i z development
FHERE
* These entities are all PRC limited liability companies. The English translation of the * ZEERHAPENERETLAR °

company names is for reference only. The official names of these companies are in

Chinese.

N

&
RALBNRANBRERZZE - L5
AIME T BRAPI -

/N

The directors consider that no individual non-controlling interest is considered R2014M2013F 128318 EFRAE

material to the Group as at 3| December 2014 and 2013.
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INVENTORIES

@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise:

H

() BHMBRARANEFEESE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AREFT
Property development LESE
Properties held for future development FEARGREDE
for sale 1,577,477 1,495,128
Properties under development for sale FEEEME 3,566,207 2,043,265
Completed properties held for sale HECTIYE 2,544,436 1,852,241
7,688,120 5,390,634
Others Hity
Low-value consumption goods KEHFEm 572 192
7,688,692 5,390,826

As at 3| December 2014, certain properties under development for sale and

completed properties held for sale, properties held for future development

for sale were pledged for certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 23).

R4FE12831 8 ETHER
EYE BECRIVERGER
RERBENEREASEREET
RITEFEER (PHE23) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HE M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  SUARKIIT)

18 INVENTORIES (Contd) 18 H®&E(#)
(b)  Properties held for future development for sale in the consolidated (b) EHEBRIRANFERREH
statement of financial position comprise: BYRERE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Expected to be recovered after TRHAR —F AR D]

more than one year 1,577,477 495,128

()  Properties under development for sale in the consolidated statement of ) EHUBRRRANGEEERNE
financial position comprise: B

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TREIR —F AU E 1,330,158 852921
Expected to be recovered after TEHR —F R

more than one year 2,236,049 [,190,344

3,566,207 2,043,265
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I8 INVENTORIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% & Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRmERAIN  BAARKIIR)

(d) Completed properties held for sale in the consolidated statement of

BE(#E)

d) AHUBRREAFESTING

financial position comprise: kg
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TEHER —F R 2,121,871 1,262,194

Expected to be recovered after FREAR — F AR R[]

more than one year 422,565 590,047
2,544,436 1,852,241

(e)  The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land included in property

() FFAMXHBNEELHNEERE

development for sale is as follows: aWWME
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTT
Held under BREUT&RERSS
— long leases (over 50 years) in the PRC — R ERRBRAD(S0FU L) 393,973 286,566
— medium-term leases (10-50 years) —RPERFHEL(10ZE505)
in the PRC 2,655,843 2,402,815
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 19 EZREMEWFE BNFERTESE

The Group The Company
K& ARF
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBETT AR®TR AR¥TR

Trade and bill receivables B SR IE R KR E
(note (a)) (PHEE 2) 27,393 12,893 — —
Prepaid business tax and other taxes BREER KA MR 137,761 124,883 — -
Deposits, prepayments and T BRREREM
other receivables (note (b)) FE R IE (Bt 3E (b)) 968,739 545,165 — —
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (c)) FEWRTF 2 BFIE(FHFE () — — 1,243,150 1,278,062
1,133,893 682,941 1,243,150 1,278,062
(@)  Ageing analysis (@) A
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade and bill RIEMR - AW 5 BMGUR
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) based on the date the RERFEERRN BN HE
relevant trade and bill receivables recognised is as follows: ZEMFERERRE R RE
BE)NREDOMAT :
The Group
KEE
2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®F ARBTT
Within | month REVENA 17,971 11,769
| to 3 months | 238 A 4516 531
3 to 6 months 3z26fEA 4,906 593

27,393 12,893
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20

2|

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 19
(Cont'd)

The details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 29(a).

Trade and bill receivables are primarily related to proceeds from the sale
of properties. Proceeds from the sale of properties are made in lump-
sum payments or paid by instalments in accordance with the terms of the

corresponding contracts.

The directors are of the view that all trade and bill receivables are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired as at 3|1 December

2014.

b he balance includes prepayments for leasehold land of RMB421,327,000
prepay
(2013: RMB379,481,000).

(¢)  Amount due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

RESTRICTED CASH 20

At 3| December 2014 and 2013, the restricted cash were pledged to banks for

certain mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group's properties.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21
(@)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
The Group
&M
2014
RMB’000

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

BEREMERRE  BARERE
&(E&)

AEENEERRMNFEIRH T
29(a) °

BIRUTBERERRELREY
FHEMGARE - NERHEMN
SRR RBAE fE R — R
NI EZA

EZRE IBESRIGENE
WZER20145F 12 A3 BEEE(E
BTN L [R5 45 AR E

EHRAERAETHEMNTAR
#421327,00075(20134F : ARH
379,481,0007T)

FBURFREZAAERR 28K
EETEERY

ZRHRE

R2014% 20135 12318 - XREIRE
ERRTAEENEEANE THER
BEBTRIT -

RERREEED

(2)

RERREEENEE

The Company
ESNG

2013 2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®ETT AR®TR AR¥TR

Cash at bank and in hand RITFER MRS 1,819,029 4292994 133,275 15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

(b)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd) 2 RERBHLEENE)
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (used in)/generated from b) BRBAFABRLLER(FA) /A
operations: SRENHE
2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt ARBTR ARETT
Profit before taxation EREATAE 837,426 2,324,859
Adjustments for: FLT5IER EE
Depreciation and amortisation hEHH 5(c) 25,742 16,361
Net loss on disposal of property, &Y * BE &
plant and equipment RiBEIEFEE 708 =
Finance income BB 5(a) (19,993) (11,079)
Finance costs MEKAR 5(a) 8,840 70,183
Change in fair value of A] BB O AT AR B e AR AT
embedded derivative on ITETAMNAREER
redeemable convertible
preference shares — 103,271
Equity settled share- AR B AR 7
based payments BRI 5(b) 2,010 5,707
Net gain on disposal of HERHEHERE
available-for-sale investments W %5 4 (44,360) (14,562)
Dividend income R EWA 4 (3,243) (4019)
807,130 2,490,721
Changes in working capital: LEEREH
Increase in inventories FEIEM (2,174,301) (1979.272)
Increase in trade and B 5 KA M EKRIE
other receivables, ARNRIERERIEM
prepayments and deposits (450,405) (12,506)
Increase in restricted cash X IR HI3R 20 (95,124) (80,589)
Increase in trade and B 5 K LAt R R IBIE N
other payables 146,456 2,134,200
Increase in deferred income EREAIE N 24,231 339,342
Cash (used in)/generated mEL (FA) /FMEHRs
from operations (1,742,013) 2,891,896
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

22 BESREMEMRE

The Group The Company
S L N
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTE AR%TR AR%Trn

Trade payables (note (a)) B SR FRIE (M ) 1,720,433 1,267,036 — —
Receipts in advance (note (b)) BRI (P EE (b)) 2,013,186 2,376,504 — —
Other payables and HEMAFIBEREFTER

accruals (note (c)) (B EE () 241,596 184,564 208 —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfIFARIFIA — = 30,412 4,596
Total k] 3,975,215 3,828,104 30,620 4,596
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRABIERI - IUAARKTIR)

22

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd)

Notes:

(@)

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing

analysis as at the end of the reporting period:

22 ESREMEMGTREE)
Pk

@ RBEFHR HEHREMENTER
REMRS ARRATOT

The Group
r5E

2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARET T
Due within | month or on demand R UERAEI SRR EEREER 712,272 467,596
Due after | month but within 3 months R UE A& ER3ME A RE 335,133 132,982
Due after 3 months but within 6 months R3ME A& ER6E A R EH 589,107 599,780
Due after 6 months 6 E A1 25 83,921 66,678
1,720,433 1,267,036

Trade payables mainly represent amounts due to contractors. Payment to contractors
is in installments according to progress and agreed milestones. The Group normally

retains 2% to 10% as retention money.

At 3| December 2014, included in trade payables are retention payables of
RMB12,048,000 (2013: RMB28,847,000), which are expected to be settled after more

than one year.

Receipts in advance primarily consisted of deposits and down payments from
customers for purchases of the Group's properties. Such proceeds were recorded
as current liabilities before the associated sales were recognised. Sale of properties
is subsequently recognised to the profit or loss in accordance with the Group's

accounting policy as set out in note | (s)(i).

At 31 December 2014, included in other payables and accruals are deposits of
RMB6,637,000 (2013: RMB23,962,000), which are expected to be settled after more
than one year. All of the other payables and accrued expenses are expected to be

settled within one year.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e %2 BIfR 2R AR A 7

ERESREBEFEREENAERR
B ASERBEERIREEZEHE
AR D BAR o REE—REE
2%Z | 0% R IBIERRES ©

R2014F 128318« st ABNESR
ENENRES A ARE2,048,0007T
(20134 : AR¥28,847,0007T) ' &
BN —FREE -

b)) BURFEIZERKEBEASKEY
ENEPHTEE RO HRIE - X5
BHERNAMHERERAARS
RBAE NEHEREKBEME

|(s) ()T A RE M S SRR B i

7
At ©

() M2014F12R318 - s AEME
NREREFRENEEAAR
#6,637,0007T (20135 : AR¥
23962,0007T)  ZEFIEEE N —
FREE - A EMWENFUR R ES
A BHER —FNEE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

At 31 December 2014, the Group's bank loans and other borrowings were

repayable as follows:

23

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

BITERRHMEE
R20I4F 128318 AEBNRTE
FREMEEHEEBRMOT

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
Current B
Secured HHEA
— short-term bank loans and other borrowings —RERTERREMEE 145,000 70,000
— current portion of secured non-current —BERERBRITESRR
bank loans and other borrowings HifEER RN D 224,500 183,860
Unsecured A
— short term bank loans —RERITER — 28,000
369,500 281,860
Non-current FRE
Secured Peg iwid
— repayable after | year but within 2 years —FREMFRER 399,230 181,000
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years -MERBRFARER 793,370 421,000
1,192,600 602,000
1,562,100 883,860
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

23

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd)

@

Certain banking facilities and borrowings of the Group are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants relating to: (1) certain of the Group's operating
subsidiaries” statement of financial position ratios; (2) restriction of profit
distribution by certain of its operating subsidiaries; or (3) early repayment
of principal to be triggered when 70% of the gross sellable area for the
underlying property project are sold. These requirements are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to
breach such covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and communicates with its lenders as and when the directors

foresee any non-compliance due to business needs.

At 31 December 2014, bank loans of the Group totaling RMB386,600,000
(2013: RMB130,200,000) were not in compliance with the imposed
covenants. Such non-compliance primarily relates to operating subsidiaries
which failed to achieve certain statement of financial position ratio at the
end of the reporting period. The directors of the Company are of the view
that bank loans amounted to RMB291,600,000 (2013: RMB130,200,000)
are non-current liabilities at 31 December 2014 as the Group has obtained
notices from the corresponding banks dated 31 December 2014, which
confirmed that the subsidiaries would not be regarded as having breached
the covenants and the banks would not demand early repayment from
these subsidiaries. The remaining RMB95,000,000 (2013: nil) was classified
as current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2014.

At 31 December 2014, certain secured bank loans of the Group totaling
RMB58,500,000 (2013: RMBI68,660,000) were guaranteed by a subsidiary
of the Group and a third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd)

(c)  Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest ranging from 6.40% to
10.23% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 6.40% to

[7.00% per annum), and are secured by the following assets:

23

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

BRTERREMWER(E)

©

REBZEWI4FENABILEEE
BITERREMEESENT
640%Z 10.23%H) F A =(2013
F:640%E17.00%) 5t 8+ W A
THEEEER -

The Group
A&H
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Properties under development for sale FEEEME 981,722 722,620
Completed properties held for sale FREEZTIME 904,770 460,535
Properties held for future development for sale HRERRERENR 252,088 133,360

2,138,580 1316515
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

24  DEFERRED INCOME

24 EEBA

The Group
FEB
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

At | January RIAIH 863,925 524,583
Movement during the year FNE
— Government grants recognised (note (7)) — B R B (B 22 (7)) 345,736 957,753
— Deferred income in relation to sale and —BHEERLEERAEN
operating leaseback arrangement (note(ii)) BT (B EE (ii)) — 2,527
— Amortisation of government grants during — S BT B 3
the year (321,505) (620,938)
888,156 863,925

Included under: FFALUTIER !

Current liabilities mEAE 882,313 858,082

Non-current liabilities FERBAE 5,843 5843

888,156 863,925

Notes: Bz -

() Pursuant to the respective agreements between the Group and local governments, ()  BEASEEF RN ZHSER
such grants are for subsidising the infrastructure construction of certain projects Z AR ERRNEWAERS T
undertaken by certain subsidiaries of the Group, including Ningxiang Trade Centre, WMBARMABRAETEENERZE
Yulin Trade Centre, Jining Logistics Centre, Mianyang Trade Centre, Ganzhou Trade R ZEZEEBEEBWRM - EM
Centre, Wuzhou Trade Centre, Yantai Trade Centre, Heze Trade Centre, Lanzhou IR EEWMRE - BFRE
Trade Centre, Huaiyuan Trade Centre and Xingning Trade Centre. ENFEYRE  BNEEDR

EamEMR  HEREMRE
BNEEN  EEREHANEERE
W

(i) In connection with certain sale agreements entered into by Jining Logistics Centre for iy BEREBEVRBEITINETUEHEE

sale of properties, the Group subsequently leased back certain sold properties from
the respective buyers under operating leases for terms of 3 to |0 years at agreed
rental rates. Upon recognition of the sale of such properties, a portion of the sale
proceeds, which represents the excess of sale price over fair value of such properties,

is recognised as deferred income and amortised over the respective lease terms.
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26

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("the MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees'
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in various
defined contribution retirement plans organised by municipal and provincial
governments for its employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans ranging from 10% to 20% of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of the employees. A member of the plan is entitled to a pension equal
to a fixed proportion of the salary prevailing at the member's retirement date.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

associated with these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”),
which was first adopted on 30 November 201 |, whereby the directors of the
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any entity comprising in the Group, to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Additional options were granted to certain
employees of the Group on |6 October 2012 and 20 March 2013 respectively.
After such grants, a total number of |,715 share options were granted to
employees. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for | ordinary share

in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

25

26

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

EERKER
ERETRATE

AEBRBEBRHEAES T E G
Wﬁiﬁﬁfé%ﬁﬁ%ﬂa?ﬁlﬁ
EREERY-—BARHEAESTE
(TeEEsE]) BREEHEAREBL
ERAEEMNERBRFENRE - RE
wEeHE EXINESHRRRES
HERRAR SRR - EEZ AER
WA EBR 530,000 7T o 1t &t & 69 5%
AE RS -

REERATE - ARE %ﬁﬁEE%A
BB ASN S BERMY
%°$%Iﬁ&ﬁal§ E

m+%malﬁ%ﬁ H%M&Hﬁ%
BIEMEELRFAENERARE - KL
AERRTIN REBEBAR Y FA
SRBENRREBMAELBERNR
Bt

URSEEURDABERNNTR
AARR0EIA0BERRHE
Rt 2118 K2R E R A ERES
2 Bt AARESESEAMM
RERTE BBEASEEE(DEARE
ETENEEBNES)ERBRENR
BARARIMKG - BIMERED BIR
012%F 108 168 K% 2013F3 820 BRFA
SEETEE ERUZEBRER
BERITISHERECKTESR - 860
BIER T8 ABNREARR | RE
R WARNDEELEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

26

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

(@)

The terms and conditions of the options granted are as follows:

DU EE R BERANR(E)
(@) BENEIREHEDT

Number of ~ Contractual life
instruments of options
TE#HA BRESHS
() Options granted on () M20IIFI1A30H
30 November 20! | R B E
— directors &5 325 85 months
85 {& A
— employees —E& [,180 85 months
851E A
Percentage of
Vesting date vested shares
EFE
BEAH BRANE S
31 December 2012 2012 12A31H 25%
3| December 2013 2013F 12 A31 H 50%
3| December 2014 2014F 12 /31 8 75%
31 December 2015 2015128318 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

(@)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (Cont d)

26

DU EE R BERA AR (E)
RNMRRREGAT : ()

(2)

Number of  Contractual life
instruments of options
TE#HA BRESHH
(i) Options granted on 16 October 2012 (i) R 20124 10 A 16 B L KB
— employees —E& 191 74 months
7418 A
Percentage of
Vesting date vested shares
=1 |
BEAH RHNED
31 December 2013 2013F12A31H 25%
31 December 2014 20145 12 A31 H 50%
31 December 2015 2015F 124318 75%
31 December 2016 2016F12A31H 100%
(i)  Options granted on 20 March 2013 (i) 201343 A 20 B R HMEERE
— directors -£5 19 69 months
691 A
Percentage of
Vesting date vested shares
EFER
HEAH ROBMED T
31 December 2014 2014F 12431 8 25%
31 December 2015 2015F12A31H 50%
31 December 2016 2016 12 A31 H 75%
31 December 2017 2017F 12431 8 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd) 2% DUEREEURGRERNARGE
(@)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (Cont'd) @) BENERREEDNT : (&)
The options are exercisable from six months after the Company’s Global ZEBRERRARA 2 REER
Offering date to 31 December 2018. g NEARE2018F12H31H
e -
Pursuant to the relevant terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, on 3| BEEAAREENERETE
October 2013, being the listing date of the share of the Company in Stock FAEEEESE - R2013F 1031 H
Exchange of Hong Kong Listed, each share with a par value of US$1.00 each (AR DRIRDREERERHM
under each option granted was automatically adjusted to 48,000 options ARARLMAHE)  EREEH
and the exercise price of each option was adjusted from HK$48,654 to BRETSREER00ETHR
HK$1.014 accordingly. DB BENFEE 548,000 17 HE AR -

AEnNERENEREMIFEER
B R 48,654 B TLHE A 101478

7TE o
(b)  The number and the weighted average exercise price of share option are (b)) BRENHERMETITEEN
as follows: T
2014 2013
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of Share average of Share
exercise price Options  exercise price Options
ik 4 SRR il BlE
FHTEE BB FOEE 4=
Outstanding at | January R B BARTE HK$1.014 82,320,000 HK$1.014 81,420,000
Granted during the year FRRL - — HK$1.014 900,000
Forfeited during the year FRRI HK$1.014  (13,605,000) - -
QOutstanding at 31 December R 12831 BERTE HK$1.014 68,715,000 HK$1.014 82,320,000
Exercisable at 3| December ® 12 A 31 BAEf7{E HK$1.014 51,932,500 —
The options outstanding at 3| December 2014 had a remaining contractual R2014F 12431 B K17 F 8 i
weighted average contractual life of 4 years (2013: 5 years). BRBAENHRTMETHEHNE
(20135 : 56)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 27 BBFRHE
On 30 May 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Haode Shangqing R2N14F58308  AEBERMASE
from Mr. Wang Desheng, one of the controlling shareholders of the Group, for MERBRE . —TEREERERER
a consideration of RMB2,000,000. Haode Shangqing is engaged in provision of 15 2 B AKE - (B A AR 2,000,000
marketing and advertising services. T RERBRERAMSHEEREH
AR o
The acquisition has the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities at the ZWEHAEERNKERPNEERE
acquisition date: BRNUTZE
RMB’000

AR®F
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEED 184
Other receivables and prepayments Hofth B WK IE R TR K 547
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 532
Intangible assets RV EE 13
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTIE (655)
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired BB BRI EEFENLAE 621
Goodwil Gk 1,379
Consideration RE 2,000
Less: cash and cash acquired " RekEkBERe (184)
Net cash outflow Rent#8 1,816

Had the acquisition been occurred on | January 2014, the Group’s consolidated
turover for the year ended 31 December 2014 would have been increased by
RMB2 16,000, and the Group's consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2014 would have been decreased by RMB741,000.

fMBER4FIAIBEE KEE
REBZ14F12A3IBLEFERNEH
WAREMARE 2160007 * RAKHE
BE204F12A3BLFEMA A
BB AR 7410007 ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRABIERI - IUAARKTIR)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 BE - RERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (@) EZARBINEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AEEA MRS EKE D HFE
component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated BEREROHRIANQOHERS
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's BX - ARAIERERAKEI R
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the FNEERNEBFEHIIMNT

years are set out below:

Equty settled
share-based
payment
reserve
Share Share Coptdl  IAEZEE  Bechange  Accumulated Total
capital premium reseve MRADXA reserve losses equiy
A BAEE EAERE RERER ENEBR  ZHFR  BoER
Note RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
it  ARETr ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
() (d)() Bd)v)  28d)v)  28(d)i)

At | January 2013 RNBEIAIA 365 - 343965 6,568 166 (387017)  (344%3)
Changes in equity for 2013: WIERELRD:

Total comprehensive ERZERA

income for the year g - - -
Net proceeds from issue of REREER

ordinary shares upon the Global ~ E/TEBRAEFE

(1389 (178001)  (191.897)

Offering net offssung cost ~~ FEBBEAIMA 6182 1219687 = = = — 185869
Capttalisation issue BMLEf 131 (25321) - - - - -
Automatic conversion of EEER

redeemable convertible e

preference shares AHRELR 7l - 1019% — — — 1000
Equty settled share- NEREEIRG

based transactions RERNRS - = = 5,707 = = 5707
Capitaisation of pecial dvidend ~ EALAFRIFIS - - 20205 - - - 20205
At 31 December 2013 RWBEILA3IA 30945 1254366 1,386,109 12275 (12270)  (565018) 2107407
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28

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

Movements in components of equity (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

28 RE - RERRE(E)
@) EREARDBINEH(E)
Equity

settled

share-based

payment (Accumulated
reserve losses)/
Capital WER Retained

Share Share  redemption Capital BEN Exchange profits Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  REX A reserve  (RETA) equity
Bx  ROEE SAMEGRE E4RF  ERRRE EXGR /REWR RGeS
RMB0OO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO000  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBO0OO  RMB'00
AR¥TT ARWTT ARMTR ARWTZ ARWTZ ARWTR ARWTR ARWTZ
28(c) 28(d)() 28(c) 28(d)(v) 28(d)(iv) 28(d)(ii

At | January 2014 H014E 1818 M5 154366 —13I09 DS (22000 (65018 2107407
Changes in equity for 2014; NHEREET
Total comprehensive income ERZENALE

for the year - - - - - 0745 1189254 1209999
Repurchase and cancellation BE R HERA

of shares () (120) (32,145) 120 - — — — (32,145)
Dividends approved in respect BEEER

ofthe previous year MRS 28() — - - - — — (64309  (624309)

Equity settled WERESIRA

share-based transactions RERNZS - - - - 1,606 - 404 2010
At 3| December 2014 014128318 385 1l 120 1,386,109 13881 8475 B 266292

Annual Report 2014 F3]

201



202

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BREERN  BUARKIIR)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)
(b)  Dividends

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the year

28 BRAE - RERKRE(E)

b) k=
() BERLEEEMNLLGE
wRERE
2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Final dividend proposed after the end AR & BIREHEK AR EIR 2
of the reporting period of FiREER 6B
HKé cents per ordinary share (2013 : HRREAMR 19.5%00)

(2013: HK19.5 cents per

ordinary share)

192,457 616,582

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has

not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during

REPRY BEDREHER
RERSARERRE

(i) FEEHRERTANGEBR
LB FEHENERE

the year B BRRRE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Final dividend in respect of the PABE TR F 2 B IR B
previous financial year, approved LR B B R AR S

and paid during the following year, BiRE R 19581002013 - &)

of HK19.5 cents per ordinary share
(2013: nil)

624,309 —
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Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont) 28 RA - BERRE(E)
(c)  Share capital () R=X
Authorised and issued share capital EEREBITRA
2014 2013
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
ROHE &8 ian ¢! Ko
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TERT T FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREE0O AT
HK$0.01 each VE AR 8,000,000 80,000 8,000,000 80,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 28 BE - RERRE(E)
(c)  Share capital (Contd) () BE(E)
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ERTRARERR
Number of Nominal value of
Par value Shares ordinary shares
HE BRHBE EEREE
Note Us$ HK$'000 RMB'000
Pl £ EY 3 TET AR¥TR
At | January 2013 R20I13FI1 AR () 1.00 55,203 428 365
HK$ '000 HK$'000 RMB'000
B TR TEL AR®TR
Redenomination and
cancellation of shares RHEBER KT8 (i 00l 4782 48 365
Global Offering and
over-allotment EHEERBEER 00l 780206 7,802 6182
Capitalisation issue BARMEET 00l 3,197,274 31972 25321
Automatic conversion of
redeemable convertible REREEHRAIED
preference shares upon AR B ST AR A
Global Offering B EEin 00l 9,688 97 77

At 31 December 2013 and M20I13F12A31BR

| January 2014 014 B 1 H 00 4029,950 40,299 31,945
Shares repurchased

and cancelled B E LT iER D (i) 00l (15,106) (151) (120)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12431 B 00! 4014844 40,148 31,825
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

©

Share capital (Contd)

Note:

@)

At | January 2013, the Company's issued and fully paid capital comprises
US$67,703 divided into 55,203 ordinary shares with a par value of US$1.00
each and 12,500 preferred shares with a par value of US$1.00 each. On
29 April 2013, the Company re-denominated its authorised share capital
from US dollars to Hong Kong dollars. The Company repurchased all the
outstanding US dollar ordinary shares and preferred shares at par. For each
of the US dollar ordinary share/preferred share repurchased, the Company
issued to the shareholder 775 Hong Kong dollar ordinary shares/preferred
shares at par. Immediately following the repurchase, the Company cancelled
the repurchased and unissued US dollar ordinary shares and preferred shares.
After the re-denomination and cancellation, the Company's issued and fully
paid-up capital comprises 42,782,325 ordinary shares and 9,687,500 preferred

shares at a par value of HK$0.01 each.

During the year, the Company repurchased 15,106,000 of its own ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange for a total consideration of HK$40,443,550
(equivalent to approximately RMB32,145,000).

At 31 December 2014, all of the 15,106,000 repurchased ordinary shares
have been cancelled and the related issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value of these shares. Pursuant to section 37(3) of
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, an amount equivalent to the par
value of the shares cancelled of HK$150,106 (equivalent to approximately
RMB120,000) was transferred from share premium to the capital redemption
reserve. The premium paid on the repurchase of shares of HK$40,293,444
(equivalent to approximately RMB32,025,000) was charged to the share

premium reserve account.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

R BRERRS(E

NG

B

(i)

R20I13FI1A1B  ARANE
BT RBRRAR67703%T -
/55,203 BAREE |.00ETT
ML BR K 12,500R B RAEE
|.00ETTHBER « B20135
4R8298 - AR AIBEEER
AMFHEEMRETERAS
T o AR E 18 IR E B B A
BROEIMETTBRRE
KR o ARRITREATER GG
RETL BB ELREZEE
Rk B HEABT775RB T E
A/ BER - BREEEE -
ARAIFHAARETHET
TERKELR  LREBRK
i ARAMBERITRA
B1542,782,325 R S AXE(E0.01
BT E AR &9,687,500 &
REE00IBTAIEER o

REAFER  RAARBERRX
FrEEIE 15,106,000 4 & i@
I - 48 E{E B40,443,550/8 T
(FBERHARE32,145,000

JT) °

R2014F 128318 2%
15,106,000/ BB B & Ak 2 T 5t
i ZERMHEBEREAR
AR B EITRAH IR - BRI
REMSARNEEIO)K &
HRHMEEI50, 10687 (48
SRHARE12000070) BE
BEBEHARMNEEEERAR
BEEE - ROEBEMTSEE
402934448 7T (HERHAR
#32,025,0007C) ERROEE
R o

Annual Report 2014 F3]

205



206

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(d)  Reserves

()

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.
PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries and relevant statutory regulations, appropriations to
the statutory reserve fund were made at 10% of profit after tax
determined in accordance with accounting rules and regulations of the
PRC until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
This reserve fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or
increasing capital of the PRC subsidiaries provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered capital,

and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all relevant exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
with functional currency other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt

with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note | (t).

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e %2 BIfR 2R AR A 7

28

B EERRE(E)
(d) fHHE
() BREAEE

(i)

(i)

REFSHEARE  AQ
Al fn)a B R B AR
DRI S EEERER
RERE Nk E B
& ADAARNXMNER
FHBRET MG -

FEEERE

REASEHREFLRNA
BERMARBEAZEZEE
B BARRBEEHANR
ERETEMRBENEN
l0%RZEEFBESEN B
ZRELBEIFRELRN
50% o i@ AR E
REF R AR R BB SE
B HEBRERESERT
LRAME RN 2% BB
RIBEE - PAARAIK

EXLRE

EXRERRRREIFAR
O EREEMBR
KMELHNMBHBELE
B ARERME ) FE
Ve RRRIE



28

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(d)

Reserves (Cont d)

(iv)  Equity settled share-based payment reserve

)

Equity settled share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group in accordance with the

accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note | (p)(i).

Other reserve

Other reserve is resulted from transactions with owners in their
capacity as the equity owners. The balance comprises capital reserve
surplus/deficit arising from the difference between the disposal/
acquisition consideration and its net assets value at the respective
date of disposal/acquisition, and the capital reserve transferring from

the equity settled share-based payment reserve.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves available for distribution,

calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately RMB1,222,552,000 (2013: RMB689,348,000).

It represents the Company's share premium account of approximately
RMB1,222,221,000 (2013: RMBI,254,366,000) and retained profit of
approximately RMB331,000 (2013: accumulated loss of RMB565,018,000)
in aggregate as at 31 December 2014, which may be distributed provided

that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to

be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and

when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

28

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to fund its property
development projects, provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing properties commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to financial at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of gearing ratio. The Group defines this ratio as total interest-
bearing liabilities (includes bank loans and other borrowings and redeemable
convertible preference shares) divided by total assets of the Group. At 31
December 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group was 13.2% (2013: 8.0%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal

course of the Group's business. The Group s also exposed to equity price risk

arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group' s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and bill receivables and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash held by the Group are mainly
deposited in financial institutions such as commercial banks which maintain
sound reputation and financial situation. The credit risk is considered low and

the Group has exposure limit to any single financial institution.

In respect of trade and bill receivables, credit risk is minimised as the Group
normally receives full payment from buyers before the transfer of property

ownership.

29
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

29

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (Cont d)

In respect of other receivables due from third parties, the Group reviews the

exposures and manages them based on the need of operation.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as set out in note 31,
the Group does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the

Group to credit risk,

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group' s exposure to credit

risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in note |9.

Liquidity risk

The Group management reviews the liquidity position of the Group on an
ongoing basis, including review of the expected cash inflows and outflows,
sale/pre-sale results of respective property projects, maturity of loans
and borrowings and the progress of the planned property development
projects in order to monitor the Group's liquidity requirements in the short
and longer terms. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Contd)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group's and the Company's financial
liabilities excluding receipts in advance, which the Group expects to settle by
delivery of completed properties. The contractual maturities are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be

required to pay:

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

29 SREREBRAAEE)
(b) FTEBHEERE)

TREFIFKERARRIEMEE
(PEREAEERRINEZETY
FEENRYGE)IRSHEHR
BT AHNHR - S OHRERE
BORRRASRE(BEUAH
MEH(FE) B REHRAT
MR EENFS AT ARAE
BRARRRRERORS B

g .
The Group: REH :
2014
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRREBRASR T
Within ~ More than ~ More than
| year | yearbut 2 yearsbut
oron less than less than
demand 2 years 5years  More than Carrying
—FR% BE-F HBEWEF 5 years Total amount
REXR BIRAME BLIREE HEUE #act fREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR%®TR AR%TR
Bank loans and RITERR
other borrowings Hinfg & 481,836 462,014 876,267 — 1,820,117 1,562,100
Trade and other payables & 5 R EHAth
e 508 1,909,778 52,251 — — 1962029 1,962,029
2,391,614 514,265 876,267 — 3782146 3,524,129
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

29  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 29 SREREERAAEE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd) (b) FTEBHEERE)
The Group: (Cont'd) AEE: (£)
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHREBREA ST

Within More than More than
| year | yearbut 2 vearsbut

oron less than less than
demand 2 years 5years  More than Canrying
—FAx BRE-F BERTF 5 years Total amount
RER ELRME EBLREF IFUL 85t mE

RMBO0O ~ RMB0OOO ~ RMBOO0  RMB0O0O ~ RMBO00  RMB00O
ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETRL

Bank loans and RITERR
other borrowings HifEE 349,042 228719 485,287 — 1036048 883,860

Trade and other payables & 5 K E A
e 50R 1,398,791 52,809 — — 1,451,600 1,451,600

747,833 281,528 485,287 — 2487648 2335460
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

29  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 29 SREREERAAEE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd) (b) FTEBHEERE)
The Company: VN
2014
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRERRERE
Within ~ More than ~ More than
| year  |yearbut 2 yearsbut
oron less than less than
demand 2 years 5years  More than Carrying

—-Fpy BBE-F HEBWMF 5 years Total amount
REXR BLRAME BLREE HEUL ) fREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR¥TR AR%®TR

Trade and other o REM
payables ERTIE 208 — — — 208 208
Amounts due to FET AR 5
related parties B 30,412 — — — 30,412 30,412
30,620 — — — 30,620 30,620
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RORBERSRE
Within -~ More than ~ More than
| year  [yearbut 2 yearsbut
oron less than less than
demand 2 years 5years  More than Carrying
—FRz% BE-F BEmTF 5 years Total amount
RER BIRME BIREF  RFENLE st FREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT ARETRT
Trade and other B REM
payables FERTIE 4596 — — — 4596 4596
As shown in the above analysis, bank loans of the Group amounting to mEREDMAR ARBARE
RMB369,500,000 were due to be repaid during 2015. 369,500,000 7C HY 8% 17 & KA R

WISFEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

29  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 29 SREREERAAEE)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIXER
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents, AEENEEREIERBR SRR
restricted cash and borrowings issued at variable rates. 2FEY  XBRHBRERAZEF
EEXK -
The Group does not anticipate significant impact to cash and cash AEERBRE RBREFEMRE
equivalents and the pledged deposits because the interest rates of bank BRERITEXEATYE  BAARE
deposits are not expected to change significantly. HRTERNETGEEAEY -
The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank loans of the Group are AEBFTERNMERERER
disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements. The Group does not carry RERMBHREMT23  A5HE
out any hedging activities to manage its interest rate exposure. 3 4 5 TR R R B 1T A T
I
(i) Interest rate profile () FIFEELR
The Group: AERE :
2014 2013
Effective Effective
Interest Interest
Rate Rate
BRA = BRA=
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% ARBTR % ARBTT
Net fixed rate borrowings: [EEFIEEEFE
Bank loans and
other borrowings FITERREMBEE 9.24 417,000 14.63 255,000
Variable rate borrowings: FEFIREE :
Bank loans and
other borrowings RITERREMEE 7.10 1,145,100 741 628,860
Total borrowings BEE 1,562,100 883,860
Net fixed rate borrowings &€ F| R E & F 5
as a percentage of HEEEFEN
total net borrowings B 27% 29%

214 HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED o 32EIEZARE R A F



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(c) Interest rate risk (Contd)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group' s profit after tax and total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by approximately RMB4,294,000 (201 3:
decreased/increased profit after tax by approximately RMB2,358,000),

which has not taken into account of effect of interest capitalisation.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit/loss after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the

year ended 31 December 2013.

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

EREAREERAAEE)
MEmB(E)

HBEDH

R2014F128318 £H
twAEEERETENER
T WRIEREELH T’
50 1A E B (20134 : S0fE &
) EXEFRFEER
LOFET A EEN
BRELE TR R AR AR
RGBS M/ D
# A R #4294,00075(2013
FRBEFBRD,Em
#) ANR¥ 2,358,000 7T ) ©

LRGREATBETRASE
MBRBEFE/ BBR(RR
BHE) ARG ERNE
i &6 3 7] BE B A WO BN B &
B HREDITBREMNE

BYNMEPRREEE U
ERRENFEAREME
Bl EHREREER
HAnENERRNESRT
A ARASBERBEHR
REMEBMEFTETA
E&E"Jiﬁi/)wgﬂrﬂ

HASEMBRBEFB(R

REFE)ARE HFERS
Hitn @ BOMTE - LAK
M =B BEF S X S RA
NEELERMET - BEH
MR BZE2013F 127831
BIEFERAREEEDS -

Annual Report 2014 F3]

215



216

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

29

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(@)

Currency risk

Almost all the Group' s operating activities are carried out in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated in RMB. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group
reviews its foreign currency exposures regularly and considers no significant

exposure on its foreign exchange risk.

Equity price risk

The group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments

classified as available-for-sale unlisted equity securities (see note [4).

The Group's unquoted investments are held for long term strategic
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually against
performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited information
available to the Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to the

Group's long term strategic plan.

Fair value
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in IFRS |3, fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

—  Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level |
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

29  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 29 SREREERAAEE)
() Fair value (Contd) ) RDREGE)
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont d) () BAonEmAEMERIA
(%)
—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs — FIREE:ERAE
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level I, and not using —REEHENLDR
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs B AR EE—&
for which market data are not available. WA BRABRAE

RATABRENEER
$ig - PAUBREE
DiEELREMEE
R IR

=RfEE: EZERA

i

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant —

unobservable inputs AEENEZHE
ENRRE
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
as at as at
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
categorised categorised
Fair value at into Level 2 Fair value at into Level 2
31 December 20145 31December R20134F
2014 12A31 8 2013 12A318

R20145FE 28AH R20134F NEE

12831 B EZME  12A31BH E_HRE
DMARE  DRERE NAE  DRERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000

AR®TRE AR%BTR ARKTE ARETR

Recurring fair value REMEAAETE
measurements
Assets: BE
Available-for-sale ARLERE -
investments:
— Wealth management —BiEm
products 37,000 37,000 120,000 120,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

29

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(

Fair value (Contd)

0

(i

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

During the year, there were no transfers between Level | and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil). The Group' s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels and fair value hierarchy as at the

end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of wealth management products in Level 2 is the
estimated amount that the Group would receive upon expiry or
termination at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the

related current interest rates.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair

value

The carrying amounts of the Group' s and the Company' s financial
instruments are carried at cost or amortised cost is not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 201 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 COMMITMENTS

@)

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

30 A
Commitments outstanding at the end of reporting period contracted but () RBEEHRSITNERBBRERA
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows: ERENREDT

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Construction and development contracts BEREREN 1,926,765 1,223,694
Land agreements TR 330,588 —
2,257,353 1,223,694

At the end of reporting period, the total value minimum lease payments (b) REEHR REFTHELER

under non-cancellable operating lease are payable as follows:

EENREASAEIHERD
T

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARBTT

Within | year —ER 53,534 13,893
After | year but within 2 years —FREMEAN 47,385 12,373
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 115,000 —
215919 26,266

The Group leases a number of building facilities under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 5 years, with an option
to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEERREEHERAZEET
Rit e HRNS —BRAMEER
FAMRUEREN EREE
HRATHERR - HERERRER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)
30 COMMITMENTS (Contd) 30

(c) At the end of reporting period, the total value minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

AR (&)

(0 REBEER REFTHHELCEH
ERLBEREAEIERERN
T

2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARBTT

Within | year —FR 7,683 4933
After | year but within 2 years —FRERMENR 4,112 6,649
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 3,653 5,547
After 5 years hFE 9,934 10,602

25,382 27,731

The Group leases out a number of properties under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to |5 years. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31

Guarantees

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of
the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty
owned by the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group's guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
the earlier of the buyer obtained the individual property ownership certificate and

the full settlement of mortgage loans by the buyer.

220 HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED o 3B ZARE R A F

rEERBEEHEHNEZENE - A
WL —RARMFETRF - HEEE
BREANEE -

HAREE
BR

AEERETRIINAKENEES A
AUMRBERMRHORBRERM
R - REERGER  WESELTER
BBNF - AAKREAAREEREHN
RBEREREOE BN TRITH
T A B RERK - REBHERD
HERRBEFREASE  EEEXR
BEENFEERE2BANZIEEUA
RRERE)RAL -



31

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Conta) 31

Guarantees (Contd)

The maximum amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted

to the purchasers of the Group's properties at the end of each reporting period is

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

AREBEE)
B’R(E)

REREPRAARENREHERH
RANKRBREMARTELNERS

as follows: CEVONNE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage RARBYEEHERNRIEHE
facilities granted to purchasers i [ RTTIE H B R

of the Group's properties

2,551,035 1,482,069

The directors of the Company consider that it is not probable that the Group will
sustain a loss under these guarantees as the Group can take over the ownerships
of the related properties and sell the properties to recover any amounts paid by
the Group to the banks. The directors of the Company also consider that the fair
market value of the underlying properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage
loans guaranteed by the Group in the event the purchasers default payments to the

banks.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of these guarantees

as its fair value is considered to be minimal by the directors of the Company.

ARAEZRA  ARAKEAREMR
BOENMERL L EBEYE UK
EAEERRTXNNEMSE - Bt
FEEPMAAREAZERRNER B
B ARBEZNAR WEHHEXRE
BRITAR ARBENROAATERE
BRAKEMERNREERBER

HRARRIEERARAFERNDAE
BIE - WAKEY ARG A SERERE
RN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEAEBERZ
(@)  Key management personnel remuneration @ TFEEEAEHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including TEEBRABTFMBEMET 7R
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain BWRARAIEEX MR LM
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: BATRERE TR HEE N

S8 HIMT

2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARBTT

Contribution to defined ERMTURIGTE
contribution retirement plans 392 |37
Wages, salaries and other benefits in kind e TEREMER 26,978 20213
Equity settled share-based payments PARE & 5 B VAR RE R
BES 468 2,655
27,838 23,005
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). FMEBEER EINAI(F2H
BiEES(b)) °
(b)  Transactions with related parties (b)) HEHEHELINXZ
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBTFT
Receipts from related parties W ER B 7 B0 5RO
— the controlling shareholders —BRRE — 796
Payments to related parties XA BERE T 950
— the controlling shareholders —PERRE — 228
— others —Hfh — 1,000
— 1,228
Sales of properties to related parties HEME TRk — 607
(c)  Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions (0 LWRAHBEERSMNEMM
None of the above related party transactions falls under the definition of LRABLRSETER MR
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in FTHARMTRNEER 5 %E
Chapter 4A of the Listing Rules. BRERS

222 HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED o 3B ZARE R A F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NON-ADJUSTMENT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)  After the end of the reporting period, the Company entered into the
Purchase Agreement with Pingan Real Estate (HongKong) Company Limited
(the “Investor”). The Company has issued 7.00% convertible notes in
principal amount of US$120,000,000 (approximately RMB 736,104,000)
due 2020 to the Investor on 23 January 2015. The gross and net proceeds
(after deducting expenses) are US$120,000,000 and approximately
US$119,330,000, respectively.

(b)  After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final dividend.
Further details are disclosed in note 28(b).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Most Trend Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and beneficially owned
by the Controlling Shareholders. This entity does not produce financial statements

available for public use.

33

34

Br R AR MY EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRAEEBIN  BUAARETIR)

BEMREAESE

@ RBEEHKRE ARAETZE
THEEB)ARARRE
EDILBERZE ARAER
01551 ABBRKEEETAR
% #120,0000003% JT(#) A R &
736,104,0007C ) 7220205 2| 7 49
TO%FEREE - REETH
FERBEERFEMBKRAEX
%) Bl £120,000,000% 7t & £
119,330,000 % T °

(b) WmEHERE EEERRER
HRE - E—HHBERERM T
28(b) °

HEERBAERE
RNI4F1NA3NE EEREAEE
EEBARRSREERTRERERE
RAOR ZARREBEERRESEM
KIABERARYHERBERE =S HE
B ZERIVEREELRAENIE
W e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% Y

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BRRFREBIN - BAAREIR)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 35
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a few
amendments and a new standard which are not vet effective for the year ended 3|
December 2014 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

CHEMGEREZ2014F 12831 BLEE
EMREMRNET - FEARREN
BE3 %

HEARBRATIZAS  BHRetE
ABEEeEBA2EEIR—ENE
Bl RSB R EUREE04EF
12831 BIEFEMAERE RRI R
REM - B THHEBHAREE
B

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

BUTB#R

ZERBE

BHBMENR

Amendments to IAS |9, Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions | July 2014
REITERE 19RER AN REFEMNTE - ERHH 014781 R
Amendments to IFRS | |, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations | January 2016
BRI MEEAE | | REF N - WES SXBR R R BE 016F1 A1 R
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clanfication of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation | January 2016
REFTEANE oK RER G ERE 8RB K - BB AT ER A %055 0I6F I AR
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers | January 2017
BRI B RELERE 155  KGEEL KA 0171 A1 R
IFRS 9, Financial instruments | January 2018
BREHERERANEIR  2H LA 2018F 1 A1 H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements except for the adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 5

which may have an impact on the entity's results and/or financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation from the company's
first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the company's financial year
which began on | January 2015) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of
the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact
is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only affect the presentation and

disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED e %2 BIfR 2R AR A 7

AEBTAENEZFETRANERE
AHENTE - BEEA  AEERR
RALERBRTEHAHRBERRAE
P& HRBERMEREENF IR
RERMBREERS SHARHER
WEER RIBRRER T BRI o

Beoh - M EBRREDI(F 622 F)E 9D
BB RER 0 TR IRZ 5515358
ER2014F3A3AHZEMALDEHE
BBt R EE(BN20155F | B | BRBHA
NEMBREE)AaEE - AEBERR
AEPIEBNERERE I DHEERE
MBRROBHYEETIME 2S5
SR BRATATREREATER
EeVE2RAlERREMNZI KK
BA e
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